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1. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

1.1. Basic data about Home Credit B.V. 

Company: Home Credit B.V. (the “Company”)  

Legal form: Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited Liability 

Company) 

Registered office: The Netherlands, Strawinskylaan 933, 

1077 XX Amsterdam 

Place of registration: The Netherlands, Chamber of Commerce and Industries in 

Amsterdam (Kamer van Koophandel Amsterdam) 

Registration No.: 34126597 

VAT number: NL 8086.95.976.B01 

Date of incorporation:

  

28 December 1999 

Duration: Incorporated for an indefinite period of time 

Applicable law: Laws of the Netherlands 

Country of incorporation: The Netherlands 

Issued capital: EUR 659,019,639 

Paid up capital: EUR 659,019,639 

Authorized capital: EUR 712,500,000 

Contact address: Home Credit B.V.  

Strawinskylaan 933, 1077 XX Amsterdam, 

The Netherlands 

Tel.: +31 (0)20 88 13 120 

Fax: +31 (0)20 88 13 121 

Contact address in the 

Czech Republic: 

Zdeňka Kohoutová 

Senior Controller 

Home Credit International a.s.  

Evropská 2690/17 

P.O.Box 177 

160 41 Prague 6  

Tel.: +420 224 174 375  

Contact for investors: Alena Tomanová 

Tel.: +420 224 174 319 

Company’s website: www.homecredit.net 
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1.2. Bonds issued 

ISIN: CZ0000000245 

Listed on: Prague Stock Exchange 

Issue date: 22 September 2010 

Aggregate principal 

amount: 

CZK 2,900,000,000 

Denomination of each 

Note: 

CZK 1,450,000 

Redemption of principal 

amount: 

22 September 2015 

Interest rate: zero-coupon note 

Other information: book-entry securities in bearer form, in 

accordance with Czech law 

 

ISIN: CZ0000000260 

Listed on: Prague Stock Exchange 

Issue date: 22 June 2012 

Aggregate principal 

amount: 

CZK 3,750,000,000 

Denomination of each 

Note: 

CZK 3,000,000 

Redemption of principal 

amount: 

22 June 2016 

Interest rate: 6.25% p.a. 

Interest paid: annually in arrears on 22 June of each year 

Other information: book-entry securities in bearer form, in 

accordance with Czech law 
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1.3. Principal activities of the Company  

Article 3, Chapter II of the Company’s Articles of Association states that the 

subject of the Company’s activity is: 

a) to – alone or together with other parties – acquire and alienate participations or 

other interests in legal entities, companies and businesses, to cooperate with these 

and to manage these; 

b) to obtain, manage, exploit, encumber and alienate property – intellectual property 

rights included – as well as to invest capital; 

c) to lend funds, in particular – but not exclusively – to subsidiaries, group companies 

and/ or participations of the Company – such with due observance of the 

stipulations of article 9 paragraph 5 of the Company´s Articles of Association-, as 

well as to raise funds as a loan or to make raise funds; 

d) to enter into agreements in which the company binds itself as surety or joint and 

several debtor, warrants itself or binds itself with or for third parties, in particular – 

but not exclusively – with respect to the legal entities and companies as mentioned 

under c; 

e) to, not professionally, do regular payment for pensions or otherwise, as well as 

everything pertaining to the foregoing, relating thereto or conducive thereto, all in 

the widest sense of the word.  

 

Home Credit B.V. and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”) are a leading 

multi-channel provider of consumer finance in Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) and in 

Asia.  

The Group is currently active in the Czech Republic (since 1997), the Slovak 

Republic (since 1999), the Russian Federation (since 2002), Kazakhstan (since 2005), 

Belarus (since 2007), China (since 2007), India (since 2012), Indonesia (since 2013) and 

Philippines (since 2013). 

The Group specialises in multi-channel consumer finance lending, offering a 

variety of products, including “in-store” point of sale (“POS”) loans for purchases of 

durable goods, cash loans, revolving loans and other types of consumer financing 

provided in local currency.  Historically, the Group was primarily a provider of POS loans 

and later expanded into cash loans, credit cards/ revolving loans and other products. 

Cash loans and credit cards/ revolving loans were initially cross-sold to the Group’s 

existing customers acquired through POS loans.  However, with the growth of the 

Group’s branch network and the development of more innovative distribution methods, 

the Group subsequently began to issue cash loans and credit cards/ revolving loans to 

new, as opposed to cross-sell, customers. In countries where Home Credit B.V.’s 

subsidiaries hold banking licences, the Group also offers retail banking services. The 
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Group’s product portfolio is different in each country, as market dynamics and customer 

needs vary from market to market. 

Descriptions of the main products offered by the Group are set out below. 

a) POS Loans 

POS loans are the Group’s key product and are offered in all the countries where 

the Group operates. POS loans are offered to finance purchases of consumer goods 

(electronics, computers, office electronics, furniture, building material, sports equipment 

and other items) by individuals.  POS loans are thus considered special purpose loans.  In 

addition, the Group uses POS loans as an efficient tool to acquire customers to whom the 

Group can then cross-sell additional finance products. POS loans are offered through 

point of sale locations established in retail stores pursuant to agreements entered into 

between the Group and retailers. The Group aims to offer a “one-stop shop” service to 

customers who visit retail stores to purchase consumer goods. POS loans are provided 

with minimum documentation from the customer and the Group relies on its advanced 

risk management systems to ensure that POS loans are provided only to persons who 

meet certain credit criteria. 

b) Cash Loans 

Cash loans are offered in the majority of countries in which the Group operates. 

Cash loans are not conditional on the purchase of goods or services and can be used for 

any purpose. Compared to POS loans, cash loans have longer terms and higher principal 

amounts. The Group is increasingly focused on the cash loan market due to its significant 

size and much greater capacity for growth than on the POS loan market and because of 

the Group’s strategy aiming at the diversification of its loan portfolio. 

The Group relies on two principal ways of distributing cash loans: cross-selling to 

the Group’s existing POS customers with good credit history and direct origination to new 

customers primarily via the Group’s branch network/ POS’s/ post offices and via sales by 

phone and the Internet.   

c) Revolving Loans and Credit Cards 

Revolving loans, which provide a line of credit to customers up to the approved 

credit limit, are typically offered to existing Home Credit customers who prefer to have 

the same regular monthly payment (unlike credit cards where the payment varies on a 

month by month basis) and who value the flexibility of a card. Revolving loans are 

usually sold through direct marketing channels and bank branches. 

Credit cards allow money to be borrowed or products and services to be bought on 

credit, repeatedly, up to the approved credit limit and use benefits of a grace period, 

loyalty scheme, etc. (subject to local conditions). Credit cards are typically offered to 

existing Home Credit customers who have built a relationship with the company through 
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POS or cash loans and have made successful loan repayments. New customers can also 

use the advantages of credit cards and apply through a variety of different sales channels 

as well. Typical distribution channels include bank branches, direct marketing, 

telemarketing, external call centres, internet applications, brokers, partner organizations 

(e.g., insurance companies) and POS’s. 

d) Car Loans 

Car loans provide customers with the financing of cars. The loan is typically a 3-4 

year product issued at car dealerships and collateralised by the security ownership 

transfer of the financed car. 

e) Insurance 

To complement its consumer lending products, the Group makes insurance 

products available to customers in each jurisdiction in which it operates, such as life 

insurance, income protection insurance, providing a replacement income if the customer 

becomes unable to work due to an accident or sickness resulting in total disability, and 

other insurance products including goods insurance and insurance covering debit card 

usage (e.g., loss of the card). The Group cooperates with various insurance companies 

and in 2013 it acquired 100% stakes in Russian and Belarussian insurance companies.  

f) Deposits 

With its banking licences in Russia, Belarus and Kazakhstan, the Group is able to 

utilise its branch network to raise retail deposits in order to support lending growth and 

diversify its funding base. Although the Group offers both retail and corporate deposits, 

the Group’s main focus is on retail deposits. To increase market share, the Group offers 

competitive interest rates and places a significant emphasis on customer service. In 

Russia, Belarus and Kazakhstan, the Group participates in the national deposit insurance 

systems established by the governments to reduce the risk of sudden deposit outflows 

and provide stability for depositors. 

g) Current accounts 

Comprehensive current accounts for individuals were initially introduced by the 

Group in Russia in 2009. They allow customers to manage their deposits and loan 

products more efficiently. Current accounts provide the Group with the opportunity to 

effectively identify the needs and behaviour of its clients and thus offer a more tailored 

service and the most appropriate well selected products. Customers can open and 

manage their accounts using Home Credit branches as well as via the internet banking 

application (available in selected countries).  
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The Group’s operations are managed through a centralised risk management and 

IT system featuring an automated underwriting system with dynamic scoring and pricing 

as well as continuous lifecycle risk assessment. The Group’s scoring system is specifically 

designed to optimise profit through finding the right balance between sales, pricing and 

risk.  This system enables the Group to actively manage its risk and optimise risk pricing 

on a mass scale. The Group also benefits from an extensive proprietary customer 

database, which covers among others around one third of all households in Russia, in the 

Czech Republic and in Kazakhstan and one fifth of all households in Belarus. The Group 

utilises multi-stage pre-collection and collection procedures to enhance collection of 

loans. The procedures aim to optimise the collection of current and overdue loans and 

vary depending on the specific risk group each customer is assigned to.  

The collection procedures are further described in the appendix “Home Credit B.V. 

Consolidated Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013” on page 33 in 

section – 4. Financial Risk Management. 

1.4. Solvency of the Company 

Dividend income represents the Company´s main income source. Therefore, the 

Company´s solvency largely depends on the business performance of its subsidiaries. 

At 31 December 2013 the authorised share capital of the Company comprised 

1,250,000,000 ordinary registered shares having a par value of EUR 0.57 each, of which 

1,156,174,806 shares were issued and fully paid. All issued shares have equal voting 

rights. 

As of 31 December 2013 the owner of 1,001,524,864 shares was PPF Group N.V., 

a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, with its 

registered office in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, and address at Amsterdam, 

Strawinskylaan 933, 1077 XX, the Netherlands, registered in the Dutch Commercial 

Register under number 33264887. The remaining 154,649,942 shares were held by 

EMMA OMEGA LTD, a company established and existing under the laws of Cyprus with its 

registered office at: Esperidon 12, fourth floor, 1087 Nicosia, Cyprus, under registration 

number HE 319479.  
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1.5. History and development of the Company  

The Group started its business in 1997 upon the acquisition of the legal 

predecessor of Home Credit a.s., the legal entity that now operates the Home Credit 

business in the Czech Republic. Following the acquisition, the Home Credit business was 

developed primarily in the Czech Republic and Slovakia within the group of Ceska 

Pojistovna a.s., an affiliate of PPF at the time. Subsequently, due to business and 

territorial expansion, the activities of Home Credit were separated from the activities of 

Ceska Pojistovna a.s. by a series of corporate restructurings. HCBV was incorporated in 

the Netherlands in 1999 under Dutch law and since then it has served as the holding 

company of a number of subsidiaries. Through the years, the Group has expanded in the 

CEE and Asia regions through a combination of greenfield operations and a number of 

acquisitions of licenses or operating companies. 

The following list sets out the key milestones of the Group since its establishment 

in 1997: 

1997 The Group was established in the Czech Republic 

1999 The Group launched operations in Slovakia 

2002 Entry into Russia via the acquisition of Innovation Bank Technopolis 

2005 Entry into Kazakhstan through a greenfield strategy via Home Credit 

Kazakhstan (JSC). 

2006 Entry into the Ukraine via the acquisition of two local banks 

2007 Entry into Belarus through the acquisition of a controlling stake in 

OJSC Lorobank 

2008 The Group acquired a 9.99% interest in Home Credit Bank JSC 

(Kazakhstan) 

2011 Exit from Ukraine via the 100% sale of PJSC “Home Credit Bank” (Ukraine) 

to Platinum Bank on 31 January 2011 

In 2011 the Group entered into a call option agreement enabling it to 

purchase the remaining 90.01% stake in Home Credit Bank JSC 

(Kazakhstan) from its current shareholder. However, due to regulatory 

uncertainties which arose in connection with changes to the banking 

legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the ability of the Group to meet 

the conditions required to exercise the option was remote. 
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2012 In July 2012 the Group purchased a 100% share in HC Asia N.V., a holding 

entity incorporated in the Netherlands which held equity stakes in 

consumer finance companies in China and India. 

In December 2012 a change in the banking legislation of the Republic of 

Kazakhstan took place which enabled the Group to meet the conditions 

required to exercise the option to purchase the remaining 90.01% stake in 

Home Credit Bank JSC (Kazakhstan) referred to above. Therefore, as at 

31 December 2012 the Group exercised control over Home Credit Bank JSC 

(Kazakhstan). 

2013 In January 2013 the Group became the 100% owner of Home Credit Bank 

JSC (Kazakhstan) following the exercise of the option referred to above. 

In January 2013 the Group entered into share purchase agreements 

whereby it would acquire equity stakes in a number of insurance companies 

operating in the CIS region. The transactions were settled in March 2013. 

In February 2013 the Group launched operation in Indonesia. 

In September 2013 the shareholder structure of the Group was changed 

(86.62% PPF Group N.V., 13.38% EMMA OMEGA LTD). 

In October 2013 the Group launched operation in Philippines. 
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1.6. Most important events in 2013 

In January 2013 the Company sold its 9.99% share in Home Credit Bank JSC, 

which represents Home Credit operations in Kazakhstan, to its subsidiary Home Credit 

and Finance Bank LLC. 

In January 2013 the Company´s subsidiary Home Credit and Finance Bank LLC 

exercised a call option to purchase the remaining 90.01% equity stake in Home Credit 

Bank JSC from a third party and became the 100% owner of Home Credit Bank JSC. 

In January 2013 the Group entered into a series of transactions whereby it 

acquired certain insurance operations in the CIS region. On 28 March 2013 the 

transactions were settled, and the following subsidiaries were acquired: 

 Generali (FICJSC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance (FICJSC)) 

 Generali PPF General Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF General 

Insurance (LLC) and then to Home Credit Insurance (LLC)) 

 Generali PPF Insurance (PSC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance (PSC)) 

 Generali PPF Life Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Life Insurance 

(LLC)) 

In January 2013 the Company´s sole shareholder resolved to increase the 

Company´s share premium by TEUR 70,000. The contribution is payable upon earlier of 

the fulfillment of the conditions for the completion of the purchase of PPF Vietnam 

Finance Company LLC or 31 December 2015. The increase in the share premium has not 

been recorded in equity since the conditions related to purchase of PPF Vietnam have not 

been met.  

In February 2013 the Company recognised dividend income of TCZK 400,000 

(TEUR 15,498) from its subsidiary Home Credit a.s. 

In March and September 2013 the Company recognised dividend income of TRUB 

5,760,597 (TEUR 138,122) in total from its subsidiary Home Credit and Finance Bank LLC 

of which TRUB 288,029 (TEUR 6,906) was paid as withholding tax.  

In March 2013 the Company recognised dividend income of TEUR 17,758 from its 

subsidiary Home Credit Slovakia, a.s. 

In April 2013 the Group completed the sale of PPF Life Insurance (LLC) to the 

Group’s parent company. 

In September 2013 EMMA OMEGA LTD completed the acquisition of a 13.38% 

stake in the Company from PPF Group N.V.  

In September 2013 the Company recognised dividend income of TCZK 63,957 

(TEUR 2,485) from its subsidiary Home Credit International a.s. 

In 2013 several reductions of the Company´s share premium in a total amount of 

TEUR 216,592 took place.  
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In September 2013 the share premium of the Company was increased by TEUR 

97,000. 

In 2013 the Company increased the share premium of its subsidiary HC Asia N.V. 

cumulatively by TEUR 91,250. 

In 2013 several loan tranches and repayments were provided to the parent 

company. The outstanding loan principal amount provided to PPF Group N.V. as at 

31 December 2013 was TEUR 83,463. 

1.7. Subsequent events 

In February 2014 the Company recognised dividend income of TCZK 500,000 

(TEUR 18,268) from its subsidiary Home Credit a.s.  

In February 2014 the Company recognised dividend income of TEUR 18,000 from 

its subsidiary Home Credit Slovakia, a.s. 

In 2014 until the reporting date the Company has increased the share premium of 

its subsidiary HC Asia N.V. by TEUR 22,700 cumulatively. 

In April 2014, the Company concluded agreement on sale of PPF Insurance (PSC).  

1.8. Business policy and strategy in 2014 

In 2014, HCBV will continue to manage and finance its holdings carefully, use its 

capital in a disciplined way and continue to pursue both organic growth and to develop 

new operations.  

The Group’s focus will be on managing the business for the future against an 

uncertain economic backdrop, aiming to maintain a diversified funding base and pursue 

cost-effectiveness whilst retaining a flexible approach in order to respond effectively to 

any macroeconomic changes as they happen. In Russia, the objective will be to protect 

the success in retail banking via calibrated response to the new regulatory measures of 

the Central Bank of Russia, targeted risk management initiatives and tight productivity 

management, including streamlining of Home Credit’s distribution network. In the Czech 

Republic and Slovakia, the aim will be to defend market position and maintain profit 

levels of the current business model as well as leveraging the Czech Republic as an 

innovation laboratory for the Group. In Belarus, the goal is to strengthen the market 

position both in consumer loans and deposits and to expand the branch network while 

rigorously managing costs in order to ensure a return on investment for its shareholders. 

In Kazakhstan, the Group will continue to expand and open new branches with a focus on 

pursuing an increase in customer deposits and cash loans. In China we shall focus on fast 

and cost-conscious expansion of our distribution network while significantly reinforcing 

our risk management and compliance capacities to support the growth. In other Asian 

countries, where the business successfully started recently, we shall continue to expand 
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the distribution network beyond the initial geographic reach and further expand the 

organization and processes in key functions to support the business growth. In 2014, the 

Group will strive to consolidate the remaining Home Credit-branded assets in China and 

Vietnam into the Group (subject to obtaining regulatory approvals). 
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2. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

2.1. The Group 

The Company is a holding company of the companies that operate in the Czech 

Republic, the Slovak Republic, the Russian Federation, Belarus, Kazakhstan, China, India, 

Indonesia and Philippines. 

The following text contains information on companies which are important in 

terms of the business activities of the Group. 

The extent of the information on individual companies is determined by the 

significance which the relevant company has within the Group’s business. 

The Company’s ultimate controlling entity is PPF Group N.V. (the Netherlands). As 

of 31 December 2013, the ultimate owners of PPF Group N.V., were Mr. Petr Kellner with 

a participation interest of 98.94%, Mr. Ladislav Bartoníček, with an interest of 0.53% and 

Mr. Jean-Pascal Duvieusart with an interest of 0.53%. 

 As of 31 December 2013, the Company was owned directly by PPF Group N.V. 

(86.62%) and by EMMA OMEGA LTD (13.38%).  
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Organisation Chart (simplified) – key companies as at 

31 December 2013  
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The chart comprises the most important companies of the Group. 
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2.2. Home Credit a.s., Czech Republic 

Home Credit a.s., is registered in Brno, Moravské náměstí 249/8, district of Brno-

City, Post Code: 602 00, Company No. 269 78 636. The registered capital of the 

company is CZK 300 million.  

Home Credit a.s., focuses on the provision of consumer financing to private 

individual customers in the Czech Republic. The main products offered by this company 

are POS loans, revolving loans, car loans and cash loans.  

2.3. Home Credit Slovakia, a.s., Slovak Republic 

Home Credit Slovakia, a.s., is registered in Piešťany, Teplická 7434/147, Post 

Code: 921 22, the Slovak Republic, Company No. 362 34 176. The registered capital of 

the company is EUR 18,821 thousand.  

The main activity of this company is the provision of financing through POS loans, 

cash loans, revolving loans and car loans in the Slovak Republic.  

2.4. Home Credit and Finance Bank LLC, Russian Federation 

Home Credit and Finance Bank LLC is registered at Moscow, 8/1 Pravda str., Post 

Code: 125040, the Russian Federation, Company No. 1027700280937. The registered 

capital of the company is RUB 4,173 million.  

The products offered by the company include POS loans, cash loans, credit card 

loans, current and savings accounts, retail deposits and debit cards to retail customers in 

Russia.  The company also offers limited corporate banking services such as lending, 

deposit taking and payroll services to some of its retail partners. 

2.5. OJSC Home Credit Bank, Belarus 

OJSC Home Credit Bank is registered in Minsk, 129 Odoevskogo str., Post Code: 

220 018, Belarus, Company No. 807000056. The registered capital of the company is 

BYR 144,787 million.  

The principal activity of the Bank is the provision of consumer financing (which 

includes POS loans, cash loans and revolving loans) as well as taking retail deposits in 

the Republic of Belarus. 
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2.6. Home Credit and Finance Bank (SB JSC), Kazakhstan 

Home Credit and Finance Bank (SB JSC) (formerly Home Credit Bank JSC) is 

registered in Almaty, 248 Furmanov Str., Post Code: 050059, Kazakhstan, Company No. 

513-1900-AO(IU). The registered capital of the company is KZT 5,197 million. 

Home Credit and Finance Bank (SB JSC) provides a comprehensive range of 

consumer lending (which includes POS loans, cash loans and credit card loans) and 

deposit products and is active in all major cities across the country through partner 

networks (POS), KazPost offices and through the bank's own branches.  

2.7. Guangdong Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., 

Ltd., China 

Guangdong Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., is registered in H-K 

Room, 12F, East Plaza, No.417 Huanshi East Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, 

Guangdong Province, China, Company No. 76732894-1. The registered capital of the 

company is CNY 500,000 thousand. 

The main activity of this company is the provision of guarantee on POS loans, 

cash loans, car loans and motorbike loans to retail customers in China. 

2.8. Sichuan Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., China 

Sichuan Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., is registered in 9F, No. 1, 

Fuxing Road, Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, China, Company No. 

66046758-9. The registered capital of the company is USD 16,000 thousand. 

The main activity of this company is the provision of guarantee on POS loans, 

cash loans, car loans and motorbike loans to retail customers in China. 
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2.9. Shenzhen Home Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd., China 

Shenzhen Home Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd., is registered in Unit 1, 10F, Duty Free 

Building, Yitian Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, China, Company No. 66417425-7. The 

registered capital of the company is USD 16,000 thousand. 

The main activity of this company is the provision of guarantee on POS loans, 

cash loans, car loans and motorbike loans to retail customers in China. 

2.10. Shenzhen Home Credit Financial Service Co., Ltd., China 

Shenzhen Home Credit Financial Service Co., Ltd., is registered in Unit 2-8 of 

10th, 11th, and 12th floors, Duty Free Building, Yitian Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, 

China, Company No. 79663852-7. The registered capital of the company is USD 190,000 

thousand. 

The main activity of this company is to provide customer service in relation to 

consumer financing in China. 

2.11. Home Credit India Finance Private Limited, India 

Rajshree Auto Finance Private Limited is registered in Tower C, DLF Infinity 

Towers, DLF Cyber City Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122002, India, Company No. 

U65910HR1997PTC047448. The registered capital of the company is INR 1,000 million. 

The main activity of this company is the provision of POS loans to retail customers 

in India.  

2.12. PT. Home Credit Indonesia, Indonesia 

PT. Home Credit Indonesia is registered in Jl. Kebon Sirih No. 63, Jakarta Pusat, 

Indonesia, Company No. NPWP 03.193.870.7-021.000. The registered capital of the 

company is IDR 240,000 million. 

The main activity of this company is the provision of POS loans to retail customers 

in Indonesia.  
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2.13. HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc., Philippines 

HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc. is registered in Union Bank Plaza, Meralco 

Ave. cor. Onyx Road, Ortigas Central Business District, Pasig City, Philippines, Company 

No. CS201301354. The registered capital of the company is PHP 320,000 thousands.  

The main activity of this company is the provision of POS loans to retail customers 

in Philippines.  

2.14. Home Credit International a.s., Czech Republic 

Home Credit International a.s., Company No. 601 92 666, has its registered office 

at Prague 6, Evropská 2690/17, Post Code: 160 41, Czech Republic. The registered 

capital of the company is CZK 160 million.  

This company conducts business in the area of data processing, databank service, 

administration of networks, provision of software and consulting in the area of hardware 

and software and its main activity is the provision of core business operations for the 

IS/IT system infrastructure as well as providing advisory services to the above-

mentioned companies. 

2.15. Home Credit Asia Limited, Hong Kong 

Home Credit Asia Limited is registered in 36/F, Tower Two, Times Square, 1 

Matheson Street, CAUSEWAY BAY, Hong Kong. The registered capital of the company is 

USD 475,000 thousand. 

This company is primarily a holding and financing company consolidating selected 

Chinese and Hong Kong operations of the Home Credit Group. It also serves as a 

management (head-office) company providing shareholder and consultancy services to 

the Home Credit Group businesses operating in Asian markets.  

2.16. PPF Insurance PSC, Russian Federation 

PPF Insurance PSC is registered in 4 th Lesnoi Lane 4, 125047 Moscow, Russian 

Federation. The registered capital of the company is RUB 300.3 million. 

 The company operates under NL licence C № 1207 78 with main focus on motor 

insurance although it administrates also the endowment portfolio, which is in run off 

status. The Company also has a portfolio of life insurance contracts signed before 2008 

year; there are no new life insurance contracts. 
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2.17. Home Credit Insurance LLC, Russian Federation 

Home Credit Insurance LLC is registered in 4 th Lesnoi Lane 4, 125047 Moscow, 

Russian Federation. The registered capital of the company is RUB 120 million.  

The company operates under NL license C № 3507 77 with focus on 

bancassurance provided mainly to the clients of Home Credit and Finance Bank LLC. 

The Company concentrates not only on providing insurance to POS and Cash loans 

borrowers (personal accident, health and job-loss insurance), but also provides 

standalone products, which cover accident and financial risks. The Company also 

administrates the portfolio of medical insurance, property and cargo insurance. The 

company has no own branches and works only with partners (banks). 

2.18. PPF Insurance FICJSC, Belarus 

PPF Insurance FICJSC is registered in Pobediteley Ave, 59, Minsk, 220035, 

Belarus. The registered capital of the company is BYR 6.9 million.  

The company operates under NL license with main focus on bancassurance 

provided not only to the clients of OJSC Home Credit Bank but also of Idea Bank, BPS-

Sberbank and others.  The main activity of this company is the provision of insurance 

services to POS and cash loan borrowers (personal accident, health and job-loss 

insurance).  The company has no own branches and works only with partners (banks). 

2.19. Ownership interests of the Company  

The detailed specifications of the consolidated subsidiaries are listed in the 

appendix “Home Credit B.V., Consolidated Annual Accounts for the year ended 

31 December 2013” on page 12 and 13 in section – 1. Description of the Group.  
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3. MANAGING AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 

The strategic management of individual Group companies is overseen by the 

Board of Directors and a group of top managers. The centralisation of some of its 

functions helps to increase the efficiency of the Group's expansion, and facilitates the 

sharing of knowledge and expertise in all markets where the Group is present. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic management and business 

affairs of the Group, which includes financial accounting and controls, capital and risk 

management, and the principal operating activities of the Group subsidiaries. 

The activity of the Board of Directors is supported in its decision-making by 

Strategy, Operating, HR, Government Relations and PR Committees made up by Home 

Credit Group’s top managers. At their regular meetings (occurring at least on a monthly 

basis), the committees review day-to-day developments within individual businesses and 

respective areas of their focus, discuss aspects of the Group strategy and formulate 

recommendations for the Board of Directors. 

 

Board of Directors 

Jiří Šmejc Chairman  

(i) Jan Cornelis Jansen (b) Vice-chairman (c)  

(i) Rudolf Bosveld (d) Member  (e)  

(i) Pavel Horák (f) Member (g)  

(i) Jean-Pascal Duvieusart (h) Member  (i)  

(i) Mel Gerard Carvill (j) Member  (k)  
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3.1. Mr. Jiří Šmejc 

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Jiří Šmejc became Chairman of the Board of Directors of Home Credit B.V. and 

CEO of Home Credit Group in September 2012. Mr. Šmejc joined PPF Group in 2004 and 

became its shareholder in 2005. Among other positions, he has been a member of the 

Board of Directors of Generali PPF Holding B.V. since January 2008. He went into 

business in 1992 and in 1993 he became the Executive Officer and Director of PUPP 

Consulting s.r.o. In 1995 he served as Sales Director at Middle Europe Finance s.r.o., a 

securities trader focusing on acquisitions. He was a 34% owner of the TV NOVA Group till 

the end of 2004. Jiří Šmejc graduated from Charles University, Prague, Faculty of 

Mathematics and Physics, with a master degree in mathematical economics. 

3.2. Mr. Jan Cornelis Jansen 

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Jan Cornelis Jansen became Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of Home 

Credit B.V. in October 2012 after several years as legal counsel and company secretary 

for PPF Group. He joined PPF Group in 2007, after spending three years at De Hoge 

Dennen Holding as legal counsel and company secretary for social investment funds. 

Prior to this, he held legal positions within various companies. Mr. Jansen holds an LL.M 

in Dutch Law, specialising in economic, public and business law, from the Universiteit 

Utrecht. He also has two post-graduate qualifications in company & corporate law, and 

employment law from the Grotius Academie (Nijmegen) and Vrije Universiteit Law 

Academy (Amsterdam) respectively. 

3.3. Mr. Jean-Pascal Duvieusart 

Member of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Jean-Pascal Duvieusart has been a shareholder of PPF Group since 2010 and 

became a member of the Home Credit B.V. Board of Directors in October 2012. He joined 

McKinsey in 1992, working initially in Brussels and New York and later in Central Europe. 

He was a Managing Partner at McKinsey Prague between 1999 and 2005, and then took 

the reins of McKinsey's business throughout the CIS and Central European region. He has 

worked as an advisor to banks, insurers and various industrial companies in Russia, the 

Czech Republic, Slovakia, Hungary, Poland and Romania. He has an MBA from the 

University of Chicago and a degree in Commercial Engineering from the Catholic 

University of Louvain, Belgium. 
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3.4. Mr. Mel Gerard Carvill 

Member of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Mr. Carvill is President and co-founder of PPF Partners – the PPF Group-backed 

international private equity firm focused on Emerging Europe and CIS. He has been a 

member of PPF Group's top executive team since 2009 and a member of the Board of 

Directors of Home Credit B.V., since May 2012. 

Before joining PPF Group, Mr. Carvill was Deputy General Manager of Assicurazioni 

Generali. As the company's Head of Western Europe, the Americas, and the Middle East, 

he was responsible for the Group's M&A activities as well as for Research and Corporate 

Development and International Regulatory Affairs. He worked with the Generali Group for 

23 years holding various accounting, technical and general management positions, and 

joined the Head Office in 2000. Mr. Carvill was responsible for transactions amounting to 

over EUR 10 billion during his time at Generali. He is a Fellow of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an Associate of the Chartered Insurance 

Institute and a Fellow of the UK's Securities & Investment Institute. 

3.5. Mr. Pavel Horák 

Member of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Before joining Home Credit B.V., as a member of the Board of Directors of Home 

Credit B.V., and the Group’s CFO in October 2012, Pavel Horák had been Chief Financial 

Officer of PPF Group since 2006. Mr. Horák gained experience in financial management as 

an auditor at Deloitte & Touche, and later during his tenure as CFO of TV NOVA from 

2001 to 2006. He is a Chartered Certified Accountant and a member of the Association of 

Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA, UK). He is a graduate of the Faculty of 

Economics of Masaryk University in Brno and the Faculty of Finance of the University of 

Economics in Prague. 
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3.6. Mr. Rudolf Bosveld 

Member of the Board of Directors, Home Credit B.V. 

Rudolf Bosveld, a member of the Board of Directors of Home Credit B.V., since 

October 2012, is also a member of the PPF Group N.V., Board of Directors with more 

than 20 years of experience in financial services and financial markets. He has held many 

top executive positions in the financial sector, including that of Executive Director for 

Corporate Finance and Capital Markets at MeesPierson N.V., Director for Corporate 

Development, Mergers and Acquisitions at Nuon, and Managing Director of Rabobank 

International. He is a graduate of the Erasmus University in Rotterdam, where he was 

awarded a Master's degree in Management specialising in corporate finance. 

3.7. Conflicts of interest 

The Company declares that it is not aware of any conflicts of interest between the 

duties of the persons referred to in Articles 3.1-3.6 towards the Company and their 

private interests or other duties.  
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4. MOST SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS 

In 2013, the Group entered into the following significant agreements: 

Parties Subject Matter Date 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

Home Credit and 

Finance Bank LLC 

Loan Facility Agreement  27/3/2013 

Amendment No. 1 to Loan Facility Agreement 25/6/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 25/7/2013 

Amendment No. 2 to Loan Facility Agreement  26/8/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 16/9/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 27/11/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 23/12/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

Home Credit 

International a.s. 

Loan Facility Agreement 10/1/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 15/2/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 25/3/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 10/10/2013 

Loan Facility Agreement 11/10/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

PPF Group N.V. 

Loan Facility Agreement 15/3/2013 

Amendment No. 2 to Loan Facility Agreement 22/4/2013 

Transfer of shares (YU-ID Systems B.V.) 29/4/2013 

Share purchase agreement (sale of PPF Life 

Insurance (LLC)) 

29/4/2013 

Amendment No. 1 to Loan Facility Agreement 19/7/2013 

Amendment No. 3 to Loan Facility Agreement 2/8/2013 

Agreement on Termination of Loan Facility 

Agreement 

7/8/2013 

Amendment No. 4 to Loan Facility Agreement 8/11/2013 
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Rhaskos Finance 

Limited, Septus 

Holding Limited, 

Sylander Capital 

Limited, Talpa Estero 

Limited,Enadoco 

Limited, Astavedo 

Limited 

and 

Česká pojišťovna 

a.s., Česká 

pojišťovna Zdraví, 

a.s., Generali 

Slovensko Poisťovna, 

a.s. 

Share purchase agreement (purchase of 

Generali (FICJSC) (subsequently renamed 

to PPF Insurance (FICJSC))) 

22/1/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

CZI Holdings N.V. 

Share purchase agreement (purchase of 

Generali PPF General Insurance (LLC) 

(subsequently renamed to PPF General 

Insurance (LLC) and then to Home Credit 

Insurance (LLC))) 

21/1/2013 

Share purchase agreement (purchase of 

Generali PPF Insurance (PSC) 

(subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance 

(PSC))) 

21/1/2013 

Share purchase agreement (purchase of 

Generali PPF Life Insurance (LLC) 

(subsequently renamed to PPF Life 

Insurance (LLC))) 

21/1/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

Generali PPF Holding 

B.V. 

Share purchase agreement (purchase of 

YU-ID Systems B.V.) 

21/1/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

EMMA OMEGA LTD 

Loan Facility Agreement 18/9/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

Home Credit a.s. 

Loan Agreement 24/7/2013 

Home Credit B.V. 

 

and 

 

Home Credit 

Slovakia, a.s. 

Loan Agreement 24/7/2013 
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5. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

5.1. Consolidated financial information of the Company 

Consolidated financial information is included in the appendix “Home Credit B.V., 

Consolidated Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013”. 

5.2. Unconsolidated financial information of the Company 

Unconsolidated financial information is included in the appendix “Home Credit 

B.V., Unconsolidated Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013”. 
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6. OTHER INFORMATION 

6.1. Audit fees 

In TEUR 2013 2012 

HC BV   

Statutory audit 226 186 

Other audit services 2 9 

Other services 0 151 

 228 346 

CONSOLIDATED   

Statutory audit 1,424 1,194 

Other audit services 182 62 

Tax advisory 188 44 

Other services 319 357 

 2,113 1,657 

6.2. Monetary and non-monetary income of key management 

personnel 

The overall consolidated monetary and non-monetary income in relation to 

transactions with members of key management personnel in 2013 was EUR 28,058 

thousand (2012: EUR 37,540 thousand).   

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company and key management of 

its subsidiaries are considered the key management of the Group.  
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Monetary and non-monetary income of key management personnel in 2013 

    

In TEUR Total 

Paid by 

Company 

Paid by 

subsidiaries 

Total income of Statutory bodies 24,284 106 24,178 

Monetary 23,330 106 23,224 

for membership in Statutory bodies 13 - 13 

from employment 23,317 106 23,211 

Non-monetary from employment 954 - 954 

    

Total income of Supervisory bodies 995 - 995 

Monetary 890 - 890 

for membership in Supervisory bodies 6 - 6 

from employment 884 - 884 

Non-monetary from employment 105 - 105 

Total income of Other governing bodies 2,779 - 2,779 

Monetary from employment 2,732 - 2,732 

Non-monetary from employment 47 - 47 

TOTAL 28,058 106 27,952 

 

Monetary and non-monetary income of key management personnel in 2012 

    

In TEUR Total 
Paid by 

Company 
Paid by 

subsidiaries 

Total income of Statutory bodies 32,006 2,419 29,587 

Monetary 31,654 2,351 29,303 

for membership in Statutory bodies 13 - 13 

from employment 31,641 2,351 29,290 

Non-monetary from employment 352 68 284 

    

Total income of Supervisory bodies 925 - 925 

Monetary 819 - 819 

for membership in Supervisory bodies 6 - 6 

from employment 813 - 813 

Non-monetary from employment 106 - 106 

Total income of Other governing bodies 4,609 - 4,609 

Monetary from employment 4,609 - 4,609 

TOTAL 37,540 2,419 35,121 
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Monetary income is the total monetary earnings provided by the Company and the 

entities controlled by the Company to the key management personnel, i.e. remuneration 

for membership in statutory bodies and income from employment, including 

remuneration and bonuses. 

Non-monetary income is the total value of all non-monetary income provided by 

the Company and the entities controlled by the Company to the key management 

personnel, i.e. a company car, pension insurance and other benefits. 

6.3. Remuneration principles 

Remuneration of the members of a statutory body under an employment contract 

concluded with the Company is set and reviewed annually by the shareholders. The total 

remuneration consists of a fixed part, variable part and benefits.  

 Fixed part – the basic salary is set in the employment contract and paid monthly. 

 Variable part principles: 

o Performance bonuses are agreed and paid yearly based on the fulfilment of 

evaluation criteria (Key Performance Indicators: KPIs). 

o KPIs are defined by shareholders annually. 

o KPIs usually consist of financial targets (e.g., net profit, costs structure, 

market share) and key development projects (e.g. product development, 

new market acquisitions). 

o KPI evaluation is carried out by shareholders after the close of the financial 

year, based on audited results. 

o Bonus amounts are calculated with respect to individual employment 

contracts (salary) and KPI evaluation. 

o Payments are made after they are approved by the shareholders (general 

meeting), usually at the end of the first quarter of the next year. 

 Long-term bonuses – a program has started for the 2010-2012 period and bonuses 

were paid in 2013 after achieving the three-year target set by the shareholders.  

Since 2010 the program is introduced every year for a new three-year period. 

 Allowances – costs reimbursement related to business activities (e.g., travel).   

Statutory body members are paid a monthly remuneration, which is set by 

shareholders (annual meeting) and paid during their appointment, without other 

conditions applying. 

Remuneration of the members of a statutory body without an employment 

contract is governed by the decision of the shareholders. 
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6.4. Legal, administrative and arbitration proceedings 

As at the date of the publication of this report the Company is not involved in any 

legal, administrative or arbitration proceedings that could have a negative impact on the 

financial situation or business of the Company. 

 

6.5. Information on shares and owners’ rights 

There are no shareholders with special rights. Other rights and obligations relating 

to shares are set out in the Articles of Association of the Company. 

There are no special rules for appointing or discharging members of the Board of 

Directors or changing the Articles of Association of the Company. 

There are no special competences or authorities of members of the Board of 

Directors. 

6.6. Information on other significant contracts 

The Company has not entered into any significant contracts that will enter into 

force, change or expire in the event of change of control of the Company as a result of a 

takeover bid.  

The Company has no policy, based on which the employees or directors are 

eligible to acquire shares of the Company, share options or any other rights to the 

shares, under advantageous conditions. 

6.7. Internal controls 

The most significant risks faced by the Company and its subsidiaries as well as the 

management of the risks are described in Note 4 included in the Appendix “Home Credit 

B.V., Consolidated Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013” and in Note 4 

included in the Appendix “Home Credit B.V., Unconsolidated Annual Accounts for the year 

ended 31 December 2013”. 

The risk related specifically to the financial reporting process is managed through 

a number of internal controls. The Company and its subsidiaries set and update their 

internal policies in accordance with the latest recommendations of the regulatory bodies, 

international professional organizations and auditors. The companies use standard 

internal controls described in a set of internal guidelines. The most significant internal 

controls are as follows: 

- Clear document flow (specific approval limits and responsibilities for individual 

management levels and areas of expertise). 



33 

- Clear accounting workflow, with clearly defined responsibilities and deadlines, 

including strict rules for corrections of accounting entries and clearly tracking 

them. 

- Limited access to accounting system and reporting tools. 

- International Financial Reporting Standards as a base for both external and 

internal reporting of the whole Group. This simplifies the reconciliations between 

more detailed internal reports and reports for external use and also ensures the 

greater reliability of external reports. 

- Accounting policies and measurement methods of individual assets and liabilities 

defined in the “Reporting and Accounting Manual”, which is valid for the whole PPF 

Group. Specific issues and more details are described in the “Reporting Manual” of 

the Group. 

- Regular reporting of individual companies to the Chief Financial Officer of the 

Group and his team. The financial reports of individual companies are overseen by 

the Group finance team and submitted to the Group Executive Committee on a 

monthly basis. 

- The Group finance team coordinates accounting methods and policies used across 

the whole Group. 

Individual IFRS financial statements of the Company are prepared and audited on 

an annual basis. Consolidated IFRS financial statements of the Company are prepared on 

a quarterly basis. Semi-annual and annual consolidated financial statements of the 

Company are subject to an auditor’s review and audit respectively. 

Significant Home Credit B.V.´s subsidiaries prepare annual financial statements, 

which are audited. In addition, certain subsidiaries prepare unaudited interim financial 

statements on a quarterly basis. 
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6.8. Decision-making process of statutory and supervisory 

bodies 

Management decisions of the Company’s Board of Directors consisting of the 

persons referred to in Articles 3.1-3.6 may be made at meetings of the Board at which at 

least three Directors are present by an absolute majority of the votes cast. The decisions 

can also be taken outside meetings accordingly, provided that all Directors are able to 

take note of the proposal and have no objection to adopting it in such a manner.   The 

Company does not have a supervisory board.  

 

6.9. Codes of corporate governance 

The Company has not adopted a code of corporate governance because it is not 

required to do so by the applicable legal regulations. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 

Directors’ Reports are included in the Appendix “Home Credit B.V., Consolidated 

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013” in the “Directors´ Report” 

section and in the Appendix “Home Credit B.V., Unconsolidated Annual Accounts for the 

year ended 31 December 2013” in the “Directors´ Report” section. 
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Directors' Report 
Description of the Company 

Home Credit B.V. 
Date of incorporation: 
Registered office: 
Identification number: 
Authorised capital: 
Issued capital: 
Paid up capital: 
Principal business: 

General information 

28 December 1999 
Netherlands, Strawinskylaan 933, I 077XX Amsterdam 
34126597 
EUR 712,500,000 
EUR659,019,639 
EUR 659,019,639 
Holding company activities and financing thereof 

Home Credit B. V. 
Directors · Report 

Home Credit ll.V. ('HCBV') is the owner of consumer finance providers ('the Group '). There are both fully 
licensed banks and non-banking entities within the Group. The principal activities ofHCBV are: (a) the holding of 
equity stakes in consumer finance companies in the countries of Central and Eastern Europe (CEE) and Asia and 
(b) the securing of the refinancing for these companies from the market and from the ult imate parent company. 

Companies that arc held by HCBV provide in-store lending to el igible mass retail customers, including first
time borrowers, and are the leading providers of such services in most countries in which they operate. They 
provide non-cash, non-collateralised loans for purchases of durable goods at the point of sale ("POS loans") and, 
in the majority of countries in which they operate, they also offer credit cards and/or cash loans. In Russia, Belarus 
and Kazakhstan the Group also offers selected retail banking services such as deposit accounts. As at 31 
December 20 13, the Group had 7.7 million active customers across its operations: the Czech Republic (operational 
since 1997), Slovakia (1999), the Russian Federation (2002), Kazakhstan (2005), Belarus (2007), China (2007), 
India (20 12), Indonesia (20 13), and the Philippines (20 13). 

PPF Group N.V. (hereinafter "PPF") is the majority shareholder (86.62%) of HCBV. PPF invests in multiple 
market segments and is present in sectors such as banking and financial services, telecommunications, insurance, 
real estate, energy, metal mining, agriculture, retail and biotechnology. PPF's reach spans from Central and 
Eastern Europe to Russia and across Asia. PPF Group owns assets of EUR 22.1 billion (as at 30 June 20 13). 
Founded in 199 1, PPF is a regulated financial conglomerate (as defined by the EU Directive) headquartered in the 
Netherlands. EMMA OMEGA LTD, an investment holding company based in Cyprus ultimately owned by Mr. 
Jii'i Smejc, completed the acquisition of a 13.38% stake in HCBV in September 2013. 

For more information, visit www.ppf.eu. 

While the economic environment remained challenging and the regulatory backdrop underwent a number of 
changes in Europe, which pat1icularly affected the Group's business in Russia, 2013 was another successful and 
profitable year for the Group. The business continued to invest, enhancing its offering through product innovation, 
and it originated more new loans in broader defined customer segments. The adverse market impact was pat1ly 
compensated by the Group's success in diversifying its geographic operations through organic growth. The Group 
expanded its footprint in high potential markets in Asia, adding Indonesia and the Philippines to operations in 
China and India during 2013. The Home Credit franchise in Asia has been increasing its contribution to the profit 
of the Group through expansion into new provinces and gro\\1h of outlets. The Group retained its market share 
and profitability in the highly competi tive markets of the Czech Republic and Slovakia. In Belarus, the Group's 
efforts have produced a successful conversion of the business back to profitability despite a challenging, high 
inflationary economic situation. 

In January 20 13 the Group exercised its option to purchase a maJonty stake in Home Credit Bank JSC 
(Kazakhstan) and became the I 00% owner of the bank (subsequently renamed to Home Credit and Finance Bank 
(SB JSC)). In 2013, HCBV acquired and consolidated cet1ain insurance companies in Russia and Belarus. For 
detailed information see Note I of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Home Credit B. 1'. 
Directors ' Report 

The Group remains focused on building long-term relationships with its customers by offering products that best 
suit their needs while maintaining a solid level of cost effi ciency and prudent risk management. Our business 
philosophy promotes financial inclusion: we often work with clients who have little to no credit history, and who 
are underserved by traditional banks. We enable them to take advantage of all the benefits that fi nancial services 
can bring them. Our relationship with our clients is built on fairness, transparency and mutual trust. As they build 
up a solid credit history we provide them with more sophisticated products to suit their gradually growing needs 
and capabilities. Along the way, we help our clients learn how to manage their finances and develop financial 
literacy. This is what responsible lending means to us. 

Key Results 

In 201 3 the net loan portfolio grew by 9.8% to EUR 7,171 million: the value of new loans granted rose 20.4% to 
EUR 9,741 million and the number of distribution points increased by 27% to 139,6 12. Operating income for 2013 
reflected this growth across the business rising by 43.4% to EUR 2,542 million. The operating income 
improvement came predominantly from Russia, Kazakhstan and China. General administrative expenses and other 
operating expenses rose by 4 I .2% as distribution points increased and the number of Group employees grew to 
51.4 thousand. The Group now reaches its 7.7 million active customers through 135,459 POS and loan offices, 
I ,328 bank branches, 2,825 post oflices and I ,440 ATMs. Overall, net profi t decreased by 35.8% to EUR 324 
million. The decline was predominantly driven by increased impairment losses and the tough market conditions 
experienced in Russia, the impact of which the Group is currently working to mitigate by developing new products 
and expanding the Home Credit brand presence in new ways. Given the negative market backdrop in Russia, there 
was an impact on the Non-Performing Loan (NPL) ratio (gross loans overdue by more than 90 days to total gross 
loans) which rose to 12.2% (7.6% as at 3 I December 20 12). Nonetheless, in line with the Group 's conservative 
approach to risk management, the Group NPL coverage ratio (total allowance for impairment to gross non
performing loans) remained stable at 117.0% (20 12: 119%). 

HCBV's continuing focus on maintaining an adequate level of retail deposits in line with its business needs saw 
retail deposits in 201 3 rise 8.1% to EUR 5, I 05 million. As at 3 I December 2013 share of current account balances 
and term deposits on total liabilities was 65.6% (3 I December 201 2: 59.6%). 

Staff development and environmental influence 

In 201 3 the average number of employees reached 44.7 thousand (201 2: 30.6 thousand). 

The impact of the Group's operations on the environment is considered insignificant. 

Composition of the Board of Directors 

The size and composition of the Board of Directors and the combined experience and expertise of their members 
should reflect the best fit for the profile and strategy of the company. This aim for the best fit, in combination with 
the availability of qualifying candidates, has resulted in HCBV currently having a Board of Directors in which all 
six members are male. In order to increase gender diversity on the Board of Directors, in accordance with article 
2:276 section 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, HCBV pays close attention to gender diversity in the process of 
recruiting and appointing new members of the Board ofDirectors. HCBV will retain an active and open attitude as 
regards selecting female candidates. 

Financial instruments and risk management 

The Group's main strategic risk concerns the appropriateness of the selected business model, i.e. market ing, sales 
and risk strategies as well as the resources allocated to support the strategy. Such risks arc mitigated through 
careful selection of the markets and calibrating start-up pilot proj ects on one hand and geographic diversi fication 
on the other hand. The Group is exposed to various risks as a result of its activities, primarily credit risk, liquidity 
risk, market risks (interest rate risk and currency risk), insurance risk and operational risk. 

The Group's primary exposure to credit risk arises fi·om the provision of consumer financing to private customers, 
which is the Group's principal business. Credit risk is managed both at the level of individual Group companies 
and at the Group level. 

Liquidity risk arises from the general funding of the Group 's activities and from the management of its positions. 
The Group has access to a diversified funding base. Funds are raised using a broad range of instruments including 
deposits, debt securities, bank loans, subordinated debt and shareholders' equity. 
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Home Credit B. v: 
Directors· Report 

All financial instruments and positions are subject to market risk: the risk that future changes in market conditions 
may change the value of the instrument. The majority of the Group 's exposure to market risk arises in connection 
with the funding of the Group's operations with liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, and to the extent the 
term structure of interest-bearing assets differs from that ofliabilities. 

The main risk faced by the Group as part of the insurance business is the difference in actual and expected claims 
for insurance benefits and claims. Price risk arises as insurance premiums may not be sufficient to cover futmc 
losses and expenses on insurance contracts. To manage price risk the Group regularly analyses profitability and 
makes appropriate adjustments in pricing and underwriting policies. Reserve deficiency risk arises from the 
uncertainty regarding the development of loss reserves in the future and takes into account the likelihood that 
insurance reserves are insufticient to meet the Group's obligations to policyholders. Managing this risk is 
performed through regular checking of the adequacy ofloss reserves and loss analysis of insurance products. 

Operational risk is the risk of arising fi·om a wide variety of causes associated with the Group' s processes, 
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks 
such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements, financial rep01ting and generally accepted standards 
of corporate behaviour. The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of 
financial losses and damage to the Group' s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control 
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. 

For detailed information on risk management see Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements. 

Future development 

Jn 2014 the Group 's focus will be on managing the business for the sustainable creation of shareholders' value 
against an uncertain macroeconomic backdrop. We will aim to maintain a diversi fied funding base and pursue 
cost-effectiveness whilst retaining a fl exible but disciplined loan origination and distribution approach in order to 
respond effectively to any macroeconomic changes. The Group wi ll focus in particular on Russia, given the 
current local retail banking transition and the challenging regulatory conditions. The overall objective in CEE will 
be to maintain market-leading positions with continued focus on improving efficiency ns well as extending our 
retail banking offer predominantly in Knzakhstan and Belarus. In the high growth regions of Asia we will continue 
to implement the geographical roll-out of our franchise deepening our business penetration to further supp01t the 
global diversification ofthe Home Credit footprint. 
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ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Loans to customers 
Positive fair value of derivative instruments 
Financial assets available-for-sale 
Financial assets held-to-maturity 
Assets classified as held for sale 
Current income tax receivables 
Deferred tax assets 
Investments in associates 
Intangible assets 
Prope1ty and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 
Debt securities issued 
Negative fair value of derivative instruments 
Liabilities classified as held for sale 
Current income tax liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Insurance and other provisions 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

EQUITY 

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company 
Share capital 
Share premium 
Statutory reserves 
Foreign currency translation 
Hedging reserve 
Reserve for business combinations under common control 
Revaluation reserve 
Other reserves 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company 

Non-controlling interests 

Total equity 

Total liabilities and equity 
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Home Credit/J.I'. 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

as at 3 I December 20 I 3 

Note 

8 
9 
10 
I I 
12 

5 

13 
14 
15 
16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
21 
5 

13 
22 
23 
24 

25 
25 
25 
25 
25 
25 
25 
25 

2013 
TEUR 

926,483 
4 10,233 

7,171,284 
18,908 

158,505 
3,440 

14,724 
15,898 
49,710 

3,589 
94,913 

233,267 
212,413 

9,313,367 

5,105,402 
604,42 1 

1,120,915 
17,962 

1,574 
27,287 

5,0 14 
130,335 
511,461 
256,525 

7,780,896 

659,020 
184,377 

11 ,672 
(208,627) 

(73) 
15, 106 

431 
867,649 

1,529,555 

2,916 

1,532,471 

9,313,367 

2012 
TEUR 

1,210,087 
394,271 

6,530,641 
19,590 

70 1,504 
3,667 

2,43 I 
19,605 
2,537 

60,656 
237,258 
244,066 

9,426,313 

4,723,571 
I ,31 0,979 
1, 180,154 

11,435 

29,138 
947 

379,747 
285,743 

7,921,714 

659,020 
303,969 

4,853 
(54,590) 

(97 1) 
15, 106 

462 
473,962 

1,401,811 

102,788 

1,504,599 

9,426,313 



Interest income 
Interest expense 

Net interest income 

Fee and commission income 
Fee and commission expenses 

Net fee :md commission income 

Insurance income 

Net losses on financial assets and liabilities 
Other operating income 

Operating income 

Impairment losses on financial assets 
General administrative expenses 
Other operating expenses 

Operating expenses 

Gains on disposals of associates and subsidiaries 
Share of earnings in associates 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 

Net profit for the year 

Profit attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent company 
Non-controlling interests 

Other comprehensive income which will be subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss: 

Currency translation 
Revaluation (losses)/gains on available-for-sale financial assets 
Revaluation gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets 
transferred to profit or loss 
Cash flow hedge reserve- effective p01iion of changes in fair value 
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
Equity holders of the parent company 
Non-controlling interests 

llome Credit B.V. 
Consolidated Statement ofCompreltensil·e Income 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

Note 

26 
26 

27 
28 

29 

30 
31 

32 
33 
34 

35 

2013 
TEUR 

2,483,490 
(721,006) 

1,762,484 

715,862 
(97,536) 

618,326 

19,975 

(16,422) 
158,107 

2,542,470 

( I, 185,949) 
(844,445) 

(79,926) 

(2,11 0,320) 

2,708 
3,853 

438,711 

(114,274) 

324,437 

326,597 
(2,160) 

324,437 

(153,7 14) 
(8,0 15) 

7,976 

1,123 
(217) 

(152,847) 

171,590 

173,427 
( 1,837) 

171,590 

2012 
TEUR 

1,486,012 
(429,033) 

1,056,979 

654,556 
{57,998) 

596,558 

(6,993) 
126,852 

1,773,396 

(478,428) 
(603,888) 
(50,694) 

(1,133,010) 

1,732 
2,375 

644,493 

(138,8 10} 

505,683 

506,032 
(349) 

505,683 

25,676 
5,124 

(4,203) 

(971) 
(364) 

25,262 

530,945 

531,547 
{602} 

530,945 

The consolidated financial statements as set out on pages 6 to 76 were approved by the Board ofDirectors 
on 10 March 2014. 

PavelH~,~~ M'7PYI"'' 
- 7-



Home Credit B. V. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Attributable to equity holders of the parent company 

Reserve for 
business 

Foreign combinations Non-
Share Share Statutory currency under common Revaluation Hedging Other controlling Total 

capital premium reserves translation control reserve reserve reserves Total interests equity 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Balance as at I January 2013 659,020 303,969 4,853 (54,590) 15,106 462 (971) 473,962 1,401 ,811 102,788 1,504,599 

Shate premium increases - 97,000 - - - - - - 97,000 - 97,000 

Shate premium reductions - (216,592) - - - - - - (216,592) - (216,592) 

Acquisition of non-controlling 
interests - - - - - - 73,759 73,759 (100,759) (27,000) 

Other changes in non-controlling 
interests - - - - - - - 150 ISO 2,724 2,874 

Transfers - - 6.819 - - - - (6.819) 

Total 659,020 184,377 11,672 (54,590) 15,106 462 (971) 541,052 1,356,128 4,753 1,360,881 

Currency translation - - - (154,037) - - - - (154,037) 323 (153,714) 

Revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets, net of tax - - - - - (31) - - (31) - (31 ) 

Effect of hedge accounting, net of 
tax - - - - - - 898 - 898 - 898 

Profit for the yeat - - - - - - - 326.597 326.597 (2.160) 324.437 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year - - - (154,037) - (31) 898 326,597 173,427 (1,837) 171,590 

Total changes - (119,592) 6,819 (154,037) - (31) 898 393,687 127,744 (99,872) 27,872 

Balance as at 31 December 2013 659.020 184.377 11.672 (208,627) 15.106 431 (73) 867.649 1,529.555 2.916 1.532.471 
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Home Credit B.V. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Attributable to equity holders of the parent company 

Reserve for 
business 

Foreign combinations Non-
Share Share Statutory currency under common Revaluation Hedging Other controlling Total 

capital premium reserves translation control reserve reserve reserves Total interest equity 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Balance as at I January 2012 659,020 60,253 3,754 (86,504) - (95) - 194,823 831,251 - 831,251 

Share premium increase - 255,481 - - - - - - 255,481 - 255,481 

Acquisition ofHC Asia, N.Y. - - 29 5,985 15,106 - - (118,949) (97,829) 3,233 (94,596) 

Acquisition of - - - - - - - - - 100,759 100.759 
Home Credit Bank JSC (Note I) 

Acquisition of other non- - - - - - - - 602 602 (602) 
controlling interests 

Dividends paid - (11 ,765) - - - - - (107,476) (119,241) - (119,241) 

Transfers - - 1.070 - - - - (1.070) -
Total 659,020 303,969 4,853 (80,519) 15,106 (95) - (32,070) 870,264 103,390 973,654 

Currency translation - - - 25,929 - - - - 25,929 (253) 25,676 

Revaluation of available-for-sale - - - - - 557 - - 557 - 557 
financial assets, net of tax 

Effect of hedge accounting, net of - - - - - - (971) - (971) - (971) 
tax 

Profit for the year - - - - - - - 506.032 506,032 (349} 505.683 

Total comprehensive income - - - 25,929 - 557 (971) 506,032 531,547 (602) 530,945 
for the year 

Total changes 243,716 1,099 31,914 15,106 557 (971) 279,139 570,560 102,788 673,348 

Balance as at 31 December 2012 659.020 303.969 4.853 (54.590) 15.106 462 (971) 473.962 1.401.811 102.788 1.504.599 
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/lome Credit B. V. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
for the y ear ended J I December 20 I J 

2013 2012 
Note TEUR TEUR 

Opernting activities 
Profit before tax 438,71 1 644,493 
Adjustments for: 

Interest expense 26 72 1,006 429,033 
Net loss on disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets 34 2,023 1,308 
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries and associates (2,708) 
Net unrealized foreign exchange loss 16, 146 1,483 
lmpainnent losses 32 I, 190,425 478,430 
Recognized income from excess of acquired net fair va lue over costs 3 1 (30,45 I) 
Share of earnings in associates (3,853) 
Depreciation and amm1ization 34 73 ,071 49,152 

Net operating cash flow befot·e changes in worldng capital 2,404,370 1,603,899 

Change in due from banks, other financi al institutions and holding (8,456) 
companies (221,284) 
Change in loans to customers ( I ,826,592) (3,448,969) 
Change in positive fair value of derivative instruments 682 16,805 
Change in other assets 144,058 ( 11 2,406) 
Change in held for sale assets/liabilities (3,798) 
Change in current accounts and deposits fi·om customers 374,870 2,782,858 
Change in negative fair value of derivative instruments 6,527 4,0 15 
Change in other liabilities and insurance and other provisions (35,08 1) 110,970 

Cash flows from the operations 1,056,580 735,888 

Interest paid (671,012) (297,023) 
I nco me tax paid (16 1,018) {119,961) 

Cash flows from operating activities 224,550 318,904 

Investing activities 
Proceeds fi'om sale of property, equipment and intangible assets 286 15,313 
Acquisition of property, equipment and intangible assets (135,396) (129,738) 
Proceeds fi·om sale of subsidiaries and associates 3,033 2,209 
Proceeds from available-for-sale financial assets 2,029,774 953,616 
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets (I ,459,488) {1,339,768) 
Acquisition of held-to-maturity financial assets (3,667) 
Acquisition of investment in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (33,34 1} { 165,239) 

Cash flows from/( used in) investin g activities 404,868 {667,274) 

Financing activities 
Increase of capital 255,481 
Share premium reduction (119,592) 
Proceeds fi·om the issue of debt securities 371,5 13 774,567 
Repayment of debt securities issued (311,607) (319,531) 
Proceeds from due to banks and other financial institutions 20,206,342 16,23 1,441 
Repayment of due to banks and other financial institutions (20,932,758) (15,686,426) 
Dividends paid {1 19,24 1} 

Cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (786,1022 1,136,291 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ( 156,684) 787,921 
Cash and cash equivalents as at I January 1,2 10,087 409,961 
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (126,920) 12,205 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 8 926,483 1,210,087 
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1. Description of the Group 

/lome Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Home Credit B.V. (the "Company") was incorporated on 28 December 1999 in the Netherlands. 

Registered office 
Strawinskylaan 933 
I 077 XX Amsterdam 
The Netherlands 

Shareholders 

PPF Group N.Y. 
EMMA OMEGA LTD 

Country of 
incorporation 

Netherlands 
Cyprus 

Ownership interest(%) 
2013 2012 

86.62 
13.38 

100.00 

Following an agreement between PPF Group N.Y. and Mr. Jir-f Smejc, EMMA OMEGA LTD with its 
registered office in Esperidon 12, 41

h floor, 1087 Nicosia, Republic of Cyprus, completed the acquisition 
of a 13.38% stake in Home Credit B.V. on 20 September 2013. EMMA OMEGA LTD is an investment 
holding company ultimately owned by Mr. Jii'i Smejc. 

The transaction has been approved by the respective regulators. 

The ultimate controlling party ofPPF Group N.Y. is Mr. Petr Kellner. 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group") are the 
provision of consumer financing to private individual customers in Central European, Commonwealth of 
Independent States (CIS) and Asian countries as well as deposit taking, saving and current bank account 
service and maintenance, payments and other services. 

Board of Directors 

Jir-f Smejc 
Jan Cornelis Jansen 
Rudolf13osveld 
Pavel Horak 
Jean-Pascal Duvieusart 
Mel Gerard Carvill 

Chairman 
Vice-chairman 
Member 
Member 
Member 
Member 
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1. Description of the Group (continued) 

Consolidated subsidiaries 

Guangdong Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. 
Home Credit Business Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. IJ 

Sichuan Home Credit Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. 
Shenzhen Credis Business Consultation Co., Ltd. 2> 

Shenzhen Home Credit Financial Service Co., Ltd. 
Shenzhen Home Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. 
Redlione (LLC) 
Astavedo Limited 3

> 

Enadoco Limited 3> 

Rhaskos Finance Limited 3> 

Septus Holding Limited 3> 

Sylander Capital Limited 3
> 

Talpa Estero Limited 3> 

Click Credit (LLC) 
Home Credit (JSC) 
Home Credit Advisory Asia (LLC) IJ 
Home Credit International (JSC) 
HC Broker (LLC) 
HC Insurance Services (LLC) 4> 

Home Credit Egypt Trade S.A.E. IJ 

Credis Invest (Hong Kong) Ltd. IJ 

Favour Ocean Ltd. 
Home Credit Asia Limited 
Saint World Ltd. 
Home Credit India Finance Private Limited SJ 

PT. Home Credit Indonesia 
JSC Home Credit Kazakhstan 
Home Credit and Finance Bank (SB JSC) 6l 

Eurasia Capital S.A. 7
l 

Eurasia Structured Finance No. I S.A. IJ 
7
> 

Eurasia Credit Card Company S.A. IJ 
7> 

HCAsiaN.V. 
Home Credit India B.V. 
Home Credit Indonesia B. V. 
Home Credit Africa N.Y. 
HC Philippines Holdings B.V.8

l 

Eurasia Stmctured Finance No.3 B.V. 4
J7l 

HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc. 4> 9l 

Home Credit Bank (OJSC? 
PPF Insurance (FICJSC) 3 

11subsidiaries in the process of liquidation/dercgistration 
21 subsidiary liquidated in 2013 

Home Credit/J.V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for tl1e year ended 31 December 2013 

Country of 
incorporation 

China 
China 
China 
China 
China 
China 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republ ic 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republic 
Egypt 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
Hong Kong 
India 
Indonesia 
Kazakhstan 
Kazakhstan 
Luxemburg 
Luxemburg 
Luxemburg 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Philippines 
Republic of Belarus 
Republic of Belarus 

Ownership interest (%) 
2013 2012 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
70.00 

100.00 
100.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

0.00 
85.59 

100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
97.97 
70.00 

100.00 
9.99 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 

31 subsidiaries acquired in 20 13 in the course of a series of transactions \\hereby the Group acquired certain insurance operations in 
the CIS region 
•> subsidiaries established in 20 13 
51 in June 2013 the Group' s subsidiary Rajshree Auto l'inance Private Limited was renamed to Home Credit India l'inance Private 
Limited 
6> as at 31 December 2012 the Group \\<1S a holder of a call option to purchase the remaining 90.0 I% stake in 
Home Credit !lank (JSC), and control was exercised because of the Group's potential voting rights in Home Credit Bank (JSC); in 
January 20 13 the option was exercised, and the Group became the 100% 0\mer of Home Credit Bank (JSC); the option exercise 
price paid is presented as part of cash flows used in investing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows; in April 20 13 
I lome Credit 13ank (JSC) was renamed to Home Credit and l'inance !lank (SB JSC) 
71 special purpose entities established to facilitate the Group's issues of debt securities and subordinated liabilities 
81 in May 2013 the Group's subsidiary HC Ka7.akh Holdings 13. V. was renamed to HC Phil ippines Holdings D. V. 
9J in August 2013 the Group's subsidiary llomcr liCI lioldings Philippines, Inc. was renamed to IIC Consumer Finance 
Philippines, Inc.; the Group's share on the voting rights in HC Consumer Finance Philippines is 60.00% 
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1. 

Home Cre(lit B. v: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Description of the Group (continued) 

Consolidated subsidiaries Country of incorporation Ownership interest(%) 
2013 2012 

PPF Home Credit IFN S.A. Romania 100.00 100.00 
Home Credit and Finance Bank (LLC) Russian Federation 100.00 100.00 
Financial Innovations (LLC) Russian Federation 100.00 100.00 
Inko Tcchnopolis (LLC) Russian Federation 100.00 100.00 
Bonus Center Operations (LLC) Russian Federation 100.00 100.00 
Home Credit Insurance (LLC) IJ Russian Federation 100.00 
PPF Insurance (PSC) I} Russian Federation 100.00 
HC Finance (LLC) 2) Russian Federation 0.00 
Home Credit Slovakia (JSC) Slovak Republic 100.00 100.00 
Collect-Credit (LLC) Ukraine 100.00 100.00 
Homer Software House (LLC) Ukraine 100.00 100.00 
Easy Dreams Company Limited Vietnam 100.00 100.00 

I> subsidiaries acquired in 20 13 in the course of a series of transactions whereby the Group acquired certain insurance operations in 
the CIS region 
2> special purpose entity was eslablished in 2013 to r.~cilitate the Group" s issues of debt securities 

The special purpose entities were established by the Group with the primary objective of raising finance 
through the issuance of debt securities and subordinated debt including loan p011folio securitizations. 
These entities are nm according to pre-determined criteria that are part of their initial design. The day-to
day servicing is carried out by the Group under a servicing contract; other key decisions are also made by 
the Group. In addition, the Group is exposed to a variability o f returns from the entities through exposure 
to tax benefits and cost savings related to the funding activities . As a result, the Group concludes that it 
controls these entities. 

In 201 2 the Group executed agreements with its shareholder concerning the future acquisition of 100% 
shares in CF Commercial Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Home Credit Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. and 
PPF Vietnam Finance Company LLC. The transfer of ownership rights is subject to obtaining regulatory 
approvals by the respective regulators in China and Vietnam. Therefore, as of 31 December 2013 the 
three companies were not treated as consolidated subs idiaries. 

Associates 

Spolecnost pro informacnf databazc (JSC) 
Filcommerce Holdings, Inc. I} 

Equifax Credit Services (LLC) 

1> participation acquired in 2013 

Country of incorporation 

Czech Republic 
Philippines 
Russian Federation 

- 13 -

Ownership interest(%) 
2013 2012 

26.00 
40.00 
25.00 

26.00 
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Home Credit B. I-: 
Notes to the Co11solidated Fi11a11cial Stateme11ts 

for the year e11ded 31 December 2013 

1. Description of the Group (continued) 

Major acquisitions in 2013 

In January 2013 the Group entered into a series of transactions whereby it acquired certain insurance 
operations in the CIS region. On 28 March 2013 the transactions were settled, and the following 
subsidiaries were acquired: 

- Generali (FICJSC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance (FICJSC)) 
- Generali PPF General Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF General Insurance (LLC) 

and then to Home Credit Insurance (LLC)) 
- Generali PPF Insurance (PSC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance (PSC)) 
- Generali PPF Life Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Life Insurance (LLC)) 

The acquisition ofPPF Insurance (FICJSC) and Home Credit Insurance (LLC) was part of the Group's 
strategy to support the core Group' s business by offering insurance services on selected markets. 

PPF Insurance (PSC) and PPF Life Insurance (LLC) were not considered to be supporting the Group's 
strategy. However, the selling party's ofler included all four companies, and the Group's decision was to 
accept the offer and subsequently re-sell PPF Insurance (PSC) and PPF Life Insurance (LLC). 

In April 2013 the Group completed the sale of PPF Life Insurance (LLC) to the Group's parent 
company. The sale price was equal to the acquisition price; the transaction had no impact on the Group's 
profit or loss. 

The sale of PPF Insurance (PSC) has not been yet completed. As at 31 December 2013 assets and 
liabilities of PPF Insurance (PSC) were reported as assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 
(Note 5). 

Acquisition of Home Credit Insurance (LLC) 

The acquisition price of Home Credit Insurance (LLC) was TEUR 10,300. The acquisition date £1ir 
values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Home Credit Insurance (LLC) are 
presented below: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Financial assets available-for-sale 
Financial assets held-to-maturity 
Current income tax receivables 
Deferred tax assets 
Intangible assets 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Insurance and other provisions 
Other liabilities 

Tota1liabilities 

TEUR 

14,180 
11,569 
27,3 18 

3 
583 

18,670 
11,234 

30 
118,4 17 

202,004 

22,629 
126,650 
15,452 

164,731 

In the period since the acquisition date to 31 December 2013 Home Credit Insurance (LLC) contributed 
TEUR 77,327 and TEUR 10,022 to the Group's revenues and profit respectively. 

The Group 's management estimates that if the acquisition date had been as of the beginning of the annual 
period, Home Credit Insurance (LLC) would have contributed TEUR 100,675 and TEUR 11,541 to the 
Group's revenues and profit respectively in 2013. 
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Home Credit JJ. 1-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

.for the year ended 31 December 2013 

1. Description of the Group (continued) 

Acquisition of PPF Insurance (FICJSC) and PPF Insurance (PSC) 

The aggregate acquisition price of PPF Insurance (FICJSC) and PPF Insurance (PSC) was TEUR 10,420. 
The acquisition date fair values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of 
PPF Insurance (FICJSC) and PPF Insurance (PSC) arc presented below: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Financial assets available-for-sale 
Deferred tax assets 
Intangible assets 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total nssets 

LIABILITIES 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 
Current income tax liabilities 
Insurance and other provisions 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

TEUR 

1,355 
13, 132 

586 
629 
854 
67 

1,980 

18,603 

817 
63 

3,657 
168 

4,705 

In tl1t: pt:riod since the acqms11ton date to 3 1 December 201 3 PPF Insurance (FICJSC) and 
PPF Insurance (PSC) contributed in aggregate TEUR 7, I 00 and TEUR 2,200 to the Group's revenues 
and profit respectively. 

The Group's management estimates that if the acquisition date had been as of the beginning of the 
annual period, PPF Insurance (FICJSC) and PPF Insurance (PSC) would have contributed in aggregate 
TEUR 8,09 1 and TEUR 2,865 to the Group 's revenues and profit respectively in 201 3. 

Income from excess of acquired net fa ir value over costs of Home Credit Insurance (LLC), 
PPF Insurance (rfCJSC) and PPF Insurance (PSC) was recognized as pm1 of other operating income 
(Note 3 1 ). Such excess of acq uired net fair value over costs was primarily attributable to the recognition 
as of the acquisition date of intangible assets representing the f.1 ir value of contractual rights and 
obligations acquired as well as to the dependence of the acquired entities' business on Group entities. 
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1. Description of the Group (continued) 

Major acquisitions in 2012 

HC Asia N.V. 

1/ome Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

In July 2012 the Group entered into a transaction with its shareholder whereby it purchased a 100% share 
in HC Asia N.V., a holding entity incorporated in the Netherlands which holds equity stakes in consumer 
finance companies in Asian countries. On th is transaction, a reserve for business combinations under 
common control ofTEUR 15, I 06 was recognized in the Group's equity. 

The acquisition was part of the parent company's strategy to consolidate entities with Home Credit brand 
in one group. 

The acquisition date fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of HC Asia N.V. 
group are presented below: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Loans to customers 
Positive fair value of derivative instruments 
Current income tax receivables 
Deferred tax assets 
Investments in associates 
Intangible assets 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to banks and other financial institutions 
Current income tax liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Tot:~llirtbilities 

TEUR 

48,920 
10,239 

217,565 
88 

403 
64 

632 
1,89 1 
3,920 
4,864 

288,586 

107,984 
2,30 1 

25,501 

135,786 

Acquisition date gross balances of loans to customers were TEUR 227,604, and the estimated 
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected were TEUR 10,039. 
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1. Description of the Group (continued) 

Home Credit Bank (JSC) 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

As at 31 December 20 II and 2012 the Group held a direct 9.99% equity stake in Home Credit Bank 
(JSC), a bank incorporated in the Republic of Kazakhstan. In addition, in August 20 II the Group entered 
into a call option agreement enabling it to purchase the remaining 90.01% stake in Home Credit Bank 
(JSC) from its current shareholder. As at 3 1 December 20 II due to regulatory uncertainties which arose 
in connection with changes to the banking legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the ability of the 
Group to meet the conditions required to exercise the option was remote and not within the Group' s 
control. Therefore, no control over Home Cred it Bank (JSC) existed as at 31 December 20 II . The Group 
repo11ed its direct 9.99% equity stake as an available for sale asset. 

In December 2012 a change in the banking legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan took place which 
enabled the Group to meet the conditions required to exercise the option. Therefore, as at 31 December 
2012 the Group exercised control over Home Credit Bank (JSC) and treated Home Cred it Bank (JSC) as 
a consolidated subsidiary because of the Group's potential voting rights in Home Credit Bank (JSC). The 
option was exercised in Janua1y 201 3 whereby the Group became the 100% owner of Home Credit Bank 
(JSC). 

The acquisition was part of the Group 's strategic plan in the CIS (the Commonwealth of Independent 
States) region to continue strengthening the Group's position, leverage business synergies, facilitate the 
transfer of expertise and increase business efficiency. 

The acquisition date f.1ir value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Home Credit 
Bank (JSC) are presented below: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due fi·om banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Loans to customers 
Positive value of derivative instruments 
Intangible assets 
Prope11y and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current accounts and deposits fi·om customers 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 
Negative fair value of derivative instruments 
Current income tax liabilit ies 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other liabi lities 

Total liabilities 

TEUR 

34,841 
8,335 

335,632 
891 

1,883 
3,403 

11,917 

396,902 

143,359 
12 1,346 

225 
104 
417 

3,216 
16,285 

284,952 

Acquisition date gross balances of loans to customers were TEUR 356, 138, and the estimated 
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected were TEUR 20,506. 
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2. Basis of preparation 

/lome Credit B. V. 
Notes to tile Consolidated Financial Statements 

for tile year ended 31 December 2013 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20 13 comprise the Company and 
its subsidiaries. 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Rep011ing Standards (lFRSs), including International Accounting Standards (lASs), promulgated by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB as adopted by the European Union. 

The Company has also prepared the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2013, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs, including lASs, promulgated by the IASB 
and interpretations issued by the IFRIC of the IASB as adopted by the European Union. 

(b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historic cost basis except for financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets available-for-sale that are measured at 
fair value. Financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities which are valued at 
historic cost are stated at amortized cost or historic cost, as appropriate, net of any relevant impairment. 

(c) Presentation and functional currency 

These financial statements arc presented in Euro (EUR), which is the Company's functional currency 
and Group's rep011ing currency. Financial information presented in EUR has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand (TEUR). 

(d) Changes in accounting policies and comparative figures 

Subordinated debt securities issued arc presented as a separate financial statement caption. Previously 
they were reported as part of debt securities issued. 

The comparative numbers have been regrouped or reclassified, where necessary, on a basis consistent 
with the current period. 

(e) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with lFRS requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the repor1ed 
amounts of assets and liabi lities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historic experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of the judgments about the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities that cannot readily be determined from other sources. The actual values may differ from 
these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

In pm1icular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments made 
by management in preparing these consolidated financial statements in respect of impairment 
recognition is described in Note 3(c)(vii), Note 3(f), and Note 10. 

(f) Basis of consolidation 

(i) Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are enterprises controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the enterprise and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the enterprise. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control effectively commences until the date on 
which control effectively ceases. 

Legal restructuring and mergers involving companies under common control are accounted for using 
consolidated net book values, consequently no adjustment is made to carrying amounts in the 
consolidated accounts and no goodwill arises on such transactions. 

- 18 -



2. Basis of preparation (continued) 

(ii) Associates 

Home Credit B. I': 
Notes to the Consolidated Finnncinl Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 20 I 3 

Associates are enterprises in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the 
financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Group' s share of the 
total recognized gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date on which 
significant influence effectively commences until the date on which significant influence effectively 
ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds the Group's interest in the associate, that interest is 
reduced to nil and recognition of fUJ1her losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has 
incurred obligations in respect of the associate. 

(iii) Special purpose entities 
The Group has established a number of special purpose entities (SPEs) for the purpose of raising finance. 
The Group does not have any direct or indirect sharcholdings in these entities. These SPEs are controlled 
by the Group through the predetermination of the activities of SPEs, having rights to obtain the majority 
of benefits of the SPEs, and retaining the majori ty of the residual risks related to the SPEs. 

(h1 Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized gains arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with 
associates are eliminated against the investment in the associate to the extent of the Group 's interest in 
the enterprise. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the 
extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 
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3. Significant accounting policies 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to tile Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 20 I 3 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
consolidated financial statements and by all Group entities. 

(a) Foreign currency 

(i) Foreign currency tmnsactions 
A foreign currency transaction is a transaction that is denominated in or requires settlement in a currency 
other than the functional currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which an entity operates. For initial recognition purposes, a foreign currency transaction 
is translated into the functional currency using the foreign currency exchange rate ruling at the date of 
the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the repor1ing date are retranslated to 
the functional curTency at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date on which the fair value was determined. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are 
retranslated using the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 

Foreign currency differences arising on rctranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for the 
differences arising on the retranslation of avai lable-for-sale equity investments which are recognised in 
other comprehensive income (except on impairment in which case foreign currency differences that have 
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss). 

(ii) Financial information of foreign operations 
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair va lue adjustments arising on 
acquisition, are translated to EUR at exchange rates ruling at the repor1ing date. Income and expenses of 
foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to EUR 
at rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. 

Income and expenses of foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies are translated to EUR at 
exchange rates ruling at the repo11ing date. Prior to translation, their financial statements for the current 
year are restated to account for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency. The 
restatement is based on relevant price indices at the reporting date. 

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in other comprehensive income, and 
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the foreign operation is 
a non-wholly owned subsidiary, the relevant proportion of the translation difference is allocated to non
controlling interests. 

When a foreign operation is disposed of so that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the 
cumulat ive amount in the foreign currency translation reserve related to that foreign operation is 
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. 

The functional currency of Home Credit Bank (OJSC) incorporated in the Republic of Belarus is 
Belarusian Ruble (BYR). In 2012 and 201 3 this currency was identified as a currency of a 
hyperinflationary economy. Therefore, requirements of lAS 29 - Financial Repor1ing in 
Hyperinflationary Economics were applied for Home Credit Bank (OJSC). 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group considers cash on hand, unrestricted balances with central banks and balances with banks and 
other financial institutions due within one month to be cash and cash equivalents. Minimum reserve 
deposits with respective central Banks are not considered to be cash equivalents if restrictions on their 
withdrawal are placed. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities 

(i) Classification 

Home Credit 8. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 20 I 3 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market, other than those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near 
term, those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss, or 
those where its initial investment may not be substantially recovered, other than because of credit 
deterioration. 

When the Group is a lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risk and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee, the arrangement is presented within loans and 
receivables. 

Financial assets and liabilities at fa ir value through profit or loss are fi nancial assets or liabilities that 
are classi fied as held for trading or those which are upon initial recognition designated by the entity as at 
fair value through profit or loss. Trading instruments include those that the Group principally holds for 
the purpose of shm1-term profit taking and derivative contracts that arc not designated as effective 
hedging instruments. The Group designates financial assets and liabil ities at fair value through profit or 
loss where either the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value 
basis or the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would 
otherwise arise or the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the 
cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract. Financial assets and liabilities at fc1 ir 
value through profit or loss are not reclassified subsequent to initial recognition. 

All trading derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fc1i r value), as well as options purchased, are 
rcpotted as an asset. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), as well as 
options written, are reported as a liability. 

Financial assets held-to-maturity are those non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, 
other than loans and receivables and instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss or as 
available-for-sale. 

Financial assets available-for-sale are those financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or 
are not classified as loans and receivables, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or 
held-to-maturity investments. 

(ii) Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial posit ion when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For regular purchases and sales of 
financial assets, the Group's policy is to recognize them using settlement date accounting. Any change in 
the fair value of an asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the settlement date 
is accounted for in the same way as if the Group used trade date accounting. 

(iii) Measurement 
A financial asset or liability is initially measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or 
liabil ity not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability. 

Subsequent to initial recognit ion, financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, are measured at 
their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sa le or other 
disposal, except for loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, which are measured at 
amortized cost less impairment losses, and investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted 
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured 
at cost less impairment losses. 

All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial 
liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for 
derecognition, are measured at amot1ized cost. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(iv) Fair value measurement 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 1 December 2013 

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 
the inputs used in making the measurements. 

Level I : Quoted market price (unacljusted) in an active market for an identical instrument. 

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (such as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in 
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that 
are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or 
indirectly observable from market data. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all 
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the 
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes 
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant 
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on 
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments the Group determines 
fair values using valuation techniques. 

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar 
instruments for which market observable prices exist, 13lack-Scholes option pricing models and other 
valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark 
interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, 
foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volati lities and 
correlations. The objective of vnluntion techniques is to arrive at a fai r value determination that reflects 
the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market 
participants acting at arm's length. 

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on 
management's best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the end of the reporting 
period for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are 
based on market related measures at the end of the reporting period. 

The fair value of debt and equity securities avai lable-for-sale is based on their quoted market price. 
Derivative contracts are not exchange traded and their fair value is estimated using arbitrage pricing 
model where key parameters are relevant foreign exchange rates and interbank interest rates ruling at the 
end of the reporting period. 

(v) Amortized cm,-t measurement principles 
The am011ized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount in which the financial asset or liability is 
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative am011ization 
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the 
maturity amount, net of any relevant impairment. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(vi) Gains am/losses on subsequent measurement 

Home Credit B. V. 
Noles /o the Consolidated Financial S talemenls 

for /he year ended 31 December 2013 

Gains and losses on financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are recognized 
in profit or loss. 

Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income 
(except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses) until the asset is derecognized, at 
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to profit or loss. 

For financial assets and liabilities carried at amort ized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss 
when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, and through the amor1ization process. 

(vii) Identification ami measurement of impairment 
The Group has developed a provisioning policy, which describes in detail the procedures and 
methodology of the impairment measurement, and a write-ofT policy. The impairment measurement is 
dealt with as follows: 

The Group assesses on a regular basis whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective 
evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred afier the initial recognition of the assets, and that 
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably. 

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant , and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial assets, whether significant or not, it includes the assets in a group of 
financial assets with similar risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Financial 
ossets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to 
be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been incurred, the amount 
of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and 
collateral discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Contractual cash flows and 
historical loss experience adjusted on the basis of relevant observable data that re flect current economic 
conditions provide the basis for estimating expected cash flows. Financial assets with a shor1 duration 
are not discounted. 

In some cases the observable data required to estimate the amount of an impairment loss on a financial 
asset may be I imited or no longer fully relevant to current circumstances. This may be the case when a 
borrower is in financial difficulties and there is little available historical data relating to similar 
borrowers. In such cases, the Group uses its experience and judgment to estimate the amount of any 
impairment loss. 

All impairment losses in respect of financial assets are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income and are only reversed if a subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount of the asset that would 
have been determined, net of amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

The write-off policy of the Group requires that the outstanding amount of a loan shall be written off if 
there is any installment overdue for 361 or more days. However, the loan shall remain in the 
company's balance sheet even afier 36 1 days of non-payment if it is probable that the loan wil l be sold 
in a near future, or significant recoveries arc expected. In such case, the loan outstanding amount shall 
be derecognized at the moment of the sale or later as soon as no significant recoveries are expected. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(viii) Derecognition 

Home Credit B. V. 
Noles /o the Consolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is 
recognized separately as asset or liability. 

The Group derecognizes a financi al liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled 
or expire. 

(i>..~ Ofj\·etting 
Financial assets and liabilities are set ofT and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set ofT the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to sett le on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or 
for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions. 

(x) Securitization 
For securitized financial assets, the Group considers both the degree of transfer of risks and rewards on 
assets transferred to another entity and the degree of control exercised by the Group over the other entity. 

When the Group, in substance, controls the entity to which financial assets have been transferred, the 
entity is included in these consolidated financial statements and the transferred assets are recognized in 
the consolidated statement of financial position. 

When the Group has transferred financial assets to another entity, but has retained substantial ly all of the 
risks and rewards relating to the transferred assets, the transferred assets arc recognized in the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

When the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the transferred assets to an 
entity that it does not control, the assets are derccognized from the consolidated statement of fin ancial 
position. 

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the transferred 
assets, the assets are derecognized if the Group has not retained control over the assets. 

{.'l:i) Repurchase and reverse repurclwse agreements 
Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements are accounted for as secured financing transactions, 
with the securities retained in the statement of financial position and the counterparty liability included 
in amounts due to banks and other financial institutions or to customers, as appropriate. The difference 
between the sale and repurchase price represents interest expense and is recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income over the terms of the agreement. 

Securities purchased under agreements to resell are recorded as due from banks and other financial 
institutions or from customers as appropriate. The difference between the sale and repurchase 
considerations is recognized on an accrual basis over the period of the transaction and is included in 
interest income. 

(.Yii} Derivative jimmcial instruments 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest 
rate risk arising from financing activities. However, not all instruments qualify for hedge accounting in 
accordance with lAS 39. For derivative instruments where hedge accounting is not applied, any gain or 
loss on derivatives is recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income as net 
gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(xiii) Hedge accounting 

Home Credit H. V. 
Notes /o the Consolidated Financial Statemen/s 

for I he year ended 31 December 2013 

The Group applies cash flow hedges against currency risk. To qualify for hedge accounting in 
accordance with lAS 39, hedges must be highly effective. Derivatives used for hedging purposes are 
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

At inception of the hedging relationship the Group formally documents the relationship between the 
hedged item and the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for 
undertaking the hedge and the method that wi ll be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging 
relationship. 

In addition, at the inception of the hedge relationship a formal assessment is undertaken to ensure the 
hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in offsetting the designated risk in the hedged item. 
Hedges are formally assessed for effectiveness on a monthly basis. A hedge is regarded as highly 
effective if the changes in the fair value of cash flows attributable to the hedged risk are expected to 
offset in a range of80% to 125% during the hedging period. 

Where a derivative is designated as a hedge of the variabi lity in cash flow attributable to a part icular risk 
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect 
profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised as other 
comprehensive income in equity. The amount recognised in equity is removed and included in profit or 
loss in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. If the derivative expires or 
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer meets the criteria for cash flow hedge accounting, or the 
designation is revoked, hedge accounting is discontinued and the amount recognised in equity remains in 
equity until the forecast transaction affects profit or loss. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected 
to occur, hedge accounting is discontinued and the balance in equity is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss. 

(d) Intangible assets 

(i) Goodwill am/ negative goodwill 
Goodwi ll arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's 
interest in the fair value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the acqui ree. When the excess is 
negative (negative goodwill), it is recognized. immediately in profit and loss. Goodwill is stated at cost 
less accumulated impairment losses (refer to Note 3(f)). 

In respect of associates, the carrying amount of any goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment in the associate. 

(ii) Other intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which are acquired by the Group, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses (refer to Note 3(f)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and 
brands is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred. 

(iii) Amortization 
Amot1ization is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized; other intangible assets are 
amot1izcd from the date the asset is available for use. The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually. If a material technical improvement is made to an 
asset during the year, its useful life and residual value are reassessed at the time a technical improvement 
is recognized. The estimated useful lives are as fo llows: 

Software 
Licenses 
Other 

I - 10 years 
1 - I 0 years 
2 - 7 years 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(e) Property and equipment 

(i) Owned assets 

Home Cretlit lJ. v: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (refer below) and 
accumulated impairment losses (refer to Note 3(f)). Cost includes expenditures that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost for self-constructed assets includes the cost of 
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. 

Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, 
they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment. 

(ii) Leased assets 
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance leases. Equipment acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an amount equal to 
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, 
less accumulated depreciation (refer below) and accumulated impairment losses (refer to Note 3(f)). 

Proper1y and equipment used by the Group under operating leases, whereby the risks and benefits 
relating to ownership of the assets remain with the lessor, are not recorded in the Group's statement of 
financial position. Payments made under operating leases to the lessor are charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income over the period of the lease. 

(iii) Subsequent expenditure 
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for 
separately, including major inspection and overhaul expenditure, is capitalized. Other subsequent 
expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item of 
property and equipment and its cost can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is recognized in the 
statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred. 

(iv) Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the individual assets. Leased assets are depreciated over the shor1er of the lease 
term and their useful lives. Property and equipment are depreciated from the date the asset is available 
for usc. The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed 
annually. If a material technical improvement is made to an asset during the year, its useful li fe and 
residual value are reassessed at the time a technical improvement is recognized. The estimated useful 
lives are as follows: 

Computers and equipment 
Vehicles 
Furniture 
Leasehold improvements 
Buildings 

I - 5 years 
3 - 8 years 
I - 12 years 
I - 20 years 

10 - 50 years 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets 

/lome Credit B. V. 
Notes to tile Consolidated Financial Statements 

for tile year ended 31 December 2013 

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each repm1ing date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Jf any such indication 
exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. The recoverable 
amount of goodwill is estimated at each reporting date based on cash flow projections for specific cash 
generating units. Key assumptions are those regarding the expected business volumes, loss rates, 
budgeted expenses as well as discount rates for subsequent periods. Management estimates discount 
rates using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the cash generating unit. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is 
less than the can)1ing amount, the impairment loss is allocated fi rst to reduce the canying amount of 
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit. 

The recoverable amount of other non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that docs not generate cash inflows largely independent of 
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recogn ized when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

All impairment losses in respect of non-financial assets arc recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income and reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. Any impairment loss reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset's 
canying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. An impairment loss in respect 
of goodwill is not reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary, the amount of goodwill that is attributable to the 
subsidiary is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal. 

(g) Provisions 

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position if, as a result of a past event, the Group 
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liabi lity. 

(h) Insurance provisions 

(i) Propisions for uneamed premiums 
Provisions for unearned premiums comprise that pat1 of gross premiums written attributable to 
subsequent periods, calculated separately for each insurance contract. 

(ii) Provisions for outstanding claims am/ otlter insumnce provisions 
Provisions for outstanding claims represent the total estimated cost of settling all claims arising from 
events which have occurred up to the reporting date, whether reported or not, less amounts already paid 
in respect of such claims. These provisions include claims reported by policyholders but not settled 
(RBNS) and claims incurred but not rep011ed (IBNR). 

Other insurance provisions contain all other insurance technical provisions not mentioned above, such as 
the provision for unexpired risks (also referred to as the "premium deficiency"), the provision for 
contractual non-discretionary bonuses and other similar provisions. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(iii) Deferred acquisition costs of insumnce contracts 

/lome Credit B.V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Fina11cia/ Stale mel/IS 

f or the year e11ded 31 December 2013 

Direct costs arising from the writing or renewing of insurance contracts, are deferred to the extent that 
these costs are recoverable out of future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognized as an 
expense when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition deferred acquisition costs arc amortized over 
the period in which the related revenues are earned. The reinsurers' shares of deferred acquisition costs 
are amortized in the same manner as the underlying asset amortization is recorded. 

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of 
impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Deferred acquisition costs are derecognized when the related insurance contracts are either settled or 
disposed of. 

(i) Other payables 

Accounts payable arise when the Group has a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial 
asset. Accounts payable are measured at amortized cost, which is normally equal to their nominal or 
repayment value. 

U) Financial guarantees 

A financial guarantee is a contract that requires the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fa ils to make payment when due in accordance with 
the terms of a debt instrument. 

A financial guarantee liability is recognized initially at fair value net of associated transaction costs, and 
the initial fair value is amortized over the life of the financial guarantee. The guarantee liability is 
subsequently carried at the higher of this am011ized amount and the present value of any expected 
payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable). 

Financial guarantee liabilities are included within other liabilities. 

(k) Equity 

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued by the Company. To the extent such shares 
remain unpaid as of the end of the reporting period a corresponding receivable is presented in other 
assets. 

Dividends on share capital arc recognized as a liability provided they are declared before the end of the 
rep011ing period. Dividends declared afier the end of the reporting period are not recognized as a liabi lity 
but are disclosed in the notes. 

Non-controlling interests consist of the minority shareholders' proportion of the fair values of 
a subsidiary's net assets, at the date of the original combination, plus or minus their share of changes in 
the subsidiary's equity since that date. 

(I) Interest income and expense 

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the 
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective 
interest rate is established on initial recognition and is not revised subsequently. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received, transaction 
costs and discounts or premiums that arc an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs 
are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset 
or liability. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(m) Fee and commission income and expenses 

1/ome Credit B. V. 
Noles to !he Consolida!ed Financial Stalemen/s 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a fi nancial 
asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. 

Other fees and commission income and expense relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are 
recognized as the services are rendered or received. 

The Group acts as an agent for insurance providers offering thei r insurance products to consumer loan 
borrowers. Commission income from insurance represents commissions for such agency services 
received by the Group from such pat1ners. It is not considered to be integral to the overall profitability of 
consumer loans because it is determined and recognized based on the Group 's contractual arrangements 
with the insurance provider rather than with the borrower, the borrowers have a choice whether to 
purchase the policy, the interest rates for customers with and without the insurance are the same. The 
Group does not participate on the insurance risk, which is entirely borne by the partner. Commission 
income from insurance is recognized in profit or loss when the Group provides the agency service to the 
insurance company. 

(n) Penalty fees 

Penalty income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when penalty is charged to 
a customer, taking into account its collectability. 

(o) Operating lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Granted lease incentives are recognized as an integral part 
of the total lease expense. 

(p) Pensions 

The governments of the countries the Group operates in are responsible for providing pensions and 
retirement benefits to the Group's employees. A regular contribution linked to employees' salaries is 
made by the Group to the governments to fund the national pension plans. Payments under these pension 
schemes are charged as expenses as they fall due. 

(q) Taxation 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized 
in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized di rectly 
in equity, in which case it is recognized in eq uity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted at the end of the report ing period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided for temporary di fferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary 
differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and temporary differences related to 
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates where the parent is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 
realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. Deferred 
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(r) Net profit allocated to non-controlling interests 

Net profit allocated to non-controlling interests is that pat1 ofthe net results of the Group attributable to 
interests which arc not owned, directly, or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the equity holders of the 
parent company. 

(s) Segment reporting 

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services 
within a pat1icular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards 
that are different from those of other segments. Segment revenues include interest income, fee and 
commission income and gross insurance premiums earned. 

(t) Changes in accounting policies and accounting pronouncements adopted since 
1 January 2013 

The following revised standards effective from 1 January 20 13 are mandatory and relevant for the Group 
and have been applied by the Group since I January 20 13. 

Ammal Improvements 2009-2011 Cvcfe (effective from I January 2013) 

In May 2012 the IASB published Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle as part of its annual 
improvements process to make non-urgent but necessary amendments to I FRS. The new cycle of 
improvements contains amendments to !FRS I, lAS 1, lAS 16, lAS 32 and lAS 34, with consequential 
amendments to other standards and interpretations. 

Amendments to !FRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective 
from I January 2013) 

The Amendments contain new disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities that are offset 
in the statement of financial position; or subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements. 

Amendment to !AS I Presentation o[Financial Statements (effective from I July 20 12) 

The amendments to lAS I titled Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income: 
- require that an entity present separately items of other comprehensive income that would be 

reclassified to profit or loss in the future if cet1ain conditions are met from those that would never be 
reclassified to profit or loss; 

- do not change the existing option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in two 
statements; and 

- change the title of the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. However, an entity is still allowed to use other titles. 

/FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective (rom 1 Jam1an• 2013) 

This new standard was issued in May 20 I I. It replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained in 
individual lFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring f.1ir value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value 
measurements. 1t explains how to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other lFRSs. It 
does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor does it eliminate 
the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards. 

In accordance with transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair value 
measurement guidance prospectively and has not provided comparative information for new disclosures. 
Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurements of the Group's 
assets and liabilities. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

Home Credit B. I~ 
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for the y ear ended 31 December 2013 

(u) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet 
effective and are relevant for the Gt·oup's financial statements 

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretat ions were not yet effective as 
of 31 December 20 13, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Of these 
pronouncements, potentially the following will have an impact on the Group 's operations. The Group 
plans to adopt these pronouncements when they become efiective. The Group is in the process of 
analysing the likely impact on its financial statements. 

/FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
/FRS 12 Disclosure oUnterests in OJher Entities 

In May 20 11 IASB issued these two new standards as improvements to the accounting requi rements for 
off balance sheet activities and joint arrangements. IA SB has declared the efficiency of the standards, 
inclusive related standards lAS 27 and lAS 28, from I January 201 3 but the EU requires the application 
from I January 2014. 

IFRS I 0 introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be consolidated and provides 
a single model to be applied in the control analysis for all investees. 
An investor controls an investee when: 
- it is exposed or has rights to variable retums from its involvement with that in vestee; 
- it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that investec; and 
- there is a link between power and returns. 
Control is reassessed as facts and circumstances change. 

IFRS 10 supersedes !AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Stalemenls (as amended in 2008) and 
SIC- 12 Consolidation- Special Purpose Entities. 

lFRS 12 contains the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities, 
aiming to provide information to enable users to evaluate: 
- the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity 's interests in other entities; and 
- the effects of those interests on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

lAS 27 Separate Financial Stalements was issued concurrently with IFRS I 0. lAS 27 (20 II) carries 
forward the existing accounting and disclosure requirements for separate financial statements, with some 
minor clarifications. 

lAS 28 lnvestmenls in Associates and Joint Venlures 

This amended standard supersedes lAS 28 Investments in Associates (2008). lAS 28 (20 11 ) makes the 
following amendments: 
- IFRS 5 applies to an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or a joint ven ture that 

meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; and 
- on cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an 
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the entity does not rcmeasure the retained interest. 

!FRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 20 15) 

This new standard was published on 12 November 2009 as part of phase I of the IASB 's comprehensive 
project to replace lAS 39. lt deals with classification and measurement of fi nancial assets. The 
requi rements of this standard represent a significant change from the existing requi rements in lAS 39 in 
respect of financial assets. The standard contains two primary measurement categories for financial 
assets: amortised cost and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and 
the asset's contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets would be measured at fair 
value. The standard eliminates the existing lAS 39 categories of held to maturity, available for sale and 
loans and receivables. In October 20 I 0 the JASB added to I FRS 9 the requirements for classification and 
measurement of financial liabilities while most of the requirements in lAS 39 were carried forward 
unchanged to fFRS 9. IFRS 9 has not yet been adopted by the EU. 
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4. Financial risk management 
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instnunents: 

• credit risk 

• liquidity risk 

• market risks 

• insurance risk 
• operational risks 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk 
management framework. The Board has established the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) and the 
Group Credit Risk Department, which arc responsible for developing and monitoring risk management 
policies in their specified areas. Both bodies rep01t regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities. 

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks fc1ccd by the 
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, 
products and services offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss occurring as a result of default by a borrower or counterparty on 
their obligation to the Group. The majority of the Group's exposure to credit risk arises in connection 
with the provision of consumer financing to private individual customers, which is the Group's principal 
business. The Group classifies the loans to individual customers into several classes where the 
significant ones are POS (point of sale) loans, revolving loans, cash loans, car loans and mortgage loans. 
As the Group's loan portfolio consists of a large number of loans with relatively low outstanding 
amounts, the loan portfolio does not comprise any significant individual items. The remaining part of the 
Group 's exposures to credit risk is related to due from banks and other financial institutions, financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets available-for-sale and other assets. 

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to the Group 
Credit Risk Depat1ment. The depat1ment is responsible for oversight of the Group's credit risk, 
including: 

• Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units covering credit assessment, 
underwriting policies, collection policies and risk rep011ing by business units and loan classes; 

• Establishing the authorization structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. 
Authorization limits arc allocated to business unit's management, large exposures and new types 
of exposures require Group approval. The Group uses one central loan administration system to 
facilitate loan underwriting; 

• Continuous monitoring of performance of individual Group's credit exposures by countries, 
product classes and distribution channels; 

• Limiting concentrations of credit exposures by countries, product classes and distribution 
channels; 

• Approving counterparty limits for financial institutions; 
• Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits; 
• Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice 

throughout the Group in the management of credit risk. 

The Group continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures both on a business unit 
and Group level using a number of criteria including delinquency rates, default rates and collection 
efficiency measures. The Group has an active fraud prevention and detection program. Credit risk 
developments are reported by the Group Credit Risk Department to the Board of Directors on a regular 
basis. 

As a result of recent negative development on financial markets, the credit environment in certain 
countries in which the Group operates has deteriorated. The Group has taken strict measures in its 
underwriting and collection policies in order to limit the negative impact of such market changes. 

- 32 -



4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Credit underwriting pmcess 
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 

The credit underwriting process involves the verification of customer data, combined with complex 
scoring models that take into account both risk and profitability to determine whether an applicant is 
eligible for a product and, if so, at what price. 

Information supplied by the applicant may be cross-checked with information in the Group 's customer 
database for the relevant country. POS loans are provided with minimum documentation from the 
customer. Applications for other products, in particular cash loans, require more supporting 
documentation and verification. If the standards set by the Group are not being maintained, the Group 
discontinues selling through the relevant retai ler's employee or the relevant retailer. 

Loan collection and fraud prevention 

The Group utilises multi-stage pre-collection and collection procedures to enhance collection of loans. 
The Group takes a pro-active approach to collection and applies a number of measures to pre-empt its 
accounts from entering a collection stage such as expediting repayments once accounts arc overdue. 

General loan collection 

The Group's loan collection system follows standard steps and procedures, which can vary depending on 
country specific requirements and the legal or operational tools available for collection. 

Pre-collections 

Various forms of communication are used to remind customers how and when to pay, e.g. welcome 
letters or calls and SMS messages are sent to a customer a short time prior to the date of payment. 

Early collection 

The early collection procedures vary depending on which specific collect ion segment a customer is 
assigned to based on exposure, customer account data and previous collection behaviour. They are 
typically applied to payments which are five to 75 days overdue. The Group uses SMS messages, 
outbound calls, letters and interactive voice response tools to communicate with customers to remind 
them of, and procure, the overdue amounts. 

Administrative and personal collection 

The Group sends to the customer written correspondence including a warning that the full amount of the 
loan could be declared immediately due and payable, if a loan reaches a higher stage of delinquency with 
outstanding payments typically more than 60 to 90 days overdue (the point in time at which a loan 
moves from early collect ion to administrative and personal collection can vary). Letters are then 
followed by a call explaining to the customer the consequences of not repaying the debt. 

Late collection 

The late collection procedures usually start when a loan becomes 90 days overdue. Usage of external 
agencies or internal field collector methods is typica lly considered. 

Legal collection, debt sell 

Loans with outstanding repayments that have been overdue above 360 days are referred to the Group 's 
external legal counsel, who informs the customer through formal correspondence that the loan is closed 
and that legal action will commence against the customer. As alternative debt sell to collection agencies 
may be also considered. The price setup must be approved by the ALCO. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Exposure to credit risk 

As of 31 December 2013 
POS loans Cash loans Revolving Other'l Total 

loans 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Individually impaired 
Gross amount 2,835 2,835 
Allowance for impairment (1,264) ( I ,264) 

Carrying amount 1,571 1,571 

Not impaired 2,171 2,171 

Collectively impaired 
Gross amount 2,2 12,836 5,009,642 994,790 138,141 8,355,409 

Current 1,885,555 3,891,297 734,614 111 ,251 6,622,717 
Past due I - 90 days 135,075 464,613 112,570 6,246 718,504 
Past due 91 - 360 days 174,066 606,113 121 ,908 8,772 9 10,859 
Past due more than 360 days 18,140 47,619 25 ,698 11 ,872 103 ,329 

Allowance for impairment (2 19, 11 4} (808,836) (136,319} {23,598} { I, 187,867) 

Carrying amount 1,993,722 4,200,806 858,471 114,543 7,167,542 

Total carrying amount 1,993,722 4,200,806 858,471 118,285 7,171,284 

Exposure to credit ris){ 

As of31 December 2012 
POS loans Cash loans Revolving Othcr1l Total 

loans 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Individually impaired 
Gross amount 2,123 2,123 
Allowance for impairment {I ,432) {1 ,432) 

Carrying amount 691 691 

Not impaired 2,429 2,429 

Collectively impaired 
Gross amount I ,945,888 4,299,859 716,690 209,048 7,171,485 

Current 1,711,902 3,687,617 558,658 177,527 6,135,704 
Past due I - 90 days 102,972 292,456 84,707 14,81 2 494,947 
Past due 91 - 360 days 112,883 269,396 46,933 5,31 0 434,522 
Past due more than 360 days 18, 13 1 50,390 26,392 11 ,399 106,312 

Allowance for impairment {149,743) (40 1,791) (70,474) (21 ,956) {643,964) 

Can ying amount 1,796,145 3,898,068 646,216 187,092 6,527,521 

Total carrying amount 1,796,145 3,898,068 646,216 190,212 6,530,641 

I ) Includes mortgage loans, car loans, loans to corporations and other loans. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Analysis of collateral 

Hom e Credit B. Jl. 
Noles lo !he Consolidated Fillallcial Sla/emenls 

for !he year ended 31 December 2013 

The following table provides the analysis of gross Joan pot1folio by types of collateral 
as at 31 December: 

2013 2012 
Portfolio %of loan Portfolio %of loan 

TEUR portfolio TEUR portfolio 

Pledged assets 146,437 1.8 2 10,193 2.9 
Unsecured (no collateral) 8,213,978 98.2 6,965,844 97. 1 

Total 8,360,415 7,176,037 

The amounts shown in the table above represent the gross balance of loans, and do not necessari ly 
represent the f.1ir value of the collateral. 

Mortgage loans are secured by underlying housing real estate. Car loans are secured by underlying cars. 
The other loan categories are unsecured. 

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 

The Group's derivative transactions are predominant ly entered into under International Derivative 
Swaps and Dealers Association Master Netting Agreements. In general, under such agreements the 
amounts owed by each counterparty that are due on a single day in respect of transactions outstanding 
in the same currency under the agreement are aggregated into a single net amount being payable by 
one party to the other. In certain circumstances, for example when a credit event such as a default 
occurs, all outstanding transactions under the agreement are terminated, the termination value is 
assessed and only a single net amount is due or payable in settlement transactions. 

International Derivative Swaps and Dealers Association Master Nett ing Agreements and similar master 
nett ing arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consol idated statement of financial 
posit ion. Therefore, as at 31 December 201 3 the reported balances of posit ive and negative fair values 
of derivatives of TEUR 18,908 (31 December 2012: TEUR 19,590) and TEUR 17,962 (31 December 
20 12: TEUR II ,435) respectively do not include any amounts offset. 

Loans and advances provided and received under repo operations are covered by Global Master 
Repurchase Agreements and similar agreements with terms similar to those oflnternational Derivative 
Swaps and Dealers Association Master Netting Agreements. 

Global Master Repurchase Agreements and similar agreements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in 
the consolidated statement of financial position. Therefore, as at 31 December 20 13 the repot1ed 
balances of loans and advances provided under repo operations ofTEUR 190,937 (31 December 2012: 
TEUR 167,464) do not include any amounts offset. The remaining balance of due from banks, other 
financial institutions and holding companies of TEUR 2 19,296 (31 December 2012: TEUR 226,807) 
was not subject to any offsetting arrangements. 

As at 3 1 December 20 13 the Group had no balances received under repo operations (31 December 2012: 
TEUR 4 1 0,456). The balance of due to banks and other financial institutions of TEUR 604,421 (3 1 
December 2012: remaining balance ofTEUR 900,523) was not subject to any offsetting arrangements. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(b) Liquidity risl{ 

H om e Credit B. Jl: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial 
liabilities. 

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group 's reputation. All liquidity policies and 
procedures as well as liquidity position projections are subject to review and approval by the ALCO. 

The Group 's Treasury collects information from business units regarding the liquidity profile of their 
financial assets and liabilities and details of other proj ected cash flows arising from proj ected future 
business. P011folio of short-term liquid assets is maintained to ensure sufficient liquidity. The daily 
liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of 
scenarios covering both normal and more severe market conditions. The individual scenarios focus on 
liquidity available on markets, the nature of related risks and magnitude of their impact on the Group's 
business, management tools available as well as preventive actions. 

The Group has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised using a broad range of instruments 
including deposits, bank loans, loans fi·om the Central Bank of the Russian Federation, bond issues, 
inter-company loans, subordinated debt and contributions by shareholders (refer to Notes 18, 19, 20, 23 
and 25). The shareholder's support enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence on any one source of 
fund s and generally lowers the cost of funds. Management strives to maintain a balance between 
continuity of funding and flexibility through usc of liabil ities with a range of maturit ies. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Exposure to liquidity risk 
The following table shows assets and liabilities by remaining maturity dates. The table does not include prospective cash flows related to loan commitments. Refer to Note 37 for outstanding 
loan commitments that may impact liquidity requirements. 

2013 20I2 
TEUR Less than 3 months I to 5 years More than No Total Less than 3 months I to 5 years More than No Total 

3 months to I year 5 years maturity 3 months to 1 year 5 years maturity 

Cash and cash equivalents 926,483 - - - - 926,483 1,210,087 - - - - 1.210,087 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and 207,823 92,322 22,413 534 87,141 410,233 187,047 65,140 64,215 557 77,312 394,271 
holding companies 
Loans to customers 1,691,207 3,138,113 2,291,723 50,241 - 7,171 ,284 1,414,956 2,853,766 2,205,082 56,837 - 6,530,641 
Positive fair value of derivative instruments 275 11 ,039 7,594 - - 18,908 3,497 5,555 10,538 - - 19.590 
Financial assets available-for-sale 125,631 2,915 17,266 6,979 5,714 158,505 277,956 423,548 - - - 701.504 
Financial assets held-to-maturity - 3,440 - - - 3,440 3,667 - - - - 3.667 
Assets classified as held for sale - 14,724 - - - 14,724 
Current income tax receivables 1,068 5,245 9,585 - - 15,898 132 455 1,844 - - 2,431 
Deferred tax assets 546 11,894 13,616 - 23,654 49,710 128 16,827 2,650 - - 19,605 
Investments in associates - - - - 3,589 3,589 - - - - 2,537 2,537 
Intangible assets - - - - 94,9 13 94,913 - - - - 60.656 60.656 
Property and equipment - - - - 233,267 233,267 - - - - 237,258 237,258 
Other assets 62.593 47.941 96.519 2.464 2.896 212.413 144.766 36.239 53.804 61 9.196 244.066 

Total assets 3,015,626 3.327.633 2.458,716 60..218 451.174 9.313.367 3.242..236 3.401..530 2.338.133 57.455 386.959 9.426.313 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 2,126,969 2,734,876 243,557 - - 5,105,402 1,482,068 2,612,632 628.871 - - 4,723.571 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 115,846 442,965 45,610 - - 604,421 926,170 344,745 40,064 - - 1.310,979 
Debt securities issued* 373,270 194,032 553,613 - 1,120,915 14,732 198,275 967,147 - - 1,1 80,154 
Negative fair value of derivative instruments 8,268 9,690 4 - - 17,962 4,525 2,945 3,965 - - 11.435 
Liabilities classified as held for sale - 1,574 - - - 1,574 
Current income tax liabilities 24,643 2,644 - - - 27,287 - 29.138 - - - 29.138 
Deferred tax liabilities 5,014 - - - - 5,014 - 22 925 - - 947 
Insurance and other provisions - 8,994 25 - 121 ,316 130,335 
Subordinated liabilities* - 9,283 358,710 143,468 - 511,461 - 6,487 - 373,260 - 379,747 
Other liabilities 186.027 62.955 6.119 1,424 - 256.525 248.884 33.171 3.426 262 - 285.743 

Total liabilities 2.840.037 3.467,013 1..207,638 144.892 121.316 7,780,896 2,676.379 3.227.415 1.644.398 373..522 - 7.921.714 

Net position 175..589 {139.380} 1,251,078 {84.674) 329.858 1..532.471 565.857 174.115 693,735 (316.067) 386.959 1.504..599 

* Debt securities and subordinated liabilities are classified considering early redemption rights (refer to Note 20 and Note 23). 
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Exposure to liquidity risk 
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The following table shows remaining maturities of liabilities on an undiscounted cash flow basis. Only those liability items are shown for which total estimated 
undiscounted cash flows differ from their book values shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

2013 2012 
TEUR Less than 3 months 1 to 5 years More than Total Less than 3 months 1 to 5 years More than Total 

3 months to 1 year 5 years 3 months to 1 year 5 years 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 2,142,670 2,872,615 275,531 - 5,290,816 1,491,580 2,756,535 738,325 - 4,986,440 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 125,936 489,680 53,358 - 668,974 930,759 364,874 47,700 - 1,343,333 
Debt securities issued* 384,129 220,704 625,661 - 1,230,494 24,847 242,642 1,066,319 - 1,333,808 
Subordinated liabilities* - 49,016 540.192 152.003 741.211 - 35.012 137.096 464.826 636.934 

Total 2.652.735 3.632.015 1.494.742 152.003 7.931,495 2.447.186 3.399.063 1.989.440 464.826 8.300.515 

• Debt securities and subordinated liabilities are classified considering early redemption rights (refer to Note 20 and Note 23). 
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(c) Marl{et risk 

Home Credit B. 1-: 
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Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates or foreign exchange rates 
will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. 

The majority of the Group's exposure to market risk arises in connection with the funding of the 
Group's operations with liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and to the extent the term 
structure of interest bearing assets differs from that of liabilities. 

Exposure to interest rate risl< 
The principal risk to which the Group is exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash 
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate 
risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for 
re-pricing bands. The ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. As part of its 
management of this position, the Group may use interest rate derivatives. A summary of the Group's 
interest rate gap position is provided below. 

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the 
sensitivity of the Group's financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non-standard interest 
rate scenarios. Standard scenarios that are considered include a I 00 basis point parallel fall or rise in all 
yield curves worldwide. In such case, the net interest income for 2013 would be TEUR 59,364 
higher/lower (2012: TEUR 53,622). The above sensitivity analysis is based on amortized costs of 
assets and liabilities. 

Exposure to foreign currency risl< 
The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies. Foreign currency risk 
arises when the actual or forecast assets in a foreign currency are either greater or less than the 
liabilities in that currency. Foreign currency risk is managed principally through monitoring foreign 
currency mismatches in the structure of assets and liabilities in the individual Group's country 
operations. Jt is the Group's policy to hedge such mismatches by derivative financial instruments to 
eliminate the foreign currency exposure (refer to Note 36). The ALCO is the monitoring body for 
compliance with this rule. 

Net investments in foreign operations are not hedged. As a result, the Group's financial position is 
adequately sensitive on movements of the relevant foreign exchange rates. Impact of such exchange 
rate changes on the Group's net investment in foreign operations is presented as currency translation in 
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 

In 20 12 and 2013 the Belarusian Ruble (BYR) was identified as a currency of a hyperinflationary 
economy. Due to the relatively limited exposure of the Group in BYR, the risk related to its 
depreciation is considered not to be significant from the Group's perspective. 

A summary of the Group's foreign currency position is provided below. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

Interest rate gap position based on re-pricing dates 

2013 2012 
TEUR Effective Less than 3 months 1 to 5 years More than Total Effective Less than 3 months 1 to 5 years More than Total 

interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years 
Interest bearing financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% 926,483 - - - 926,483 0.2% 1,210,087 - - - 1,210,087 

Due from banks, other financial institutions and 6.4% 207,823 114,609 126 534 323,092 7.8% 180,468 71,719 64,215 557 316,959 
holding companies 

Loans to customers, net 36.3% 1,113,805 1,962,418 3,995,130 99,931 7,171,284 36.2% 1,414,957 2,853,767 2,205,080 56,837 6,530,641 

Financial assets available-for-sale 4.4% 125,631 2,915 17,266 6,979 152,791 8.3% 277,956 423,548 - - 701,504 

Financial assets held-to-maturity 5.6% - 3,440 - - 3,440 9.0% 3.667 - - - 3.667 

Total interest bearing financial assets 30.7% 2,373,742 2,083.382 4.012.522 107,444 8,577,090 27.9% 3,087,135 3,349,034 2,269,295 57.394 8.762.858 

Interest bearing financial liabilities 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 9.2% 2, 126,969 2,734,846 243,557 - 5,105,372 10.7% 1,482,069 2,612,632 628,870 - 4,723,571 

Due to banks and other financial institutions 11.3% 133,334 425,477 45,6 10 - 604,421 5.8% 1,012,091 278,258 20,630 - 1,310,979 

Debt securities issued 8.1% 373,270 194,032 553,613 - 1,120,915 7.9% 14,732 198,275 967,147 - 1,180,154 

Subordinated liabilities 10.1% - 9.283 358.710 143,468 511.461 9.4% - 6.487 - 373.260 379,747 

Total interest bearing financia11iabi1ities 9.3% 2.633.573 3.363.638 1.201.490 143,468 7.342.169 9.4% 2.508.892 3,095,652 1.616,647 373,260 7.594.451 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

Foreign currency position 
2013 

TEUR Other 

RUB CZK EUR USD CNY KZT currencies Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 409,338 27,372 42,903 306,761 108,693 16,764 14,652 926,483 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and 176,827 46,641 28,160 109,936 12,989 29,441 6,239 410,233 
holding companies 
Loans to customers 5,790,855 65,405 33,732 39,471 644,497 481,305 116,0 19 7,171,284 
Positive fair value of derivative instruments 8,185 - - - - 24 10,699 18,908 
Financial assets available-for-sale 49,675 - - 108,830 - - - 158,505 
Financial assets held-to-maturity - - - - - - 3,440 3.440 
Assets classified as held for sale 14,724 - - - - - - 14,724 
Current income tax receivables 10,631 4,754 I - - 491 21 15,898 
Deferred tax assets 23,654 1,282 19,722 - 4,579 356 117 49,710 
Investments in associates 3,589 - - - - - - 3,589 
Intangible assets 47,852 38,534 3,857 - 1,100 2,330 1,240 94,9 13 
Property and equipment 206,681 2,106 526 - 3,458 13,831 6,665 233,267 
Other assets 99.734 28.620 68.419 953 5.204 5.380 4.103 212.4 13 

Total assets 6.841.745 214.714 197.320 565.951 780.520 549,922 163.195 9.313,367 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 4,683,116 - 53,922 114,802 - 193,719 59,843 5,105,402 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 26,522 19,161 25,480 1,880 436,455 93,752 1,171 604,42 1 
Debt securities issued 466,385 253,945 - 368, 153 - 32,432 - 1,120,915 
Negative fair value of derivative instruments 3,238 14,689 - - - - 35 17,962 
Liabilities classified as held for sale 1,574 - - - - - - 1,574 
Current income tax liabilities - - 2,643 - 21,888 I 2,755 27,287 
Deferred tax liabilities 5,014 - - - - - - 5,014 
Insurance and other provisions 125,077 - - - - - 5,258 130,335 
Subordinated liabilities - - - 511,461 - - - 511,46 1 
Other liabilities 101.851 49.446 30.227 938 50.962 14.000 9.101 256.525 

Total liabilities 5.412.777 337.241 112.272 997.234 509.305 333.904 78.163 7,780,896 

Effect of foreign currency derivatives (388, 118) 231 ,753 (248,405) 437,989 - (53,860) 20,641 

Net position 1,040.850 109,226 (163.357) 6,706 271,215 162.158 105.673 1.532.471 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

Foreign currency position 
2012 

TEUR Other 
RUB CZK EUR USD CNY KZT currencies Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 535,620 9,336 57,987 534,766 49,178 13,211 9,989 1,210,087 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and 232,942 92,251 4,989 21,349 27,422 8,335 6,983 394,271 
holding companies 
Loans to customers 5,497,858 108,256 133,597 51,564 329,277 335,632 74,457 6,530,641 
Positive fair value of derivative instruments 5,721 - 2,444 - - 891 10,534 19,590 
Financial assets available-for-sale 548,882 - - 152,622 - - - 701,504 
Financial assets held-to-maturity - - - - - - 3,667 3,667 
Current income tax receivables - 1,771 88 - - - 572 2,431 
Deferred tax assets 8,574 967 10,053 - - - 11 19,605 
Investments in associates 2,537 - - - - - - 2,537 
Intangible assets 30,264 23,026 379 6 927 4,847 1,207 60,656 
Property and equipment 223,904 1,785 350 110 3,145 3,403 4,561 237,258 
Other assets 104.777 66.392 63.684 1.441 873 4,538 2,361 244,066 

Total assets 7.191.079 303,784 273.571 761,858 410,822 370,857 114,342 9.426.313 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 4,451,795 - 26,817 71 ,852 - 122,931 50,176 4,723,571 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 830,487 82,243 124,604 2 202,112 71,531 - 1,310,979 
Debt securities issued 527,742 269,083 - 383,329 - - 1,180,154 
Negative fair value of derivative instruments 10,670 - 506 - - 225 34 11,435 
Current income tax liabilities 16,267 10,003 2,674 - 88 104 2 29,138 
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 417 530 947 
Subordinated liabilities - - - 379,747 - - - 379,747 
Other liabilities 157.623 52.413 25.172 1.257 30.695 16.103 2.480 285.743 

Total liabilities 5.994.584 413.742 179.773 836.187 232,895 211,311 53,222 7.921.714 

Effect of foreign currency derivatives (37,563) 152,163 (162,1 52) 79,172 - (45,201) 13,581 

Net position 1,158.932 42,205 (68,354) 4.843 177,927 114.345 74,701 1.504.599 
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An analysis of sensitivity of the Group's equity to changes in currency exchange rates based on positions 
existing as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 and a simplified scenario of a 5% change in RUB, USD, 
CZK, CNY and KZT to EUR exchange rates is shown below: 

Effect of 5% RUB depreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% RUB appreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% USD depreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% USD appreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% CZK depreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% CZK appreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% CNY depreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% CNY appreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% KZT depreciation against EUR 
Effect of 5% KZT appreciation against EUR 

(d) Insurance risk 

Total effect 
2013 

TEUR 
(52,043) 

52,043 
(335) 

335 
(5,461) 

5,461 
{13,561) 

13,561 
(8, I 08) 

8,108 

Total effect 
2012 

TEUR 
(57,947) 

57,947 
(242) 

242 
(2,110) 

2,110 
(8,896) 

8,896 
(6,633) 

6,633 

The main risk faced by the Group as part of the insurance business is the difference in actual and expected 
claims for insurance benefits and claims. lnsmance risk on insurance contracts is divided into price risk 
and the reserve deficiency risk. 

Price risl{ 
Price risk arises due to the fact that insurance premiums may not be sufficient to cover future losses and 
expenses on insurance contracts. To manage price risk the Group regularly analyses profitability in the 
context of insurance products and makes appropriate adjustments in pricing and underwriting policies of 
the Group. 

Reserve deficiency risl{ 
Reserve deficiency risk arises from the unce1tainty regarding the development of loss reserves in the 
future and takes into account the likelihood that insurance rese1ves are insufficient to meet the Group's 
obligations to policyholders. Managing this risk is performed through regular checking adequacy of loss 
reserves and loss analysis of insurance products including sensitivity analysis of insurance reserves to 
changes in expected insurance contract loss rates. 

Insurance risks are reduced through diversi fication of a large portfolio of insurance contracts, as well as 
the allocation of geographic regions, which is the Group 's main criterion when determining insurance risk 
concentrations. Questions related to variable nature of risks are also addressed by careful selection and 
implementation of underwriting strategy, as well as through the use of reinsurance. 

The Group uses reinsurance contracts as part of its program to reduce the risks. Insurance risk is 
transferred to reinsurance on a pro rata basis and dispropmtionate basis. Most reinsurance contracts are 
presented by propm1ionate reinsurance (quota/surplus reinsurance) combined with excess of Joss 
reinsurance. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(e) Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with 
the Group's processes, personnel, technology and infi·astructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group's 
operations and are faced by all business entities. 

The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses 
and damage to the Group's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures 
that restrict initiative and creativity. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational 
risk is assigned to senior management of the Group. This responsibility is supp011ed by the development 
of standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas: 

• requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of 
transactions; 

• requirements for the reconcil iation and monitoring of transactions; 
• compliance with regulatory and other legal requi rements; 
• documentation of controls and procedures; 
• requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls 

and procedures to address the risks identified; 
• requirements for the rep011ing of operational losses and proposed remedial action; 
• development of contingency plans; 
• training and professional development; 
• ethical and business standards; 
• risk mitigation, including insurance where th is is effective. 

Compliance with Group standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by 
internal audit. The individual subsidiaries have their local internal audit teams which also cooperate with 
the Group internal audit on PPF Group level. The results of internal audit reviews are discussed with the 
management of the business unit to which they relate with summaries submitted to senior management 
of the Group. 

(f) Capital management 

The Company considers share capital, share premium, statutory reserves and other reserves as part of the 
capital. The Company's policy is to maintain capital base adequate to its investments in subsidiaries so 
as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, sustain future development of the business and 
meet the capital requirements related to its funding operations. There are no regulato•y capital 
requirements for the Company and there have been no material changes in the Company's management 
of capital during the year. 

Some of the Company's subsidiaries maintain capital adequacy in compliance with local regulatory 
requirements which require the respective entities to maintain the ratio of total capital to total risk
weighted assets at or above certain minimum level. The ratios are calculated based on financial 
statements prepared in accordance with local accounting standards. Some of the subsidiaries also operate 
its capital adequacy in compliance with the methodology set out by the Bank for International 
Settlements in connection with commitments arising from funding operations. The Group's policy in this 
respect is to support the subsidiaries with capital as necessary in order to maintain the subsidiaries' full 
compliance with capital regulations described above. 
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5. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 

Non-cutTen! assets and liabilities classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013 represent all assets 
and liabilities of PPF Insurance (PSC) (Note I) and assets acquired through co uti decisions on defaulted 
mmigages (repmied under other assets in the table below). In the segment analysis (Note 6), non-current 
assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented within the Russian Federation segment. No 
assets or liabilities classified as held for sale were repmied as at 31 December 2012. 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due fi·om banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Financial assets available-for-sale 
Deferred tax assets 
Intangible assets 
Property and equipment 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to banks and other financial institutions 
Insurance and other provisions 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 
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2013 
TEUR 

571 
2,444 
3,761 

624 
628 

15 
6,681 

14,724 

1 
1,431 

142 

1,574 



6. Segment reporting 

Home Credit B. V. 
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Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's geographical segments based on the Group's management and internal reporting structure. Segment information in respect of the Group's 
business segments is not presented as the Group's operations are concentrated in one main business segment only, consumer lending products. 

The Group operates in six principal geographical areas, the Russian Federation, the Czech Republic, the Slovak Republic, the Republic of Belarus, the Republic of Kazakhstan and the People's 
Republic of China The geographical segments are based on the geographical location of assets which corresponds to the geographical location of customers at the same time. 

The People's Republic of China and the Republic of Kazakhstan became the Group's new segments of operation i~ 2012 after the Group began to exercise control over entities operating in these 
geographical locations in July and December 2012 respectively. 

CF Commercial Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd., Home Credit Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. and PPF Vietnam Finance Company LLC, whi ch as of 31 December 2013 were not treated as 
consolidated subsidiaries (Note I), are not included in the segment reporting. 

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm' s length basis. The 
Group's senior management is the chief operating decision maker which reviews the Group's internal reporting on a regular basis to assess performance of individual segments and to allocate the 
Group's resources accordingly. 

Information on individual segments is presented before consolidation eliminations (which are presented in a separate column). Current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities are excluded 
from segment assets and liabilities. 

Russian Federation Czech Republic Slovak Republic 

2013 2013 2013 
TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Revenue from external 
> customers- 2,632,626 32,478 26,781 

Inter-segment revenue 7.233 

Total revenue 2,639.859 32.478 26.781 

Net interest income from 
external customers 1,382,593 18,230 18,164 
Inter-segment net interest 
income 7.233 (102) (634) 

Total net interest income 1.389.826 18,128 17,530 

Belarus 

2013 
TEUR 

60,585 

60.585 

34,662 

(962) 

33,700 

Kazakhstan 

2013 
TEUR 

215,770 

215.770 

109,606 

(4.499) 

105,107 

China 

2013 
TEUR 

290,140 

290,140 

203,646 

203.646 

Other Unallocated 1 

2013 2013 
TEUR TEUR 

5,113 8,134 
327 2.252 

5,440 10.386 

4, 138 (8.555) 

(60) (8 12) 

4.078 (9,367) 

2 
Unallocated items represent items of revenue, operating expense, assets, liabilities and equity which cannot be reasonably allocated to the geographical segments. 
Revenue from e>.'ternal customers comprises interest income, fee and commission income and gross insurance premiums earned. 
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Eliminations Consolidated 

2013 2013 
TEUR TEUR 

- 3.27 1.627 
(9,812) 

(9.812) 3,271,627 

- 1.762,484 

(164) 

(164) 1.762.484 
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6. Segment reporting (continued) 

Russian Federation Czech Republic Slovak Republic Belarus Ka7..akhstan China Other Unallocated 1 Eliminations Consolidated 

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Income tax expense (67,231) (5,672) (8, 150) (2,696) (14,836) (19,247) 30 3,528 - (114,274) 

Segment result 164,454 19.730 25.416 7,799 60.908 72,706 (43,235) 18.347 (1 ,688) 324.437 

Depreciation and 
amortization (54,243) (1,096) (327) (2, 117) (2,546) (1,932) (13,702) - 2,892 (73,071) 
Other significant 
non-cash expenses 2 (1,074,931) (6,3 I 9) (4,237) (4,840) (50,541) (47,003) (2,554) - - (1, 190,425) 
Capital expenditure (80,771) (1 ,169) (410) (4,099) (14,215) (2,439) (31,583) - 6,602 (128.084) 

Segment assets 3 7,512.335 105.731 77.281 169,755 552,089 775.990 104.345 188.828 (238.595) 9.247,759 

Investments in associates 3,589 - - - - - - - - 3,589 

Segment liabilities 3 6.448,585 34,154 29.491 133.540 417.286 489.835 58,534 366.206 (229.036) 7.748.595 

Segment equity 3 1,093.021 76.100 51.978 33.619 135.311 268.846 47,642 (164,487) (9,559) 1.532.471 

2 
Unallocated items represent items of revenue, operating e>..-pense, assets, liabilities and equity which cannot be reasonably allocated to the geographical segments. 
Other significant non-cash expenses are represented by impairment losses on financial and non-financial assets. 
Consolidation adjustments are included in Eliminations. 
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Home Credit B.V. 
Notes to 1he Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

6. Segment reporting (continued) 
Russian Czech Slovak Belarus Kazakhstan China Other Unallocated' Eliminations Consolidated 

Federation Republic Republic 

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Revenue from external customers2 1,919,258 33,467 48,518 39,420 - 90,246 1,318 8,341 - 2,140,568 
Inter-segment revenue 696 - - - - - 48 2.526 (3.270) 

Total revenue 1,919.954 33,467 48,518 39.420 - 90.246 1.366 10.867 {3.270} 2,140.568 

Net interest income from external 
customers 928,612 19,051 37,251 16,728 - 62,416 1,099 (8, 178) - 1,056,979 
Inter-segment net interest income 696 - (1,858) (862) - - 43 1.946 35 

Total net interest income 929,308 19,051 35,393 15,866 - 62.416 1.142 {6.232} 35 1.056.979 

Income tax expense (124,605) (9,177) (3,027) (234) - (98) 278 (1 ,947) - (138,810) 

Segment result 477,256 32.612 19,608 {4.195} - 16.529 (21,122) (13.215) (1.790) 505,683 

Depreciation and amortization (35,553) (920) (355) (1,963) - (1, 150) (13,065) - 3,854 (49,152) 
Other significant non-cash 
expenses3 (446,854) (7,632) (9,987) (1,339) - (12,598) (20) - - (478,430) 
Capital expenditure (96,908) (1 ,426) (421) (1,762) - (505) (15,639) (70) 3,889 (112,842) 

Segment assets4 8.005.922 184,~5 16~.863 120.418 399.866 411.054 75,397 197.375 (154.513) 9.404.277 

Investments in associates 2,537 - - - - - - - - 2,537 

Segment liabilities4 6,837.236 97,119 124.507 98.190 284.431 240.559 46.574 308,096 (145,083) 7.891.629 

Segment equity4 1.160,993 78,40~- 44,320 21,852 114.914 170,407 31.357 (108.219) (9.430) 1,504,599 

Unallocated items represent items of revenue, operating expense, assets, liabilities and equity which cannot be reasonably allocated to the geographical segments. 
Revenue from external customers comprises interest income and fee and commission income. 
Other significant non-cash expenses are represented by impairment losses on financial and non-financial assets. 
Consolidation adjustments are included in Eliminations. 
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for the yenr ended 31 Dece111ber 2013 

7. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

(a) Fail· values of financial instruments 

The Group has performed an assessment of fair values of its financial instruments to determine whether 
it is practicable within the constraints of timeliness and cost to determine their fair values with sufficient 
reliability. 

As at 31 December 2013 fair values of the following financial instruments differed fJ-mn their carrying 
amount shown in the statement of financial position: 

Loans to customers 
Current accounts and deposits from customers 
Debt securities issued 
Subordinated liabilities 

Note 

10 
18 
20 
23 

Carrying amount 
2013 

TEUR 

7,171,284 
(5, I 05,402) 
(1,120,915) 

(511,461) 

Fair Value 
2013 

TEUR 

7,155,421 
(5,086,384) 
(I, 124,688) 

(515,300) 

As at 31 December 2012 fair values of the following financial instruments differed from their carrying 
amount shown in the statement of financial position: 

Current accounts and deposits from customers 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 

Note 

18 
19 

Carrying amount 
2012 

TEUR 

(4,723,571) 
(1,310,979) 

Fair Value 
2012 

TEUR 

(4,726,542) 
(1,314,816) 

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value, between those 
whose fair value is based on quoted market prices (Level I) or calculated using valuation techniques 
where all the model inputs are observable in the market, typically interest rates and foreign exchange 
rates, (Level 2) or calculated using valuation techniques where significant model inputs are not 
observable in the market (Level 3): 

Note Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total 
2013 TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Positive fair value of derivative instruments II 8,208 10,700 18,908 

Financial assets available-for-sale 12 158,505 158,505 

Negative fair value of derivative instruments 21 (17,928) (34) (17,962) 

158,505 (9,720) 10,666 159,451 

Note Levell Level2 Level3 Total 
2012 TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Positive fair value of derivative instruments II 9,056 10,534 19,590 

Financial assets available-for-sale 12 680,447 21,057 701,504 

Negative fair value of derivative instruments 21 (11,401) (34) (11,435) 

680,447 18,712 10,500 709,659 

There were no transfers between Level I, 2 and 3 in 2013 or 2012. 
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.for the year ended 31 December 2013 

7. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued) 

Reconciliation of movements in Level 3 : 2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

Financial assets 
Balance as at I January 10,534 60,660 

Net gains/(losses) recorded in profit or loss (included in Net 
losses on financial assets and liabilities) 1,603 (40,327) 
Net losses recorded in other comprehensive income (1,437) (900) 
Purchases 2,379 
Settlements (2,379) {8,899) 

Balance as at 31 December 10,700 10,534 

Fair values of derivative instruments presented in Level 3 represent foreign currency derivatives, refer to 
Note 11 and 2 1. 

Valuation techniques used for Level 3 financial instruments are based on discounted cash flow models 
where future contractual cash flows are discounted to the present value. All the financial instruments 
presented under the Level 3 category were contracted in the Republic of Belams. The availability of 
market data to be used for the determination of the discount rates used for these instruments is limited. 
Therefore, the Group estimated the discount rates based on official interest rates declared by the National 
Bank of the Republic of Belarus. If the level of the discount rates as of 3 1 December 2013 had been 
higher or lower than the discount rates estimated by the Group, the fair values of Level 3 assets and 
liabilities would have been lower or higher respectively. 

The calculation of fa ir values of Level 3 is the responsibility of local treasury teams of respective Group 
entities, which on a monthly basis carry out the calculations based on a pre-determined valuation model 
and inputs. Heads of the local treasury teams approve the calculation outputs. 

The fa ir value of the foreign currency derivative instruments is sensitive to changes in BYR/EUR 
foreign currency exchange rate and to changes in interest rates. The effect of change of BYR/EUR rate 
for +/- 1% on positive fair value of derivative instruments is TEUR 277/ ( 173) (31 December 20 12: 
TEUR 218/{158)), the effect of change of interest rate for +/- 100 basis points is TEUR 31 I (32) 
(31 December 2012: TEUR 55/(56)). 
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 

8. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 
Current accounts 
Current accounts with central banks 
Placements with financial institutions due within one month 

2013 
TEUR 

216,895 
429,596 
155,293 
124,699 

926,483 

2012 
TEUR 

245,279 
564,984 
20 1,434 
198,390 

1,210,087 

9. Due from baniG, other financial institutions and holding companies 

Loans and term deposits with banks, other financial institutions and 
holding companies due in more than one month 
Loans and advances provided under repo operations 
Minimum reserve deposits with central banks 
Other 

2013 
TEUR 

166,750 

190,937 
52,536 

10 

410,233 

2012 
TEUR 

169,558 

167,464 
57,242 

7 

394,271 

The minimum reserve deposits are mandatOI)' non-interest bearing deposits whose withdrawals are 
restricted and which are maintained in accordance with regulations issued by central banks in count ries 
in which the Group's banking entities operate. 
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10. Loans to customers 

Gross amount 
Cash loan receivables 
POS loan receivables 
Revolving loan receivables 
Mortgage loan receivables 
Car loan receivables 
Loans to corporations 
Other 

Collect ive allowances for impairment 
Cash loan receivables 
POS loan receivables 
Revolving loan receivables 
Mot1gage loan receivables 
Car loan receivables 
Loans to corporations 
Other 

Specific allowances for impairment 
Loans to corporations 

Home Cretlit JJ. 1'. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

5,009,642 4,299,859 
2,212,836 1,945,888 

994,790 716,690 
92,411 95,725 
44,315 112,565 

4,504 3,8 12 
1,9 17 1,498 

8,360,415 7,176,037 

(808,836) (401,791) 
(219,114) (149,743) 
(136,319) (70,474) 

(3, 119) (5,226) 
( 19,112) (15,998) 

(981) (310) 
(386) (4222 

(1,187,867) (643,964) 

(I ,264) (1,432) 

(1,264) p,432} 

7,171,284 6,530,641 

In 2013 the Group experienced an increase in the balance of allowances for impairment, which was 
primarily attributable to an increase in customer loan delinquencies across the Russian consumer loan 
market. 

In 2009 the Group started regular sales of pools of certain customer loan receivables to related parties. 
The receivables sold were derecognized by the Group and the right to receive the contingent part of the 
sales price was recognized as a financial asset available-for-sale and was measured at fair value. 

In January 2012 the receivables sale agreements were amended. Based on the amendments, the Group 
sells its future receivables at a fixed price above their face value which is regularly agreed between the 
parties on arm's length principles. The future contingent purchase price is no longer paid for future 
receivables or receivables sold in the past by the Group. The Group obtained the right to receive TEUR 
56,152 in cash as a compensation for the future sales price component for the receivables assigned prior 
to the amendments. The gain ofTEUR 26,239 recognized in 2012 in connection with the amendment of 
agreements is reported under other operating income, refer to Note 31. 

ln2012 and 2013 the Group executed further agreements on sales ofpools of loan receivables to related 
parties whereby the Group sells its future receivables at a fixed price above their face value which is 
regularly agreed between the pat1ies on arm's length principles. 

As at 31 December 2013 cash loan receivables of TEUR 135,048 served as collateral for debt securities 
(Note 20). As at 31 December 2012 car loan receivables of TEUR 82,868 and revolving loan receivables 
ofTEUR 78,897 served as collateral for bank loan facilities (Note 19). 
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10. Loans to customers (continued) 

Analysis of movements in allowances for impairment Note 

Balance as at I January 
Balance acquired by business combinations 
Translation difference 
Impairment losses recognized in the statement 
of comprehensive income 
Amount related to loans written off and disposed of 

Balance as at 31 December 

32 

2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

645,396 3 12,806 
30,41 5 

(98,721) 5,0 19 

1, 185,949 478,428 

(543,493) (181,272) 

1,189,131 645,396 

The Group has estimated the impairment on loans to c ustomers in accordance with the accounting policy 
described in Note 3(c)(vii) . Changes in collection estimates could s ignificantly affect the carrying 
amount of loans to customers and related impairment losses recognized. 

11. Positive fair value of derivative instruments 

Positive fair value of trading derivative instruments 
Positive fair value of hedging derivative instruments 

Note 

36 
36 

2013 
TEUR 

11,266 
7,642 

18,908 

Cash flows from the hedging derivative instruments are expected to occur in 2014-2016. 

12. Financial assets available-for-sale 

Debt securities 
Equity securities 

- 53 -

2013 
TEUR 

152,791 
5,7 14 

158,505 

2012 
TEUR 

17,491 
2,099 

19,590 

2012 
TEUR 

70 I ,504 

701,504 



13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Home Cretlif B.V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financia l Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items (netted for all jurisdictions): 

Due from banks, other financial institutions 
and holding companies 
Loans to customers 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
Carrying value of property and equipment 
Other assets 
Debt securities issued 
Tax loss carry forward 
Other 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

Net deferred tax assets 

Assets 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

285 10,015 

47,075 9,707 
648 2,134 

99 14 
25,814 10,385 

86 
6 374 

35,579 24,568 

109,592 57,197 

Liabilities Net 
2013 2012 2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

(5,247) (I ,415) (4,962) 8,600 

(6,80 I) (7,893) 40,274 1,814 
(1,826) (I ,462) (1,178) (672) 

(23,679) (15,528) (23,580) (15,514) 
(23,133) (7,933) 2,681 (2,452) 

(746) (907) (660) (907) 
6 374 

(3,464) (3,40 I) 32, 115 21,167 

(64,896) (38,539) 44,696 18,658 

44,696 18,658 

As at 31 December 2013 the Group incurred tax losses in recent years in amount of TEUR 261,058 
(31 December 2012: TEUR 221,419) available to be carried forward and off-set against fu ture taxable 
income. To the extent that it is not considered likely that taxable profits will be available against which 
the unused tax losses can be utilized, the deferred tax assets are not recognized. The unutilized tax losses 
expire in the period fi·om 20 14 to 2022. 

Ycnt· of expiration 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Total 

Analysis of movements in net defetTed tax assets 

Net deferred tax asset as at I January 
Deferred tax income for the year 
Deferred tax recognized directly in equity 
Additions from business combinations 
Net foreign exchange differences 

Balance as at 31 Decembct· 
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2013 
TEUR 

119 
10,675 
24,009 

1,376 
18,667 
11,447 
23 ,492 
18,4 12 

152,86 1 

261,058 

2013 
TEUR 

18,658 
31,947 

(233) 
(3,810) 
(I ,866) 

44,696 

2012 
TEUR 

8,906 
19,732 
20,501 

1,967 
15,358 
11 ,337 
24,37 1 

119,247 

221,419 

2012 
TEUR 

2,248 
17,083 
(123) 
(347) 
(203) 

18,658 



14. Investments in associates 

Home Credit B. 1-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

As at 31 December 20 13 the Group had the following investments in associates: 

Country of 
incorporation 

Spolecnost pro informacni databaze (JSC) Czech Republic 
Filcommerce Holdings, Inc. Philippines 
Equifax Credit Services (LLC) Russian Federation 

Ownership interest Carrying amount 

2013 
(%) 

26.00 
40.00 

2013 
TEUR 

25.00 3,589 ------'---

3,589 

As at 31 December 20 12 the Group had the following investments in associates: 

Country of 
incorporation 

Spolecnost pro informacni databaze (JSC) Czech Republic 
Equi£1x Credit Services (LLC) Russian Federation 
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Ownership interest Carrying amount 

2012 
(%) 

26.00 

2012 
TEUR 

30.72 2,537 
------'---

2,537 



Home Credit B. 1-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

15. Intangible assets 

Goodwill Software Presen t value Intangible Other Total 
2013 of future assets intangible 

profits not yet in usc assets 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Acquisition cost 
Balance as at I January 2013 3,469 129,302 7,011 2,861 142,643 
Additions through business 1,533 9,802 29 11 ,364 
combinations 
Additions 38,496 24,446 397 63,339 
Disposals (I ,653) (121) (1 ,774) 
Transfers 14,504 (13,355) (1 ,838) (689) 
Translation diflerence (15,026) (646) (1 ,182) (133) (16,987) 

Balance as at31 December 2013 3,469 167,156 9,156 16,920 1,195 197,896 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance as at I January 2013 81,338 649 81 ,987 
Charge tor the year 25,883 3,850 83 29,816 
Disposals (880) (880) 
Transfers 978 10 988 
Translation difference (8,620) (254) (54) (8,928) 

llalancc as at 31 December 2013 98,699 3,596 688 102,983 

Carrying amouut 

at 1 January 2013 3,469 47,964 7,011 2,212 60,656 

at31 Decembcl'2013 3,469 68,457 5,560 16,920 507 94,913 

Present value of future profits represents the net present value of the expected afier-tax cash flows of the portfolio of long
term insurance contracts recognized as an intangible asset in connection with the acquisition of insurance companies in 20 13 
(Note 1). 
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15. Intangible assets (continued) 

Goodwill Software Intangible assets Other Total 
2012 not yet in usc intangible 

assets 
TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Acquisition cost 
Balance as at I January 2012 89,983 6,952 692 97,627 
Additions through business combinations 3,469 3,688 1,894 9,05 1 
Additions 31,707 14,254 263 46,224 
Disposals (273) (14,367) (36) (14,676) 
Transfers 1,913 45 1,958 
Translation difl'erence 2,284 172 3 2,459 

Balance as at31 December 20 12 3,469 129,302 7,011 2,861 142,643 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance as at I January 2012 58,265 586 58,85 1 
Additions through business combinations 2,500 4 2,504 
Charge for the year 19,193 64 19,257 
Disposals (273) (36) (309) 
Translc rs 181 23 204 
Translation diflerence 1,472 8 1,480 

Balance as at 31 December 2012 81,338 649 81,987 

Canying amount 

at I January 2012 31,718 6,952 106 38,776 

at31 Decem bet· 2012 3,469 47,964 7,011 2,212 60,656 
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16. Property and equipment 

2013 Buildings Equipment Vehicles Other tangible Total 
assets 

TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 
Acquisition cost 
Balance as at I January 2013 130,190 225,414 6,450 212 362,266 
Additions through business 15 91 16 122 
combinations 
Additions 2,777 67,533 1,400 347 72,057 
Disposals (8) (6,282) (953) (I) (7,244) 
Transfers and other changes 31 432 50 513 
Translation difference (14,475) (26,408) {602) (55) (41,540) 

Balance as at 31 December 2013 118,530 260,780 6,361 503 386,174 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at I January 2013 27,628 93,621 3,759 125,008 
Charge for the year 2,574 39,773 908 43,255 
Disposals (I) (4,897) (931) (5,829) 
Transfers and other changes (3) 553 11 561 
Translation difference (3,2 12) (10,812) (329) {14,353) 

Balance as at 31 Decembe1· 2013 26,986 118,238 3,418 148,642 

I m pa inn en t 
Balance as at I January 201 3 
Impairment losses recognized 4,566 4,566 
Translation difference (301) (301) 

Balance as at 31 December 2013 4,265 4,265 

Carrying amount 

at 1 January 2013 102,562 131,793 2,691 212 237,258 

at 31 December 2013 87,279 142,542 2,943 503 233,267 
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16. Property and equipment (continued) 

2012 Buildings Equipment Vehicles Other tangible Total 
assets 

TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 
Acquisition cost 
Balance as at 1 January 2012 129,664 122,665 6,116 281 258,726 
Additions through business 19,123 427 19,550 
combinations 
Additions 254 81,840 692 728 83,5 14 
Disposals (5,969) (934) (802) (7,705) 
Transfers and other movements (4,413) 4,454 ( 41) 
Translation difference 4,685 3,301 190 5 8,181 

Balance as at 31 December 2012 130,190 225,414 6,450 212 362,266 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 1 January 2012 24,305 57,631 3,776 85,712 
Additions through business 12,266 12,266 
combinations 
Charge for the year 2,628 26,459 808 29,895 
Disposals (4,519) (932) (5,451) 
Transfers and other changes (146) 239 (!) 92 
Translation difference 841 1,545 108 2,494 

Balance as at 31 Decem bet· 2012 27,628 93,621 3,759 125,008 

Carrying amount 

at 1 January 2012 105,359 65,034 2,340 281 173,014 

at 31 December 2012 102,562 131,793 2,691 212 237,258 
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17. Other assets 

Deferred acquisition costs of insurance contracts 
Trade receivables and settlement with suppliers 
Acquisition of subsidiaries 
Outstanding selling price for receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Other taxes receivable 
Non-life amounts ceded to reinsurers from insurance provisions 
Accrued income from insurance fees 
Receivable arising out of insurance and re-insurance operations 
Goods held for resale 
Other 

Specific allowances for impairment on settlement with suppliers and 
other assets 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

60,504 
39,965 25,643 
34,500 34,500 
32,976 52,522 
22, 199 37,475 

7,103 4,994 
4,254 
3,025 76,964 
2,9 15 

526 8,047 
4,635 3,973 

212,602 244,118 

(189) (52) 

212,413 244,066 

Acquisition of subsidiaries represents the consideration paid for the acquJSltlon of shares in 
CF Commercial Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd and Home Credit Consumer Finance Co., Ltd, which are 
not treated as consolidated subsidiaries because the Group is still in the process of obtaining the 
regulatory approvals for the acquisition of those entities (Note 1). 

Deferred acquisition costs of insurance contracts were recognized as at 3 1 December 20 13 following the 
acquisition by the Group of certain insurance operations (Note 1 ). 

Analysis of movements in allowances for impairment 

Balance as at I January 
Additions resulting from business combinations 
Impairment losses recognized in the statement 
of comprehensive income 
Reversal of impairment losses recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income 
Amounts related to assets sold and written off 
Translation difference 

Balance as at 31 December 

18. Current accounts and deposits from customers 

Term deposits 
Current accounts and demand deposits 
Other 
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2013 
TEUR 

52 
12 

415 

(505) 

227 
(12) 

189 

2013 
TEUR 

4,632,272 
471,352 

1,778 

5,105,402 

2012 
TEUR 

69 
1 

2 

(2 1) 
1 

52 

2012 
TEUR 

4,24 1,569 
480,943 

1,059 

4,723,571 



Home Credit B. I-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

19. Due to banks and other financial institutions 

Unsecured loans 
Secured loans 
Loans received under repo operations 
Other balances 

2013 
TEUR 

594,649 
3,636 

6,136 

604,421 

2012 
TEUR 

755,997 
136,184 
410,456 

8,342 

1,310,979 

The following table provides an analysis of secured loans shown above by types of collateral 
as at 31 December: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Car loan receivables 68,698 
Revolving loan receivables 55,286 
Other collateral 3,636 12,200 

3,636 136,184 

The amounts shown in the table above represent the balances of loans and do not necessarily represent 
the fair value of the collateral. 

As at 31 December 2013 the balance of loans received under repo operations was TEUR 0 
(31 December 2012: TEUR 41 0,456). As at 31 December 20 12 such loans were secured by financial 
assets available-for-sale. 
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20. Debt securities issued 

Interest 
mtc 

Unsecured RUB bonds issue 5 ofMRUB 4,000 Variable 

Stock exchange RUB bonds issue 03 of 
Variable 

MRUB 4,000 

Loan pat1icipationnotes issue 6 ofMUSD 500 Fixed 

Stock exchange RUB bonds issue 0 I of 
Variable 

MRUB 3,000 

Unsecured RUB bonds issue 6 ofMRUB 5,000 Variable 

CZK promissory notes issue of MCZK 500 Zero-
coupon 

Unsecured RUB bonds issue 7 ofMRUB 5,000 Variable 

Unsecured CZK bonds issue 4 of MCZK 2,900 Zero-
coupon 

Stock exchange RUB bonds issue 02 of 
Fixed 

MRUB 3,000 

Unsecured CZK bonds issue 5 ofMCZK 3,750 Fixed 

Cash loan receivables backed notes ofMRUB 
Variable 

5,000 

Unsecured KZT bond issue 1 ofMKZT 7,000 Fixed 

Home Credit/J. 1.-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Amount outstanding 

Final maturity 2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

April2013 100,917 

October 2013 100,576 

March 2014 368,154 383,329 

April2014 67,291 75,606 

June 2014 110,908 124,616 

September 2014 17,543 18,169 

April2015 112,231 126,027 

September 2015 94,952 96,751 

February 20 16 66,494 

June 2016 141,450 154,163 

November 2021 109,460 

November 20 16 32,432 

1,120,915 1,180,154 

USD denominated loan pat1icipation notes issue 6 were issued 111 March 20 II through Eurasia 
Capital S.A. (refer to Note 1). 

RUB denominated stock exchange bonds issue 01 were issued in April 2011 with a coupon rate 
resettable at coupon dates. 

RUB denominated bonds issue 6 were issued in June 2009 with a coupon rate resettable at option dates. 
In December 20 I 2 the Group reset a new coupon rate valid till the final maturity date. 

RUB denominated bonds issue 7 were issued in April 20 I 0 with a coupon rate set for two years. ln April 
2012 the Group reset a new coupon rate valid till the final maturity date. 

RUB denominated cash loans receivables backed notes were issued in November 20 I 3 through HC 
Finance (LLC) and Eurasia Structured Finance No.3 B .V. (refer to Note I) with a fixed coupon rate 
which is valid until the coupon payment date on 19 January 2017 and capped floating coupon rate from 
20 January 2017 till the final maturity. The bondholders are entitled to require early redemption of the 
bonds in November 20 I 6. As at 3 1 December 20 I 3 cash loan receivables of TEUR 135,048 served as 
collateral for these notes. 
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21. Negative fair value of derivative instruments 
Note 

Negative fair value of trading derivative instruments 
Negative fair value of hedging derivative instruments 

36 
36 

2013 
TEUR 

16,095 
1,867 

17,962 

Cash flows from the hedging derivative instruments are expected to occur in 2014. 

22. Insurance and other provisions 

Provisions for unearned premiums 
Provisions for outstanding claims 
Provision for litigations 
Other insurance provisions 
Other provisions 

2013 
TEUR 

120,809 
3,760 
3,397 

176 
2,193 

130,335 

2012 
TEUR 

3,465 
7,970 

11,435 

2012 
TEUR 

Insurance provisions were recognized as at 31 December 201 3 following the acquisition by the Group of 
cet1ain insurance operations (Note 1). 

Other provisions were recognized in connection with a business optimisation programme launched in 
Russia. They represent restructuring provisions and provisions for closure of offices. 

Provisions fot· unearned premiums 

Balance as at I January 
Additions through business combinations 
Premiums written during a year 
Premiums earned during the year 
Translation difference 

Balance as at 31 December 

Provisions for outstanding claims 

Balance as at I January 
Additions through business combinations 
Claims incurred in the current year 
Adjustments for losses incurred in previous years 
Claims paid during the year 
Translation difference 

Balance as at 31 December 
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2013 
TEUR 

120,108 
81,344 

(72,451) 
(8, 192) 

120,809 

475 
6,768 
(347) 

(2,896) 
(240) 

3,760 

2012 
TEUR 



Home Credit B. V. 
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 

23. Subordinated liabilities 

24. 

Loan pa11icipation notes issue ofMUSD 500 
Loan participation notes issue ofMUSD 200 

Interest Final maturity 
rate 

Fixed 
Fixed 

April2020 
April2021 

Amount outstanding 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

364,925 
146,536 

511,461 

379,747 

379,747 

Subordinated loan pmiicipation notes issue ofMUSD 500 were issued in October 2012 through Eurasia 
Capital S.A. (refer to Note 1). The Group has an early redemption option exercisable on 24 April 2018 
(the reset date). After the reset date the interest rate is determined as a variable rate. 

Subordinated loan pmiicipation notes issue of MUSD 200 were issued in October 2013 through Eurasia 
Capital S.A. (refer to Note I). The Group has an early redemption option exercisable on 17 April 2019 
(the reset date). After the reset date the interest rate is determined as a variable rate. 

Other liabilities 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

Accrued employee compensation 84,999 114,638 
Settlement with suppliers 67,933 53 ,770 
Customer loan overpayments 30,235 25,998 
Other taxes payable 24,634 44,190 
Accrued expenses 19,877 15,964 
Deferred income and prepayments 12,927 16,934 
Advances received 663 445 
Other 15,257 13,804 

256,525 285,743 
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25. Equity 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes /o !he Conso/idaled Financial S/alemen/s 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

At 31 December 2013 the share capital of the Group comprised I ,250,000,000 (31 December 2012: 
I ,250,000,000) ordinary shares at a par value of EUR 0.57 (31 December 2012: EUR 0.57), of which 
I, 156,174,806 (31 December 2012: 1,156,174,806) shares were issued and fully paid. All issued shares 
bear equal voting rights. The holders of the shares are entitled to receive distributions of profits and 
reserves when declared by the general meeting of the Company. No distributions can be made if the total 
amount of the reserves to be maintained pursuant to the law or the articles of association exceeds the 
Company's equity and the management board has not given its approval to such distribution. 

During 2013 several reductions of the Group's share premium took place: 

Month 

March 
April 
May 
July 
September 
November 
December 

Amount of reduction 
TEUR 

9,800 
39,280 

7,726 
28,901 
11,622 

112,000 
7,263 

216,592 

Amount per one shnre 
EUR 

0.01 
0.03 
0.01 
0.02 
0.01 
0.10 
0.01 

During 2012 dividends were paid out from share premium and other reserves as follows: 

Month 

May 
November 

Source of distribution Amount 
TEUR 

Other reserves I 07,476 
Share premium --------=-1 "-'1,..:...76.::..5:..._ 

119,241 

Amount per one shnrc 
EUR 

0.09 
0.01 

In September 2013 the Group's sole shareholder PPF Group N.V. resolved to increase the Group's share 
premium by TEUR 97,000. The contribution was paid in November 2013. 

In January 2013 the Group's sole shareholder PPF Group N.V. resolved to increase the Group's share 
premium by TEUR 70,000. The contribution is payable upon earlier of the fulfilment of the conditions 
for the completion of the purchase of PPF Vietnam Finance Company LLC (Note I) or 31 December 
2015. The increase in the share premium has not been recorded in equity since the conditions related to 
purchase of PPF Vietnam have not been met. 

In July and September 2012 the Group's share premium was increased by TEUR 249,000 and 
TEUR 6,481 respectively. 

The creation and use of the statutory reserves is limited by legislation and the articles of each company 
within the Group. The legal reserve fund is not available for distribution to the shareholders. 

The translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising from translation of the financial 
statements of companies within the Group with a functional currency other than the presentation 
currency. The translation reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders. 

The hedging reserve represents the effect of the recognition of the effective portion of changes in the fair 
value of hedging instruments in other comprehensive income in equity. The hedging reserve is not 
available for distribution to the shareholders. 
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25. Equity (continued) 

The reserve for business combinations under common control was recognized on the acquisition of 
HC Asia N.Y. in 2012. The reserve for business combinations under common control is not available for 
distribution to the shareholders. 

The revaluation reserve represents the revaluation deficit or surplus, net of deferred tax, recognized on 
changes in the fair value of financial assets available-for-sale. The fair value reserve is not available for 
distribution to the shareholders. 

26. Interest income and interest expense 

Interest income 
Cash loan receivables 
POS loan receivables 
Revolving loan receivables 
Car loan receivables 
Mortgage loan receivables 
Financial assets available-for-sale 
Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 
Financial assets held-to-maturity 
Other 

Interest expense 
Deposits from customers 
Debt securit ies issued 
Due to banks and other financial institutions 
Subordinated liabilities 

27. Fee and commission income 

Insurance commissions 
Penalty fees 
Cash transactions 
Customer payment processing and account maintenance 
Retailers commissions 
Other 
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2013 
TEUR 

1,645,958 
468,169 
262,830 

21 ,974 
9,998 

40,048 
33,780 

396 
337 

2,483,490 

531 ,016 
84,683 
65,856 
39,451 

721,006 

2013 
TEUR 

511,678 
80,107 
61,402 
23,385 
18,7 10 
20,580 

715,862 

2012 
TEUR 

902,172 
315,597 
172,543 
24,162 
12,031 
38,067 
20,976 

68 
396 

1,486,012 

301,916 
89,569 
30,949 
6,599 

429,033 

2012 
TEUR 

500,880 
60,602 
59,455 
23,5 17 

9,393 
709 

654,556 
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28. Fee and commission expenses 

Cash transactions 
Commissions to retailers 
Payments to deposit insurance agencies 
Payment processing and account maintenance 
Other 

29. Insuranceinconte 

Gross premiums earned 
Earned premiums ceded 
Net insurance benefits and claims 
Acquisition costs 

2013 
TEUR 

31,127 
24,825 
22,785 
12,806 
5,993 

97,536 

2013 
TEUR 

72,275 
(3,448) 
(2,096) 

(46,756) 

19,975 

2012 
TEUR 

18,226 
20,701 

8,290 
7,215 
3,566 

57,998 

2012 
TEUR 

Insurance income was recognized during 20 I 3 following the acquisition by the Group of ce1tain 
insurance operations (Note I). 

30. Net losses on financial assets and liabilities 

Net losses on trading derivative instruments 
Net losses on hedging derivative instruments 
Net foreign currency gains 
Net trading (losses)/gains on other financial assets and liabilities 
Other 
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2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

(24,470) (7,301) 
{19,510) {2,054) 

27,900 3,039 
(319) 2,976 

(23) (3,653) 

{16,4222 {6,9932 



Home Credit B. V. 
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31. Other operating income 

Gains on disposal of loan receivables 
Recognized income from excess of acquired net fair value over costs 
Income from other services provided 
Loss on monetary position 
Other 

2013 
TEUR 

109,534 
30,45 1 

8,374 
(3,037) 
12,785 

158,107 

2012 
TEUR 

111,381 

9,533 
(3,711) 

9,649 

126,852 

Gains on disposal of loan receivables relate to sales of customer loan receivables. In 2012 they included 
the gain of TEUR 26,239 recognized in connection with the amendment of the receivables sale 
agreements (Note I 0). 

Income from excess of acquired net fair value over costs was recognized on acquisitions of Home Credit 
Insurance (LLC), PPF Insurance (PSC) and PPF Insurance (FICJSC) (Note 1). 

Loss on monetary position represents the effect of application of lAS 29 - Financial Reporting in 
Hyperinflationary Economies for Home Credit Bank (OJSC) incorporated in the Republic of Belarus. 

32. Impairment losses on financial assets 

Cash loan receivables 
POS loan receivables 
Revolving loan receivables 
Car loan receivables 
Mortgage loan receivables 
Other financial assets 

2013 
TEUR 

834,355 
217,009 
130,423 

4, 198 
(690) 

654 

1,185,949 

2012 
TEUR 

348,689 
87,824 
37,893 

6,597 
(3,109) 

534 

478,428 

During 2013 the Group experienced an increase in impairment losses on financial assets, which was 
primarily attributable to an increase in customer loan delinquencies across the Russian consumer loan 
market. 

33. General administrative expenses 

Employee compensation 
Rental, maintenance and repairs 
Payroll related taxes (including pension contributions) 
Telecommunication and postage 
Professional services 
Adve11ising and marketing 
Information technologies 
Taxes other than income tax 
Travel expenses 
Other 
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2013 
TEUR 

407,933 
106,262 
80,898 
54,368 
53,222 
38, 150 
2 1,648 
20,005 
19,456 
42,503 

844,445 

2012 
TEUR 

290,243 
74,391 
55,144 
43,884 
29, 199 
40,277 
19,457 
10,387 
14,498 
26,408 

603,888 
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for the year ended 31 December 2013 

34. Other operating expenses 

35. 

Depreciation and amot1ization 
Net impairment losses on propet1y, plant and equipment 
Loss on disposal of propet1y and equipment and intang ible assets 
Impairment (reversals)/losses on other non-financial assets 

Income tax expense 

Current tax expense 
Deferred tax benefit 

Total income tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income 

Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Profit before tax 

Income tax using the domestic tax rate of25% 
Efiect of deferred tax assets not recognized 
Non-deductible costs 
Withholding tax 
Non-taxable income 
Etl'ect of tax rates in foreign j urisdictions 
Other 

Total income tax expense 
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2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

73,071 49,152 
4,566 
2,379 1,540 

(90) 2 

79,926 50,694 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

146,221 155,893 
(31,947) (17,083) 

114,274 138,810 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

438,711 644,493 

(109,678) (161,123) 
(11,738) (7,515) 
(27,721) (7,072) 
(10,296) (3 ,710) 

8,721 1,191 
20,522 35,328 
15,916 4,091 

{ll4,274} (138,810} 



36. Derivative financial instruments 

Home Credit JJ. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

As at 3 1 December 2013 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contract type SciVBuy Maturity Notional amount Fair value 
(in thousands of 

JHH-chascd currency) TEUR 

Currency derivatives- trading 

Foreign currency forward contracts 
RUB/USD I month to 3 months 6,499 I2 
EURICZK I month to 3 months 195 (13) 
RUD/USD 3 months to I year 7,221 35 
KZT/USD 3 months to I year 35,528 (308) 

Foreign cmrency swap contracts 
RUB/USD less than I month 57,768 147 
USD/RUB less than I month I8,053 I 
EURIBYR less than I month 14,84 I (23) 
KZT/EUR less than I month 3, 168 24 
EUR/CZK I month to 3 months I00,462 (6,096) 
KZT/USD I month to 3 months 15,164 (322) 
EURIBYR I month to 3 months 464 21 
USD/DYR I month to 3 months 516 I2 
EUR/CZK 3 months to I year 13 1,096 (8,580) 
RUB/USD 3 months to I year 67,120 (395) 
USD/RUB 3 months to I year 66,772 78 
EURIBYR 3 months to I year 4,569 10,128 
USD/BYR 3 months to I year 25 1 528 
USD/EUR 3 months to I year 54 

Currency derivatives - hedging 

Foreign cmrency forward contracts 
RUB/USD I month to 3 months 2,166 48 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
RUB/USD I month to 3 months 64,989 (I ,754) 
RUB/USD 3 months to I year 14,442 (J 13) 
RUB/USD more than I year 180,526 5,137 

Cross cmrency interest rate swaps 
fixed RUB/ floating USD more than I year 72,210 2,456 

Interest rate derivatives 

Interest rate swap contracts 
fixed/floating (RUB) 3 months to I year 33,095 (72) 
fixed/floating (RUB) more than I year 6,619 {5~ 

946 
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36. 

Home Credit B. I-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 I December 2013 

Derivative financial instruments (continued) 

As at 31 December 20 12 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contract type Sell/Buy Maturity Notional amount Fait· value 
(in thousands of 

purchased currency) TEUR 

Currency derivatives - trnding 

Foreign currency forward contracts 
RUBIUSD less than I month 6 
EURJCZK I month to 3 months 277 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
USD/RUB less than I month 223,672 573 
EUR/CZK less than I month 19,55 1 174 
EUR/USD less than 1 month 9,993 18 
EUR/BYR less than I month 7,436 15 
USDIRUB I month to 3 months 103,479 2,491 
RUBIUSD I month to 3 months 103,479 (2,495) 
EURJCZK I month to 3 months 30,988 38 
KZTIUSD I month to 3 months 28,229 (282) 
KZT/EUR I month to 3 months 10,973 ( 119) 
EURJKZT I month to 3 months 8,252 (387) 
EURJCZK 3 months to I year 127, 127 2, 149 
CZK/EUR 3 months to 1 year 25,780 26 
KZT/EUR 3 months to I year 14,251 891 
EURIRUB 3 months to 1 year 4,242 230 
USD/BYR 3 months to 1 year 564 (34) 
EUR/BYR more than I year 5,290 9,969 
USD/BYR more than I year 291 550 

Currency derivatives- hedging 

Foreign currency forward contracts 
RUB/USD 1 month to 3 months 13, 179 (170) 
RUB/USD 3 months to I year 3,766 (4) 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
RU13/USD 3 months to I year 75,3 12 2,099 
RUB/USD more than 1 year 105,434 (4,249) 

Cross currency interest rate swaps 
fixed RUB/ floating USD more than I year 67,780 (3,547) 

Interest rnte derivatives 

J ntcrcst rate swap contracts 
fixed/floating (RUB) 3 months to I year 37,193 253 
fixed/floating (RUB) more than 1 year 44,632 (35) 

8,155 
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37. Commitments 

Hom e Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

The Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commitments take the form of 
approved credit limits related to customer revolving loan accounts, POS loan facil ities, cash loan 
facilities and overdraft facilities. 

2013 2012 
TEU R TEUR 

Revolving loan commitments 964,884 1,403,059 
POS loan commitments 39,777 37,684 
Cash loan commitments 18,810 37,460 
Undrawn overdraft facilities 8,877 

1,023,471 1,487,080 

The total outstanding contractual commitments to extend credit indicated above do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements as many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being 
funded. 

As at 31 December 20 13 the Group reported contractual commitments for the acquisition of property 
and equipment and intangible assets ofTEUR 385 (31 December 2012: TEUR 0). 

As at 31 December 20 13 the balance of loan guarantees issued by the Group was TEUR 120,554 
(3 1 December 20 12: TEUR 136,427). 

38. Operating leases 
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as fo llows: 

2013 2012 
TEU R TEUR 

Less than one year 55,5 15 48,872 
Between one and five years 116,787 103,732 
More than five years 11 ,521 12,973 

183,823 165,577 

The Group leases a number of premises and equipment under operating leases. Lease payments are 
usually increased annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. 

During 2013 TEUR 77,441 (2012: TEUR 58,787) was recognized as an expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income in respect of operating leases. 

39. Contingencies 
Taxation 

The taxation systems in the Russian Federation, the Republic of Belarus, the Republic of Kazakhstan 
and the People's Republic of China are relatively new and are characterized by frequent changes in 
legislation which are subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to 
review and investigation by a number of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines, 
penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during several 
subsequent calendar years. Recent events within the Russian Federation, the Republ ic of Belarus, the 
Republic of Kazakhstan and the People's Republic of China suggest that the tax authorities are taking a 
more asse11ive position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation. 

The fac ts mentioned above may create tax risks in respective countries that are substantially more 
significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities 
based on its interpretations of applicable Russian, Belarusian, Kazakhstan and Chinese tax legislation, 
official pronouncements and court decisions. 
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40. Related party transactions 
The Group has a related party relationship with its ultimate parent company PPF Group N.V., its 
subsidiaries and associates, the Group's key management personnel and other related parties. Related 
party transactions are executed on an arm's length basis. Related party transactions arise primarily from 
funding and treasury transactions as well as fi·om sales of loan receivables reported under other operating 
income (Note 31) and insurance commissions reported under fee and commission income. 

(a) Transactions with the pat·ent company 

Balances included in the statement of financial position 111 relation to transactions with the parent 
company are as follows: 

Note 

Positive fair value of derivative instruments 

Due from banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 

Intangible assets 

Other assets 

Subordinated liabilities 

Other liabilities 

17 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

230 

85,679 114,809 

70 

34,500 34,500 

(78,424) (115,768) 

(441) 

41,755 33,400 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with the parent 
company are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Interest income 7,550 7,750 

Interest expense (9,947) (2,245) 

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets and liabilities (351) 221 

Other operating income (6,962) 

General administrative expenses (308) (302) 

(3,056) (1,538) 
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40. Related party transactions (continued) 

(b) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries 

Balances included in the statement o f financial position in relation to transactions with fellow 
subsidiaries are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Due fi'o m banks, other financial institutions and holding companies 

Loans to customers 

Positive fair value of derivat ive instruments 

Financial assets held-to-maturity 

Other assets 

Current accounts and deposit from customers 

Due to banks and other financial institutions 

Debt securities issued 

Negative fair value of derivative instruments 

Subordinated liabilities 

Other liabilities 

2013 
TEUR 

39,064 

20, 157 

7,249 

660 

3,440 

41 , 143 

(38,616) 

(125,486) 

(92,398) 

(14,959) 

(2,065) 

(18,356) 

(180,167) 

2012 
TEUR 

10,968 

7,7 18 

4,165 

4,993 

3,667 

57, 192 

(2,723) 

(108,720) 

(87,414) 

(738) 

(1 ,678) 

(12,370) 

{124,940} 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with fellow 
subsidiaries are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Interest income 1,065 2,898 

Interest expense ( 19,305) (5,058) 

Fee and commission income 56,837 2, 118 

Fee and commission expense (325) (306) 

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets and liabilities (21 '1 79) 5,770 

Other operating income 132,349 128,079 

General administrative expenses {11,864) (8,1602 

137,578 125,341 

Interest income presented in the table above does not inc lude transaction costs integral to the effective 
interest rate and incurred with fellow subsidiaries. Such transactions had a negative impact on interest 
income ofTEUR 8,345 (20 12: TEUR 12,032). 

As disclosed in Note I 0, the Group sold receivables to related part ies. The related transactions and 
balances are included in other assets (3 1 December 201 3: TEUR 32,976, 
31 December20 12:TEUR52,522) and other operat ing income (2013: TEUR 109,534, 
2012: TEUR 111 ,381). 
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Home Credit B. I-: 
Noles to the Consolidated Financial Sla/emenls 

for /he year ended 3 1 December 2013 

(c) Transactions with the parent company's associates 

Balances included in the statement of financial position in relation to transact ions with the parent 
company's associates are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Other assets 971 57,21 2 

Current accounts and deposits from customers (43,069) 

Debt securities issued (262,265) ( 179,570) 

Subordinated liabilities (1,722) 

Other liabilities (856~ ( I ,396) 

{262,150} (168,545} 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with the parent 
company' s associates are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Interest income 198 

Interest expense (1 0,724) (17,458) 

Fee and commission income 17,695 340,358 

Insurance income (1 ,303) 

Other operating income 14 94 

General administrative expenses (1,026) (2,425) 

4,656 320,767 
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Home Credit B. I-: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 1 December 2013 

(d) Transactions with key management personnel and other related parties 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with members of 
key management arc long-term benefits of TEUR 4,116 (20 12: TEUR 14,91 0) and short-term benefi ts of 
TEUR 23,942 (20 12: TEUR 22,630) comprising salaries, bonuses and non-monetary bene fits. 

As at 31 December 2013 the balance of loans to members of the key management was TEUR 10 
(3 1 December 2012: TEUR 8). 

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company and key management of its subsidiaries are 
considered as the key management of the Group. 

In 20 13 the Group concluded a consultancy service agreement with a company controlled by one of the 
members of its Board of Directors. The consultaney fees of TEUR 7,998 charged in 2013 in relation to 
this agreement are recorded under general administrative expenses, while the re lated liability of TEUR 
2,498 as of31 December 20 13 is recorded under other liabilities. 

As at 3 1 December 2013 the ba lances due fi·om holding companies included an unsecured loan ofTEUR 
22,287 (3 1 December 2012: TEUR 0) provided by the Group to a company controlled by one of the 
members of its Board of Directors. 

41. Workforce 
In 2013 the average number of the Group's employees was 44,674 (2012: 30,604 employees), of which 
three employees were employed in the Netherlands (20 12: one employee). 

42. Subsequent event 
In February 2014 the National Bank of Kazakhstan reduced currency interventions supporting the KZT 
exchange rate and announced a devaluation of KZT. As a result, the KZT exchange rate depreciated by 
nearly 20%. As the devaluation occmred a fter the rep01ting date, these consolidated financial statements 
have not been adjusted for the rate change. The Group carried out a sensitivity analysis of the Group's 
equity to a 20% depreciation of KZT based on positions existing as at 3 1 December 2013. Based on the 
analysis, the negative impact on the Group's equity would be TEUR 32,432. 
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Other Information 

Home Credit B. v: 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the y ear ended 31 December 2013 

Certain information required by Article 392 the Civil Code of the Netherlands, to the extent it is 
applicable to the Company or the Group, as well as the Auditor's Report is included in this part of the 
Consolidated Annual Accounts. 

1. Profit appropriation 
The general meeting is authorised to appropriate the profits that follow from the adoption of the annual 
accounts or to determine how a deficit will be accounted for, as well as to resolve upon distributions, 
provided that the Company's equity exceeds the total amount of the reserves to be maintained pursuant to 
the law or the articles of association. A resolution on any distribution has no consequences if the 
management board has not given its approval to such distribution. 

During 2013 the Company' s share premium reserves were reduced by TEUR 216,592. No decision or 
proposal on the appropriation of the net profit available for distribution has been taken as of the date of 
the issue of these financial statements. 

2. Subsequent events 
Refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 42. 
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Independent auditor's report 

To: the Board ofDirectors of Home Credit B.V. 

Report on the consolidated financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 
31 December 2013 which are part of the financial statements of Home Credit B.V., Amsterdam, 
and comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
then ended and notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management's responsibility 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted 
by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code and for the 
preparation of the directors' report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil 
Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as it determines is 
necessaty to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards 
on Auditing. This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

23608/ 14\V00118171AVN KPMG Accountants N.V .. registered \'lith the trade register in the N-ether'rand s: 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of Home Credit B.V. as at 31 December 20 13 and of its result and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

Pursuant to the legal requirements under Section 2:393 sub 5 at e and f of the Netherlands Civil 
Code, we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors' 
rep01t, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of 
this Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2:392 sub 1 at b- h has been 
annexed. Fmther, we report that the directors' rep01t, to the extent we can assess, is consistent 
with the consolidated financial statements as required by Section 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands 
Civil Code. 

Amstelveen, I 0 March 20 14 

KPMG Accountants N.V. 

B.M. Herngreen RA 
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Directors' Report 
Description of the Company 

Home Credit B.V. 
Date of registration: 28 December 1999 
Registered office: Netherlands, Strawinskylaan 933, I 077 XX Amsterdam 
Identification number: 34126597 
Authorised capital: EUR 7 I 2,500,000 
Issued capital: EUR 659,0 I 9,639 
Paid up capital: EUR 659,019,639 
Principal business: Holding company activities and financing thereof 

General information 

Home Credit B. I": 
Directors· Report 

Home Credit B.V. ( ' HCBV') is the owner of consumer finance providers ('the Group' ). There are both 
fully licensed banks and non-banking entities within the Group. The principal activities of HCBV are: 
(a) the holding of equity stakes in consumer finance companies in the countries of Central and Eastern 
Europe (CEE) and Asia and (b) the securing of the refinancing for these companies from the market and 
from the ultimate parent company. 

Companies that are held by HCBV provide in-store lending to eligible mass retail customers, including 
first-time borrowers, and are the leading providers of such services in most countries in which they 
operate. They provide non-cash, non-collateralised loans for purchases of durable goods at the point of 
sale ("POS loans") and, in the majority of countries in which they operate, they also offer credit cards 
and/or cash loans. In Russia, Belarus and Kazakhstan the Group also offers selected retail banking 
services such as deposit accounts. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 7.7 million active customers 
across its operations: the Czech Republic (operational since 1997), Slovakia ( 1999), the Russian 
Federation (2002), Kazakhstan (2005), Belarus (2007), China (2007), India (20 12), Indonesia (20 13), 
and the Philippines (2013). 

PPF Group N.Y. (hereinafter " PPF") is the majority shareholder (86.62%) of HCBV. PPF invests in 
multiple market segments and is present in sectors such as banking and financial services, 
telecommunications, insurance, real estate, energy, metal mining, agriculture, retail and biotechnology. 
PPF's reach spans from Central and Eastern Europe to Russia and across Asia. PPF Group owns assets 
ofEUR 22.1 billion (as at 30 June 2013). Founded in 1991, PPF is a regulated financial conglomerate 
(as defined by the EU Directive) headquartered in the Netherlands. EMMA OMEGA L TO, an 
investment holding company ultimately owned by Mr. Jii'i Smejc, completed the acquisition of a 
13.38% stake in HCBV in September 2013. 

For more il!(ormation, visilwww.pQ[eu. 

Key Achievements 

In 2013 HCBV reported net profit of EUR 160 million, a 23.6% increase year-on-year mainly due to 
higher dividend income. Total assets and total equity were stable at E UR 1,386 million, EUR 1,033 
million respectively. 

In January 2013 HCBV sold its 9.99% share in Home Credit Bank (JSC), which represents Home 
Credit operations in Kazakhstan (subsequently renamed to Home Credit and Finance Bank (SB JSC)), 
to its subsidiary Home Credit & Finance Bank (LLC). In 2013 the HCBV made several transactions 
related to acquisition and divestment of certain insurance operations in the CIS region. For detailed 
information see Note 9 of the unconsolidated financial statements 
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Staff development and environmental influence 

The average number of employees during 20 13 was 2 (20 12: 1 ). 

HCBV operations' impact on the environment is considered insignificant. 

Composition of the Board of Directors 

Home Credit B. V. 
Directors· Report 

The size and composition of the Board of Directors and the combined experience and expertise of their 
members should reflect the best fit for the profile and strategy of the company. This aim for the best fit, 
in combination with the availability of qualifying candidates, has resulted in HCBV currently having a 
Board of Directors in which all six members are male. In order to increase gender diversity on the 
Board of Directors, in accordance with article 2:276 section 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, HCBV pays 
close attention to gender diversity in the process of recruiting and appointing new members of the Board 
of Directors. HCBV will retain an active and open attitude as regards selecting female candidates. 

Financial instruments and risk management 

HCBV's main strategic risk concerns the appropriateness of investment decisions and ability of its 
equity investments to provide adequate returns. Such risks are mitigated through careful selection of the 
markets on one hand and geographic diversification on the other hand as well as through the proper 
resource allocation to the investments. 

HCBV is exposed to various risks as a result of its activities, primarily credit risk, liquidity risk, market 
risks (interest rate risk and currency risk) and operational risk. 

HCBV's primary exposure to credit risk arises primari ly from the provision of loans to related patt ies. 

Liquidity risk arises from the general funding of HCBV's activities and from the management of its 
positions. HCBV has access to a diversified funding base. Funds are raised using a broad range of 
instruments including debt securities, bank loans and shareholders' equity. 

All financial instruments and positions are subject to market risk: the risk that future changes in market 
conditions may change the value of the instrument. The majority of HCBV's exposure to market risk 
arises in connection with the funding of HCBV's operations with liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies, and to the extent the term structure of interest-bearing assets differs from that of liabilities. 

Operational risk is the risk of arising from a wide variety of causes associated with HCBV's processes, 
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and 
liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements, financial reporting and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. The HCBV's objective is to manage operational 
risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to HCBV's reputation with overall 
cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. 

For detailed information on risk management see Note 4 of the unconsolidated financial statements. 
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Future development 

Home Credit B. I~ 
Directors' Repor/ 

In 2014, HCBV will continue to manage and finance its holdings carefully, use its capital in a 
disciplined way. HCBV's focus will be on managing the business for the sustainable creation of 
shareholders' value against an uncertain macroeconomic backdrop. HCBY will aim to maintain a 
diversified funding base and pursue cost-effectiveness whilst retaining a flexible but disciplined loan 
origination and distribution approach of its holdings in order to respond effectively to any 
macroeconomic changes. HCB V will focus in particular on Russia, given the current local retail 
banking transition and the challenging regulatory conditions. The overall objective in CEE will be to 
maintain market-leading positions with continued focus on improving efficiency as well as extending 
retail banking offer of its holdings predominantly in Kazakhstan and Belarus. In the high growth 
regions of Asia HCBV will continue to implement the geographical roll-out of its franchise deepening 
business penetration to further support the global diversification of the Group 's footprint. 
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Home Credit B. v; 
Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position 

as at 3 1 December 2013 

2013 2012 
Note TEUR TEUR 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,244 261 
Time deposits with banks 6 17,759 3,978 
Loans provided 7 125,344 150,890 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 24 2,444 
Investments in subsidiaries 9 1,190,670 1,085,544 
Assets held for sale 10 8,020 16,900 
Other assets II 37,771 42,255 

Total assets 1,385,832 1,302,272 

LIABILITIES 

Debt securities issued 12 253,945 269,083 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 13 14,689 506 
Loans received and other liabilities 14 84,449 32,361 

Totnlliabilitics 353,083 301,950 

EQUITY 

Share capital 15 659,020 659,020 
Share premium 15 184,377 303,969 
Revaluation reserve 15 7,900 
Other reserves 15 189,352 29,433 

Totnl equity 1,032,749 1,000,322 

Totnlliabilitics and equity 1,385,832 1,302,272 
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Interest income 
Interest expense 

Net interest expense 

Dividend income 
Fee income 
Net foreign exchange result 
Other income, net 

Operating income 

Impairment reversals 
General administrative expenses 

Operating expenses 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 

Net profit for the year 

Change in revaluation reserve, net of tax 

Other comprehensive ( expense)/income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Home Credit B. 1-: 
Unconsolidated Statement ojComprehensil'e Income 

for lite y ear ended 31 December 2013 

2013 2012 
Note TEUR TEUR 

16 10,849 10,867 
16 {19,632) {17,127) 

(8,783) (6,260) 

17 173,863 142,385 
18 9,360 7,140 

(628) (81 5) 
(1,165) 2 

172,647 142,452 

19 9,105 6,202 
20 ( 14,855) (15,511) 

(5,750) (9,309) 

166,897 133,143 

21 (6,978) (3,7 10) 

159,919 129,433 

(7,900) 7,000 

(7,900) 7,000 

152,019 136,433 

The unconsolidated financial statements as set out on pages 6 to 39 were approved by the Board of Directors 
on 10 March 20 14. 

/J(d.~ 
Pavel ~k c;/ ,/t ~ 

Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors 

:11/J:~ 
Jean-Pascal Duvieusart Mel erard Carvill 
Member of the Board of Directors Member of tl1e Board of Directors 

- 7-



Home Credit B. V. 
Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Share Revaluation Other Total 
Share capital premium reserve reserves equity 

TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Balance as at 1 January 2013 659,020 303,969 7,900 29,433 1,000,322 

Share premium decreases - (21 6,592) - - (216,592) 

Share premium increase - 97,000 - - 97,000 

Total 659,020 184,377 7,900 29,433 880,730 

Change in revaluation reserve - - (7,900) - (7,900) 

Profit for the year - - - 159,919 159.919 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - (7,900) 159,919 152,019 

Total changes - (119,592) (7,900) 159,919 32,427 

Balance as at 31 December 2013 659.020 184,377 - 189,352 1.032.749 
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Home Credit B. V. 
Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Share Revaluation Other Total 
Share capital premium reserve reserves equity 

TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR TEUR 

Balance as at I January 2012 659,020 60,253 900 7,476 727,649 

Share premium increase - 255,481 - - 255,481 

Dividend payment - (1 1.765) - (107,476) (I 19,241) 

Total 659,020 303,969 900 (100,000) 863,889 

Change in revaluation reserve - - 7,000 - 7,000 

Profit for the year - - - 129.433 129,433 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 7,000 129,433 136,433 

Total changes - 243,716 7,000 21,957 272,673 

Balance as at 31 December 2012 659,020 303,969 7,900 29,433 1,000,322 
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/lome Credit B. I'. 
Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

2013 2012 
Note TEUR TEUR 

Operating activities 
Profit before tax 166,897 133,143 
Adjustments for: 

Interest income and expense 16 8,783 6,260 
Dividend income 17 (173,863) (142,385) 
Impairment reversals 19 (9,105) (6,202) 
Other (9,252) 4,475 

Net operating cash now before changes in worl<ing capital (16,540) (4,709) 

Change in time deposits with banks (14, 109) 4,996 
Change in loans provided 6,859 (45,460) 
Change in other assets 6,904 (43,386) 
Change in other liabilities 11 ,417 (4,910) 

Cash flows used in the operations (5,469) (93,469) 

Interest paid (14, 134) (4,557) 
Interest received 19,602 5, 102 
Income tax paid (6,978) (3,710) 

Cash flows used in operating activities (6,979) (96,634) 

Investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of held-for-sale financial assets 16,900 
Acquisition of subsidiaries (166,056) (284,810) 
Proceeds from divestments 52,950 8,022 
Dividends received 17 173,863 142,385 

Cash flows from/( used in) investing activities 77,657 (134,403) 

Financing activities 
Proceeds from capital increase 97,000 255 ,48 1 
Dividends paid and other capital distributions (216,592) (119,241) 
Net proceeds from the issue of debt securities 67,593 
Proceeds fi·01n due to banks and other financial institutions 54,903 25,912 

Cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (64,689} 229,745 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,989 (1,292) 

Cash and cash equivalents at I January 5 261 1,554 

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (6) (I) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 5 
6,244 261 
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1. Description of the Company 

Home Credit B. 1-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Home Credit B.V. (the "Company") was incorporated on 28 December 1999 in the Netherlands. 

Registered office 
Strawinskylaan 933 
1077 XX Amsterdam 
The Netherlands 

Shnreholders 

PPF Group N.V. 
EMMA OMEGA LTD 

Country of incorpomtion 

Netherlands 
Cypms 

Ownership interest(%) 
2013 2012 

86.62 
13.38 

100.00 

Following an agreement between PPF Group N.V. and Mr. Jii'i Smejc, EMMA OMEGA LTD with its 
registered office in Esperidon 12, 41

h floor, 1087 Nicosia, Republic of Cypms, completed the acquisition 
of a 13.38% stake in Home Credit D.V. on 20 September 2013. EMMA OMEGA LTD is an investment 
holding company ultimately owned by Mr. Jii'i Smejc. 

The transaction has been approved by the respective regulators. 

The ultimate controlling pa11y ofPPF Group N.V. and of the Company is Mr. Petr Kellner. 

Bonn! of Directors 
J ifi Smejc 
Jan Cornelis Jansen 
Rudolf Dosveld 
Pavel Horak 
Jean-Pascal Duvieusart 
Mel Gerard Carvill 

Principnl nctivities 

Chairman 
Vice-chairman 
Member 
Member 
Member 
Member 

The Company is a direct owner of consumer finance companies ("the Group") operating in the 
Central Europe, CIS and Asia. The principal activities of the Company are the holding of equity 
stakes in these companies and obtaining refinancing for these companies fi·01n the market and from 
the parent company. 
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2. Basis of preparation 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been prepared on an unconsolidated basis. Subsidiaries are presented on a cost-less-impairment basis. 

The Company has also prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs, including lASs, 
promulgated by the IASB and interpretations issued by the IFRIC of the IASB as adopted by the European Union. 

The reconci liation of equity as per these unconsolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statements is shown below. 

Individual balance as at 31 December 2013 

Adjustment for: 
Impairment of subsidiaries, prior years 
Dividend income 
Net resu It of subsidiaries in 2013 
Reserves related to subsidiaries 

Consolidated balance as at 31 December 2013 

Share 
capital 
TEUR 

659,020 

659,020 

Share 
premium 

TEUR 

184,377 

184.,377 

Statutory Foreign 
reserve currency Revaluation 

fund translation reserve 
TEUR TEUR TEUR 

- - -

11.672 (208.627) 431 

11,672 (208,627) 431 

- 12-

Reserve for 
business 

combinations 
Hedging under common 

reserve control 
TEUR TEUR 

- -

(73) 15.106 

(73) 15,106 

Total 
equity attributable 

Other to equity holders of 
reserves the Company 

TEUR TEUR 

189,352 1,032,749 

75,374 75,374 
(173,863) (173,863) 

338,381 338,381 
438.405 256.914 

867,649 1,529,555 



2. Basis of preparation (continued) 

(a) Statement of compliance 

Hom e Credit B. v: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the y ear ended 31 December 2013 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Rep01ting 
Standards (fFRSs), including International Accounting Standards {lASs), promulgated by the 
International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Rep011ing Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) of the IASB as adopted by the European 
Union. 

(b) Basis of measurement 

The financial statements are prepared on the historic cost basis except for financial instruments at fai r 
value through profit or loss and financial assets available-for-sale that are measured at fair value. 
Financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities which are valued at historic cost 
are stated at amortized cost or historic cost, as appropriate, net of any relevant impairment. 

(c) Presentation and functional currency 

These financial statements are presented in Euro (EUR), which is the Company's functional and 
repotting currency. Financial information presented in EUR has been rounded to the nearest thousand 
{TEUR). 

(d) Changes in accounting policies and comparative figures 

The comparative figures have been regrouped or reclassified, where necessary, on a basis consistent 
with the current period. 

(e) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historic experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of the judgments about the 
canying values of assets and liabilities that cannot readily be determined from other sources. The 
actual values may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
est imates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments made 
by management in preparing these unconsolidated financial statements in respect of impairment 
recognition is described in Note 3(c)(vii), Note 3(e), Note 4(f), Note 9 and Note 19. 

- 13 -



3. Significant accounting policies 

(a) Foreign currency 

(i) Foreign currency tmnsactions 

Home Credit B.V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

A foreign currency transaction is a transaction that is denominated in or requires settlement in a 
currency other than the functional currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which an entity operates. For initial recognition purposes, a foreign currency 
transaction is translated into the functional currency using the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the 
repot1ing period are translated to EUR at the foreign exchange rate rul ing at that date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are 
translated to EUR at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange 
differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss. 

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company considers cash on hand and unrestricted balances with banks and other financial 
institutions due within one month to be cash and cash equivalents. 

(c) Financial assets and liabilities 

(i) Classification 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market, other than those that the Company intends to sell immediately or in the 
near term, those that the Company upon initial recognition designates as at f.1ir value through profit or 
loss, or those where its initial investment may not be substantially recovered, other than because of 
credit deterioration. 

When the Company is a lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risk and 
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee, the arrangement is presented within loans and 
receivables. 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets or liabilities that 
are classified as held for trading or those which arc upon initial recognition designated by the Company 
as at fair value through profit or loss. Trading instruments include those that the Company principally 
holds for the purpose of short-term profit taking and derivative contracts that are not designated as 
effective hedging instruments. The Company designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss where either the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and repot1ed 
internally on a fair value basis or the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch which would otherwise arise or the asset or liabi lity contains an embedded derivative that 
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract. Financial 
assets and liabilities at f.1 ir value through profit or loss are not reclassi fied subsequent to initial 
recognition. 

All trading derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), as well as options purchased, 
are reported as an asset. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fa ir value), as well 
as options written, are reported as a liability. 

Financial assets available-for-sale are those financial assets that are designated as avai lable-for-sale or 
are not classified as loans and receivables or financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. 

(ii) Recognition 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For regular purchases and sales of 
financial assets, the Company's policy is to recognize them using settlement date accounting. Any 
change in the fair value of an asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the 
settlement date is accounted for in the same way as if the Company used trade date accounting. 
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H ome Credit B. V. 
Noles /o !he Unconso/idnled Finmtcial S!nlemenls 

f or /he year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(iii) Measurement 
A financial asset or liability is initially measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or 
liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives that arc assets, are measured at 
thei r fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sa le or other 
disposal, except for loans and receivables which are measured at amortized cost less impairment losses 
and investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost less impairment losses. 

All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial 
liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for 
derecognition, are measured at amortized cost. 

(h1 Fair l'alue measurement principles 
The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price at the end of the repor1ing 
period without any deduction for transaction costs. lf a quoted market price is not available, the fair 
value of the instrument is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques. 

Where discounted cash flow techniques arc used, estimated future cash flows arc based on 
management's best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the end of the reporting 
period for an instnunent with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are 
based on market related measures at the end of the reporting period. 

The Company uses derivative contracts that are not exchange traded and their fair value is estimated 
using arbitrage pricing model where key parameters are relevant foreign exchange rates and interbank 
interest rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. 

(lV Amortized cost measurement principles 
The amor1ized cost of a financial asset or liabi lity is the amount in which the financial asset or liability 
is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount 
recognized and the maturity amount, net of any relevant impairment. 

(vi) Gains ami losses on subsequent measurement 
Gains and losses on financial instruments classi fied as at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognized in profit or loss. 

Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income 
(except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses) until the asset is derecognized, at 
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to profit or loss. 

For financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss 
when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, and through the am011ization process. 
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Home Credit B. I'. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Fincmcial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(vii) Identification and measurement of impairment 
The Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are impaired on a regular basis. Financial assets are impaired when objective 
evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the assets, and that 
the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been incurred, the amount 
of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and 
collateral discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Contractual cash flows and 
historical loss experience adjusted on the basis of relevant observable data that reflect current economic 
conditions provide the basis for estimating expected cash flows. Financial assets with a short duration 
are not discounted. 

In some cases the observable data required to est imate the amount of an impairment loss on a financial 
asset may be limited or no longer fully relevant to current circumstances. This may be the case when a 
borrower is in financial difficulties and there is little available historical data relating to similar 
borrowers. In such cases, the Company uses its experience and judgment to est imate the amount of any 
impairment loss. 

All impairment losses in respect of financial assets are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income and are only reversed if a subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to 
the extent that the asset's carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount of the asset that would 
have been determined, net of amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

(viii) Derecognition 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is 
recognized separately as an asset or liabil ity. 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

(ix) Offsetting 
Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the accounting standards, or 
for gains and losses arising fi·om a group of similar transactions. 

(.\) Derivative fimmcial instruments 
The Company uses derivative fi nancial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and 
interest rate risk arising from financing activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Company 
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. No hedge accounting is 
applied and any gain or loss on the derivative instruments is recognized immediately in the statement 
of comprehensive income as part of net foreign exchange result. 
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H ome Credit B. J-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(d) Investments in subsidiaries 

The Company initially recognizes its investments in subsidiaries at cost. Subsequently they are 
measured at cost less impairment losses. 

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The cany ing amounts of the Company' s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each rep011ing date to determine whether there is any indication of impainnent. If any such 
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fai r value less costs to sell and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent 
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

All impairment losses in respect of non-financial assets are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income and reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. Any impairment loss reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset's 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

(t) Provisions 

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position if, as a result of a past event, the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimatt!d reliably and it is probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. 

(g) Other payables 

Accounts payable arise when the Company has a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
fi nancial asset. Accounts payable arc measured at am011ized cost, which is normally equal to their 
nominal or repayment value. 

(h) Equity 

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued by the Company. To the extent such shares 
remain unpaid as of the end of the reporting period a corresponding receivable is presented in other 
assets. 

Dividends on share capital are recognized as a liability provided they are declared before the end of the 
rep011ing period. Dividends declared after the end of the rep011ing period are not recognized as a 
liability but arc disclosed in the notes. 
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Home Credit B. J~ 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

.for the y ear ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(i) Interest income and expense 

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income using the 
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where 
appropriate, a sh011er period) to the canying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective 
interest rate is established on initial recognition and is not revised subsequently. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or received, transaction 
costs and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs 
are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial 
asset or liability. 

U) Taxation 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following 
temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial 
recognition of assets or liabi lities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and temporary 
differences related to investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates where the parent is able to 
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on 
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using 
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
ava ilable against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realized. 

(k) Financial quarantees 

A financial guarantee is a contract that requires the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument. 

A financial guarantee liability is recognized initially at fair value net of associated transaction costs, 
and the initial fair value is amortized over the life of the financial guarantee. The guarantee liability is 
subsequently carried at the higher of this am011ized amount and the present value of any expected 
payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable). 

Income related to guarantees is recorded under fee income on accrual basis. 
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Home Credit B. I': 
Noles lo the Unconsolidated Financial Stalemen/s 

.for !he year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(I) Changes in Accounting policies and accounting pronouncements adopted 
since 1 January 2013 

The following revised standards effective from I January 2013 are mandatory and relevant for the 
Company and have been applied by the Company since I January 2013. 

Anmtal Improvements 2009-2011 Cvc!e (effective from I January 20 13) 

In May 2012 the IASB published Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle as part of its 
annual improvements process to make non-urgent but necessary amendments to IFRS. The new cycle 
of improvements contains amendments to I FRS 1, lAS I, IAS 16, lAS 32 and IAS 34, with 
consequential amendments to other standards and interpretations. 

Amendments to !FRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective 
from I January 20 13) 

The Amendments contain new disclosure requirements for financial assets and liabilities that are offset 
in the statement of financial position; or subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements. 

Amendment to lAS 1 Presentation o[Financial Statements (effective from I July 20 12) 

The amendments to lAS 1 titled Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensi1•e Income: 
- require that an entity present separately items of other comprehensive income that would be 

reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be 
reclassified to profit or loss; 

- do not change the existing option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in two 
statements; and 

- change the title of the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss and other 
~.:omprchensive income. However, an entity is still allowed to usc other titles. 

/FRS 13 Fair Value Aleasurement (eOective [rom 1 Janumv201 3) 

This new standard was issued in May 20 II. It replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained 
in individual lFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement guidance. It defines fair value, 
establishes a fi·amework for measuring fair value and sets out disclosure requirements for fair value 
measurements. It explains how to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other IFRSs. It 
does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or liabilities at fair value, nor does it eliminate 
the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in cer1ain standards. 

In accordance with transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Company has applied the new fair value 
measurement guidance prospectively and has not provided comparative information for new 
disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurements of 
the Company's assets and liabilities. 
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Home Credit JJ. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

(m) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not 
yet effective and are relevant for the Company's financial statements 

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations were not yet effective as of 
31 December 2013 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Of these 
pronouncements, potentially the following will have an impact on the Company's operations. The 
Company plans to adopt these pronouncements when they become efTective. The Company is in the 
process of analysing the likely impact on its financial statements. 

!FRS 12 Disclosure oflnterests in Other Entities 

IFRS 12 contains the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements (i.e. joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured 
entities, aiming to provide information to enable users to evaluate: 
- the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity's interests in other entities; and 
- the effects of those interests on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

/AS 27 Separate Financial Statements was issued concurrently with IFRS 10. lAS 27 (2011) carries 
forward the existing accounting and disclosure requirements for separate financial statements, wi th 
some minor clarifications. 

I FRS 9 financial Instruments (effective from I January 20 15) 

This new standard was published on 12 November 2009 as part of phase I of the IASB 's 
comprehensive project to replace lAS 39. It deals with classification and measurement of financial 
assets. The requirements of this standard represent a significant change from the existing requirements 
in lAS 39 in respect of financial assets. The standard contains two primary measurement categories for 
financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if 
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows, and the asset's contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets would be 
measured at fair value. The standard eliminates the existing lAS 39 categories of held to maturity, 
available for sale and loans and receivables. In October 2010 the IASB added to IFRS 9 the 
requirements for classification and measurement of financial liabilities whi le most of the requirements 
in lAS 39 were carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. !FRS 9 has not yet been adopted by the EU. 
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4. Financial risk management 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 1 December 2013 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

• credit risk 

• liquidity risk 

• market risks 

• operational risks 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's 
risk management framework. The Board has established the Group Asset and Liability Committee 
(ALCO) and the Group Credit Risk Department, which are responsible for developing and monitoring 
risk management policies in their specified areas. Both bodies report regularly to the Board of 
Directors on their activities. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, 
products and services offered. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss occurring as a result of default by a borrower or counterparty on 
their obligation to the Company. The majority of the Company's exposure to credit risk arises in 
connection with the provision of loans to related parties. The remaining part of the Company's 
exposures to credit risk is related to due from banks and other financial institutions and certain other 
assets. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its 
financial liabil ities. 

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the Company's reputation. The liquidity position is continuously monitored. All liquidity 
policies and procedures as well as liquidity position projections arc subject to review and approval by 
the Group ALCO. 

The Group has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised on the market and through related 
parties. The shareholder's support enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence on any one source of 
fund s and generally lowers the cost of funds. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Exposure to liquidity risk 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 20 I 3 

The following table shows assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturity dates. The table does not include prospective cash flows related to loan commitments. Refer to Note 22 for 
outstanding loan commitments that may impact liquidity requirements. 

2013 2012 
TEUR Less than 3 months more than No Less than 3 3 months No 

3 month to 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years maturity Total months to I year 1 to 5 years maturity Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,244 - - - - 6,244 261 - - - 261 
Time deposits with banks - - - - 17,759 17,759 - - - 3,978 3,978 
Loans provided 13,841 75,606 28,797 7,100 - 125,344 - 69,067 81,823 - 150,890 
Financial assets at fair value 24 - - - - 24 39 2,405 - - 2,444 
through profit or loss 
Investments in subsidiaries - - - - 1,190,670 1,190,670 - - - 1,085,544 1,085,544 
Assets held for sale - 8,020 - - - 8,020 16,900 - - - 16,900 
Other assets 3.033 75 34.593 - 70 37.771 7.441 - 34.744 70 42.255 

Total assets 23,142 83,701 63,390 7,1 00 1.208,499 1,385,832 24,641 71,472 116,567 1,089,592 1,302.272 

Debt securities issued - 17,543 236,402 - - 253,945 - - 269,083 - 269,083 
Financial liabilities at fair value 6,109 8,580 - - - 14,689 506 - - - 506 
through profit or loss 
Loans received and other 24,976 59,473 - - - 84,449 5,942 26,419 - - 32,361 
liabilities 

Total liabilities 31,085 85,596 236,402 - - 353,083 6,448 26,419 269,083 - 301,950 

Net position (7,943) (1,895) (173,012) 7,100 1.208,499 1,302,749 18,193 45,053 (152,516) 1,089.592 1,000,322 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(c) Market risk 

Home Credit B. 1'. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates or foreign exchange rates 
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. 

The majority of the Company's exposure to market risk arises in connection with the fu nding of the 
Company's operations with liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, and to the extent the term 
structure of interest bearing assets differs from that ofliabi lities. 

Exposure to interest rnte risl{ 
The principal risk to which the Company is exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future 
cash flows or fair va lues of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest 
rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved 
limits for re-pricing bands. Given the structure of the Company's statement of comprehensive income 
with the main source of income being dividends received, which are considerably more significant than 
interest expenses, the Company is able to tolerate significant interest rate gaps. The Group ALCO is the 
monitoring body for compliance with these limits. 

Exposure to foreign cuncncy risl{ 
The Company has assets and liabil ities denominated in several foreign currencies. Foreign currency 
risk arises when the actual or forecast assets in a foreign currency are either greater or less than the 
liabilities in that currency. Foreign currency risk is managed principally through monitoring foreign 
currency mismatches in the structure of assets and liabilities (refer to Note 8 and Note 13). The Group 
ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with this mle. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Interest rate gap position 

TEUR 

Interest bearing financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Time deposits with banks 
Loans provided 

Total interest bearing financial assets 

Interest bearing financial liabilities 

Debt securities issued 
Loans received and other liabilities 

Total interest bearing financial liabilities 

Effective 
interest 

rate 

0.6% 
0.0% 
9.3% 

6.8% 
6.3% 

Less than 
3 months 

6,244 
-

13,841 

20,085 

24,976 

24,976 

2013 

3 to 12 1 to 5 More than 
months years 

- -
- -

97,893 6,510 

97,893 6,510 

17,543 236,402 
59,473 

77,016 236,402 

-24-

5 years 

-
-

7,100 

7,100 

Non 
specified 

-
17,759 

-

17,759 

Total 

6,244 
17,759 

125,344 

149.347 

253,945 
84,449 

338.394 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 



4. Financial risk management (continued) 

Interest rate gap position 

TEUR 

Interest bearing financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Time deposits with banks 
Loans provided 

Total interest bearing financial assets 

Interest bearing financial liabilities 

Debt securities issued 
Loans received and other liabilities 

Total interest bearing financial liabilities 

Effective 
interest 

rate 

0.4% 
0.0% 
8.7% 

6.8% 
6.9% 

Less than 
3 months 

261 
-
-

261 

5,942 

5,942 

2012 

3 to 12 More than 
months 1 to 5 years 5 years 

- - -
- - -

69,067 81 ,823 -

69.067 81.823 -

269,083 
26.419 

26,419 269,083 
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Non 
specified 

-
3,978 

-

3.978 

Total 

261 
3,978 

150,890 

155.129 

269,083 
32,361 

301.444 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 1 December 2013 



Home Credit B.V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for rhe year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Financial risk management (continued) 
Foreign currency position 

2013 2012 
TEUR Other Other 

RUB CZK EUR currencies Total RUB CZK EUR currencies Total 

Cash and cash equivalents 1 813 5,371 59 6,244 - 36 173 52 261 
Time deposits with banks - 3,646 14,113 - 17,759 - 3,978 - - 3,978 
Loans provided 42,995 30,019 27,033 25,297 125,344 21,934 88,273 37,453 3,230 150,890 
Financial assets at fair value through - - - 24 24 - - 2,444 - 2,444 
profit or loss 
Investments in subsidiaries 464,930 238,631 457,410 29,699 1,190,670 454,630 237,846 363,369 29,699 1,085,544 
Assets held for sale 8,020 - - - 8,020 - - 16,900 - 16,900 
Other assets - - 37,771 - 37,771 - - 42,255 - 42.255 

Total assets 515,946 273,109 541,698 55,079 1,385,832 476,564 330,133 462.594 32.981 1.302.272 

Debt securities issued - 253,945 - - 253,945 - 269,083 - - 269,083 
Financial liabilities at fair value - 14,689 - - 14,689 - - 506 - 506 
through profit or loss 
Loans received and other liabilities 39.471 237 22,941 21,800 84.449 26,419 3,596 2.320 26 32,361 

Total liabilities 39,471 268,871 22,941 21,800 353,083 26,419 272,679 2,826 26 301,950 

Effect of foreign currency derivatives - 231,753 (228,531) (3,222) - 4,242 132,612 (134,133) (2,721) 

Net position 476,475 235,991 290.226 30,057_1,03~.749 454,387 190,066 325,635 30,234 1,000,322 
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Home Credit B.V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(d) Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated 
with the Company's processes, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. 

The Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial 
losses and damage to the Company's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control 
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational 
risk is assigned to senior management of the Company. This responsibility is suppm1ed by the 
development of standards for the management of operational risk in the fo llowing areas: 

• requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of 
transactions; 

• requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions; 
• compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements; 
• documentation of controls and procedures; 
• requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of 

controls and procedures to address the risks identified; 
• requirements for the repm1ing of operat ional losses and proposed remedial action; 
• development of contingency plans; 
• training and professional development; 
• ethical and business standards; 
• risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 

(e) Capital management 

The Company considers share capital, share premium and capital reserves as a part of the capital. The 
Company's policy is to maintain capital base adequate to its investments in subsidiaries so as to 
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, sustain future development of the business and meet 
the capital requirements related to its funding operations. There arc no regulatory capital requirements 
for the Company. 
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Home Credit B. I'. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

f or the year ended 31 December 2013 

4. Financial risk management (continued) 

(f) Fair values of financial instnuuents 

The Company has performed an assessment of fair values of its fin ancial instruments, as required by 
!FRS 7, to determine whether it is practicable within the constraints of timeliness and cost to determine 
their fair va lues with sufficient reliability. 

The Company's estimates of fair values of its financial assets and liabilities are not materially different 
from their cany ing values. 

The following table shows an analysis o f financia l instruments recorded at fair value, between those whose 
fair value is based on quoted market prices (Level I) or calculated using valuation techniques where all the 
model inputs arc observable in the market (Level 2) or calculated using valuation techniques where 
significant model inputs are not observable in the market (Level 3): 

2013 

Financial assets at fair value through profit 
o r loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 

2012 

Financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss 

Levell 
TEUR 

Levell 
TEUR 

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during 2012 or 2013 . 

Reconciliation of movements in Level 3: 

Balance as at 1 January 

Net gains recorded in other comprehensive income 

Transfer to assets held for sale 

Balance as at 31 Decem bet· 

5. Cash and cash equivalents 

Current accounts with related pat1ies 
Other current accounts 
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Level2 
TEUR 

24 

(1 4,689) 

(14,665) 

Level2 
TEUR 

2,444 

(506) 

1,938 

Level3 
TEUR 

Level3 
TEUR 

2013 
TEUR 

2013 
TEUR 

6,2 17 
27 

6,244 

Total 
TEUR 

24 

(14,689) 

(14,665) 

Total 
TEUR 

2,444 

(506) 

1,938 

2012 
TEUR 

9,900 

7,000 

(16,900) 

2012 
TEUR 

234 
27 

261 



/lome Credit JJ. 1-: 
Noles to I lie Unconsolidated Financial Stmements 

for the year ended 3/ December 2013 

6. Time deposits with banks 

7. 

As at 31 December 2013 time deposits with banks represented balances ofTEUR 17,759 (2012: 3,978) 
that served as a collateral for foreign exchange derivative contracts with a related party. 

Loans provided 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

Loans to subsidiaries 17,378 32,851 
Loans to the parent company 85,679 114,809 
Other loans provided 22,287 3,230 

125,344 150,890 

8. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent positive fair values of derivative instruments. 

As at 31 December 2013 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contrnct type Sell/Buy 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
KZT/EUR 

Mnturity Notionnl amount 
(in thousnnds of 

purchased CUI'I'Cncy) 

Fair value 

TEUR 

Less than I month 3, 168 _____ _::2:..:.._4 

24 

As at 31 December 2012 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contract type Sell/Buy 

Foreign currency forward contracts 
EUR/CZK 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
EURICZK 
EURICZK 
CZKIEUR 
EURIRUB 

Maturity Notionnl amount Fair value 

I to 3 months 

I to 3 months 
3 months to I year 
3 months to I year 
3 months to I year 
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(in thousands of 
purchased currency) 

277 

TEUR 

30,988 38 
127, 127 2, 149 
25,780 26 

4,242 - ---------=2=3-=-0 

2,444 



9. Investments in subsidiaries 

Subsidiary 

Redlione (LLC) 
Sylander Capital Limited I) 

Septus Holding Limited I ) 

Astavedo Limited I) 

Talpa Estero Limited I) 

Enadoco Limited I ) 

Rhaskos Finance Limited I ) 

Home Credit (JSC) 
Home Credit Intemational (JSC) 
HC Insurance Se1v icc s.r.o. 2> 
Home Credit Africa N.Y. 
HC AsiaN.V 

Home Credit Bank (OJSC) 
PPF Home Credit IFN S.A. 

Home Credit and Finance Bank (LLC) 

Home Credit Insurance LLC I) 

InkoTechnopolis (LLC) 
Home Credit Slovakia (JSC) 
Collect-Credit (LLC) 
Homer Software House (LLC) 3> 

I ) subsidiaries acquired in 2013 
2
> subsidiary establ ished in 20 13 

Country of 
incorporation 

Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Cyprus 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republic 
Czech Republic 
Netherlands 
Netherlands 
Republic of 
Belarus 
Romania 
Russian 
Federation 
Russian 
Federation 
Russian 
Federation 
Slovak Republic 
Ukraine 
Ukraine 

Home Credit B. V. 
Noles to tile Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for tile year ended 31 December 2013 

Shnre in issued capital 
2013 2012 2013 2012 

0/o 0/o TEUR TEUR 

100.00 100.00 18,360 18,138 
100.00 508 
100.00 508 
100.00 42 
100.00 508 
100.00 507 
100.00 507 
100.00 100.00 232,0 16 232,0 16 
100.00 100.00 5,830 5,830 
100.00 785 
100.00 100.00 10 
100.00 100.00 376,049 284,800 

99.59 99.59 28,697 28,697 
99.00 99.00 748 748 

99.99 99.99 454,630 454,630 

100.00 10,300 

100.00 100.00 
100.00 100.00 60,421 60,421 
100.00 100.00 254 254 

2.78 2.78 
1,190,670 1,085,544 

3
> presented as a subsidiary because of the Company's indirect share of 97.22% through Redlionc (LLC) 

On 27 September 20 12 the Company executed agreements with its shareholder concerning the future 
acquisition of I 00% shares in CF Commercial Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd, Home Credit Consumer 
Finance Co., Ltd and PPF Vietnam Finance Company LLC. The transfer of ownership rights is subject to 
obtaining regulatory approvals by the respective regulators in China and Vietnam. Therefore, as at 3 1 
December 201 3 and 2012 the three companies were not presented as subsidiaries. 

In January 20 13 the Company acquired certain insurance operations in the CIS region. On 28 March 20 l3 
the transactions were settled and the following subsidiaries were acquired: 

- Generali PPF General Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF General Insurance (LLC) 
and then to Home Credit Insurance (LLC)) 

- Generali PPF Insurance (PSC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Insurance (PSC)) 
- Generali PPF Life Insurance (LLC) (subsequently renamed to PPF Life Insurance (LLC)) 

The acquisition of Home Credit Insurance (LLC) was part of the Company's strategy to support the core 
business of its subsidiaries by offering insurance services on selected markets. 

PPF Insurance (PSC) and PPF Life Insurance (LLC) were not considered to be supporting the 
Company's strategy. However, the selling party's offer included all companies, and the Company's 
decision was to accept the offer and subsequently re-sell PPF Insurance (PSC) and PPF Life Insurance 
(LLC). 
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9. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 

Home Credit 11. 1-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the y ear ended 31 December 2013 

In April 20 13 the Company completed the sale of PPF Life Insurance (LLC) to the Company's parent 
company. The sale price was equal to the acquisition price; the transaction had no impact on the 
Company's profit or loss. 

The sale ofPPF Insurance (PSC) has not been yet completed. As at 3 I December 20 13 this company was 
reported as Asset held for sale (Note l 0). 

2013 

Balance as at 1 January 201 3 
Changes: 
Investments 
Divestments 

Balance as at 3 1 December 201 3 

Accumulated impairment as at 3 1 December 2013 

2012 

Balance as at I January 2012 
Changes: 
Investments 
Divestments 
Impairment reversals 

Balance as at 3 1 December 20 12 

Accumulated impairment as at 31 December 20 12 

10. Assets held for sale 

Participating 
interest 

TEUR 

1,085,544 

158,036 
(52,910) 

1,190,670 

(75,374) 

ParticipAting 
interest 

TEUR 

802,554 

284,8 10 
(8,022) 

6,202 

1,085,544 

(75,374) 

As at 31 December 2013 financial assets held for sale of TEUR 8,020 represented Company's I 00% 
share in PPF Insurance (PSC). 

As at 31 December 2012 financial assets held for sale of TEUR 16,900 represented the Company's 
9.99% share in Home Credit Bank (JSC) that was subject to a sales transaction entered into on 28 
January 2013 with its subsidiary Home Credit & Finance Bank (LLC). 
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Home Credit B. 1.-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

11. Other assets 

12. 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Acquisition of subsidiaries 34,500 34,500 
Trade receivables 3,033 7,392 
Other receivables 168 293 
Trade marks 70 70 

37,771 42,255 

Trade receivables balances represent receivables for services provided primarily from related pmiies. 

Acquisition of subsidiaries represents the consideration paid for the acquisition of shares in 
Cr Commercial Consulting (13eijing) Co., Ltd and Ho me Credit Consumer rinance Co., Ltd (Note 9). 
The transfer of ownership rights is subject to obtaining regulatory approvals by the respective regulators 
in China. Therefore, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the consideration paid was presented under other 
assets. 

Debt securities issued 
Amount outstanding 

Interest Final 
rate maturity 2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

CZK promissory note issue ofMCZK 500 Zero-
September 20 14 17,543 18, 169 

coupon 

Unsecured CZK bond issue 4 of MCZK 2,900 Zero-
September 20 15 94,952 96,751 

coupon 

Unsecured CZK bond issue 5 of MCZK 3,750 Fixed June20 16 141,450 154,163 

253,945 269,083 

13. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liab ilities at fair value through profit or loss represent negative fair values of derivative 
instruments. 

As at 31 December 2013 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contract type SelVBuy 

Foreign currency forward contracts 
EUR/CZK 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
EUR/CZK 
EUR/CZK 
USD/EUR 

Maturity Notional amount 

I to 3 months 

1 to 3 months 
3 months to I year 
3 months to 1 year 
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(in thousands of 
purchased currency) 

195 

100,462 
13 1,096 

54 

Fair value 

TEUR 

(13) 

(6,096) 
(8,580) 

-------

(14,689) 



Home Credit B. 1-': 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 3 I December 2013 

13. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

As at 31 December 2012 the following derivative contracts were outstanding: 

Contract type Sell/Buy Maturity Notionnl nmount 
(in thousnnds of 

purclwsed currency) 

Fair value 

TEUR 

Foreign currency swap contracts 
KZT/EUR 
EUR/KZT 

I to 3 months 
I to 3 months 

10,973 (119) 
8,252 ____ ___c(,.::,3:::..:87~) 

(506) 

14. Loans received and other liabilities 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

Loans received 81,273 26,419 
Settlement with suppliers 3,069 5,932 
Other accounts payable 107 10 

84,449 32,361 

Loans received represent loans in Russian roubles, Euros and US dollars from a related party with a 
fixed interest rate. 

15. Equity 
As at 31 December 2013 the share capital of the Company comprised 1,250,000,000 (2012: 
1,250,000,000) ordinmy shares at a par value ofEUR 0.57 (2012: EUR 0.57), ofwhich 1,156,174,806 
(20 12: I, I 56, 174,806) shares were issued and fully paid. All issued shares bear equal voting rights. The 
holders of the shares arc entitled to receive distributions of profits and reserves when declared by the 
generalmceting of the Company. No distributions can be made if the total amount of the reserves to be 
maintained pursuant to the law or the articles of association exceeds the Company's equity and the 
management board has not given its approval to such distribution. 

During 20 13 several reductions of the share premium took place: 

Month 

March 
April 
May 
July 
September 
November 
December 

Amount of reduction 
TEUR 

9,800 
39,280 
7,726 

28,901 
11,622 

112,000 
7,263 

216,592 

Amount per one share 
EUR 

0.01 
0.03 
0.01 
0.02 
0.01 
0.10 
0.01 

Revaluation reserve represents the revaluation surplus recognized on changes in the fair value of 
financial assets available for sale. The fair value reserve is not available for distribution to the 
shareholder. 
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llome Credit B.l'. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

15. Equity (continued) 

16. 

17. 

During 2012 dividends were paid out from share premium and other reserves as follows: 

Month 

May 
November 

Source of distribution Amount 
TEUR 

other reserves I 07,476 
share premium 11 ,765 

-----....::....::C-'-'--"-"-

119,241 

Interest income and interest expense 

Interest income 
Parent company 
Subsidiaries 
Other 

Interest expense 
Debt securities issued 
Other 

Dividend income 

Subsidiary 
Home Credit and Finance Bank (LLC) 
Home Credit Slovakia (JSC) 
Home Credit (JSC) 
Home Credit International (JSC) 

Amount per one share 
EUR 

2013 
TEUR 

7,550 
2,7 15 

584 

10,849 

16,672 
2,960 

19,632 

2013 
TEUR 

138, 122 
17,758 
15,498 
2,485 

173,863 

0.09 
0.01 

2012 
TEUR 

7,63 1 
2,526 

71 0 

10,867 

16,620 
507 

17,127 

2012 
TEUR 

72,030 
16,500 
52,363 

1,492 

142,385 

18. Fee income 
Fee income ofTEUR 9,360 (20 12: 7, 140) represents service fees and fee income from guarantees issued 
received primarily from related pm1ies. 
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Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

.for the y ear ended 3 1 December 2013 

19. Impairment reversals/(losses) 

20. 

21. 

In 2013 the Company released impairment losses ofTEUR 9, I 05 on its investment in Home Credit Bank 
(JSC). 

In 2012 the Company released impairment losses of TEUR 6,202 on its equity investment in Home 
Credit Bank (OJSC). 

General administrative expenses 
2013 2012 

TEUR TEUR 

Professional services II , 155 11,280 
Travel expenses 2,807 667 
VAT 606 1,011 
Personal expenses 160 2,4 19 
Bond issue expense 75 87 
Other 52 47 

14,855 15,511 

Taxation 
Income tax expense of TEUR 6,978 (20 12: TEUR 3,71 0) represented withholding tax from dividends 
received which was paid in the subsidiary's jurisdiction and withholding tax from interest received. 

As at 31 December 20 13 the Company incurred accumulated tax losses ofTEUR 108,933 (31 December 
2012: TEUR 92, 128) avai lable to be canied forward and off-set against future taxable income. The 
unutil ized tax losses expire in the period from 2015 to 2022. 

These however can only be offset for a limited period against taxable income. There is no expectation of 
sufficient taxable income, as dividends received are tax exempt in the Netherlands. Therefore, no income 
tax is accounted for in the profit and loss account apat1 from withholding taxes and no deferred tax asset 
is recorded. 

2013 2012 

Year of expiration TEUR TEUR 

2015 10,273 10,273 
2016 20,501 20,501 
2017 
2018 15,358 15,358 
2019 11 ,337 11,337 
2020 20,659 20,659 
2021 17,661 14,000 
2022 13,144 

Total 108,933 92,128 
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22. Commitments and guarantees 

Home Credit B. 1-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

As at 31 December 2013 the Company had outstanding commitments to extend credit to its subsidiaries 
ofTEUR 449,615 (20 12: 425,444). 

As at 31 December 2013 the Company had outstanding guarantees ofTEUR 121,698 (2012: 0) issued 
by the Company in favour of the financing banks for bank loans drawn by related parties. 

23. Related party transactions 
The Company has a related party relationship with its parent company PPF Group N.Y., with the 
Company's subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, with the parent company's associates, with the 
Company's key management personnel and other related parties. 

(a) Transactions with the parent company 

Balances included in the statement of financial position 111 relation to transactions with the parent 
company are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 230 

Loans provided 85,679 114,809 

Other assets 34,500 34,570 

Other liabilities (379) 

120,179 149,230 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with the parent 
company are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Interest income 7,550 7,63 1 

1 nterest expense (12) (177) 

Net foreign exchange result (351) 22 1 

General administrative expenses (250) (250) 

6,937 7,425 
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23. Related party transactions (continued) 

Home Credit B. V. 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

(b) Transactions with subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries 

Balances included in the statement of financial position in relation to transactions with subsidiaries and 
fellow subsidiaries are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,217 234 

Time deposits with banks 17,759 3,978 

Loans provided 17,378 36,002 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24 2,214 

Other assets 3,033 7,637 

Debt securities issued (36,429) (39,530) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (14,689) (506) 

Loans received and other liabilities (81 ,51 0) (29,873) 

(88,217) (19,844) 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with subsidiaries 
and fellow subsidiaries are as follows: 

2013 2012 
TEUR TEUR 

Interest income 2,769 2,61 3 

Interest expense (4,983) (1,339) 

Dividend income 173,863 142,385 

Fee income 9,360 7,140 

Other income 40 

Net foreign exchange result (18,4 10) (759) 

General administrative expenses (2,354) (6,945) 

160,285 143,095 

As at 31 December 201 3 the Company had outstanding guarantees ofTEUR 1,171 (2012: 0) issued by the 
Company in favour of the financing bank for bank loan drawn by its subsidiary. 

As at 31 December 20 13 the Company had outstanding guarantees of TEUR 120,527 (20 12: 0) issued by 
the Company in £wour of the financing banks for bank loans drawn by its fellow subsidiary. 
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23. Related party transactions (continued) 

Home Cre£1if B. 1-: 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

(c) Transactions with the pat·ent company's associates 

Balances included in the statement of financial position in relation to transactions with the parent 
company's associates are as follows: 

Debt securities issued 

2013 
TEUR 

(180,62 1) 

(180,621) 

2012 
TEUR 

(90,447) 

(90,447) 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relation to transactions with the parent 
company's associates are as follows: 

Interest expense 

(d) Transactions with other related parties 

2013 
TEUR 

(5,256) 

(5,256) 

2012 
TEUR 

{7,312) 

(7,312) 

In 2013 the Company concluded a consultancy service agreement with a company controlled by one of 
the members of its Board of Directors. The consultancy fees ofTEUR 7,998 charged in 2013 in relation 
to this agreement are recorded under general administrative expenses, while the related liability of 
TEUR 2,498 as at 31 December 20 I 3 is recorded under loans received and other liabilities. 

As at 3 1 December 2013 the balance of loans provided included an unsecured loan of TEUR 22,287 (31 
December 2012: TEUR 0) provided by the Company to a company controlled by one of the members of 
its Board of Directors. 

(e) Transactions with ){ey management personnel 

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company are considered as the key management of the 
Company. 

Amounts included in the statement of comprehensive income in relat ion to transactions with members of 
key management comprising following salaries and bonuses. 

Long-term benefits (reversals)/expenses 
Sh011-term benefits expenses 

2013 
TEUR 

106 

106 

2012 
TEUR 

(976) 
3,395 

2,419 

The total remunerations paid to members of the Board of Directors of the Company by the Company and 
all its subsidiaries were TEUR 555 (2012: 6,551). 
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24. Audit expenses 

/lome Credit B. I ~ 
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2013 

Home Credit 11.V. and its subsidiaries incurred expenses for the following services provided by KPMG 
Accountants N. V. and its affiliates: 

2013 2012 
TEUH. TEUR 

Audit of financial statements 1,295 1, 134 
Other audit scn•iccs 476 375 

1,771 1,509 

25. Segment information 
The Company represents one reportable segment that has central management and follows a common 
business strategy. All the revenues are attributed to the Company's country of domicile. 

26. Subsequent events 
In January and February 2014 the Company increased share premium in HC Asia N.Y. by TEUR 
12,500. 

In February 2014 the Company received dividends from Home Credit (JSC) ofTEUR 18,268 equivalent. 

In February 2014 the Company received dividends from Home Credit Slovakia (JSC) ofTEUR 18,000. 

- 39-



Other Information 

Hom e Credit IJ. 1'. 
Other h!formation 

Certain information required by Article 392 the Civil Code of the Netherlands, to the extent it is 
appl icable to the Company, as well as the Auditor's Report is included in this part of the Unconsolidated 
Annual Accounts. 

1. Profit appropriation 
The general meeting is authorised to appropriate the profits that follow from the adoption of the annual 
accounts or to determine how a deficit wi ll be accounted for, as well as to resolve upon distributions, 
provided that the Company's equity exceeds the total amount of the reserves to be maintained pursuant to 
the law or the articles of association. A resolution on any distribution has no consequences if the 
management board has not given its approval to such distribution. 

During 20 13 the Company's share premium reserves were reduced by TEUR 216,592. No decision or 
proposal on the appropriation of the net profit available for distribution has been taken as of the date of 
the issue of these financial statements. 

2. Subsequent events 
Refer to the Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements, Note 26. 
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Independent auditor's report 

To: the Board of Directors of Home Credit B.V. 

Report on the company financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying company financial statements for the year ended on 
31 December 2013 which are part of the financial statements of Home Credit B.V., Amsterdam, 
and comprise the company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the 
company statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
then ended and notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanat01y information. 

Management's responsibility 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these company financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Repot1ing Standards as adopted by the 
European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, and for the 
preparation of the directors' report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil 
Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as it determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the company financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these company financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on 
Auditing. This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the company financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the company financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
company financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair 
presentation of the company financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the company financial 
statements. 

23608/14\V00118170AVN KPMG AccountAnts tJ.V., registered with the ttede register in the Netherlands 
under nurrber 33263683, is a subsd.>ry of KPMG Europe lLP and a merrber r<m 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of Home Credit B.V. as at 31 December 2013 and of its result and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Rep01ting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 ofthe Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requh·emcnts 

Pursuant to the legal requirements under Section 2 :393 sub 5 ate and f of the Netherlands Civil 
Code, we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors' 
repott, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of 
this Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2:392 sub I at b- h has been 
annexed. Further, we rep01t that the directors' report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent 
with the company financial statements as required by Section 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands 
Civil Code. 

Amstelveen, 10 March 2014 

KPMG Accountants N.Y. 

B.M. Hemgreen RA 
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